
Please note:  Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded

Principal Scrutiny Adviser:
Steven Courtney
Tel: (0113) 37 88666

Produced on Recycled Paper

A

SCRUTINY BOARD (ADULTS AND HEALTH)

Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on
Tuesday, 24th April, 2018 at 1.30 pm

(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 1.00 p.m.)

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors

C Anderson - Adel and Wharfedale;
J Chapman - Weetwood;

B Flynn - Adel and Wharfedale;
H Hayden (Chair) - Temple Newsam;

A Hussain - Gipton and Harehills;
J Jarosz - Pudsey;
G Latty - Guiseley and Rawdon;

C Macniven - Roundhay;
J Pryor - Headingley;

D Ragan - Burmantofts and Richmond 
Hill;

P Truswell - Middleton Park;
S Varley - Morley South;

Co-opted Member (Non-voting)

Dr J Beal - Healthwatch Leeds

Public Document Pack



B

A G E N D A

Item
No

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

1  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS

To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded).

(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting). 

2  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

1. To highlight reports or appendices which 
officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report.

2. To consider whether or not to accept the 
officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information.

 
3. If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:-

RESOLVED – That the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:

           No exempt items have been identified.



C

3  LATE ITEMS

To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration.

(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.)

4  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS

To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct.

5  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES

To receive any apologies for absence and 
notification of substitutes.

6  MINUTES - 13 MARCH 2018

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 13 March 2018.

1 - 8

7  EXECUTIVE BOARD MINUTES - 21 MARCH 
2018

To receive and consider the draft minutes from the 
Executive Board meeting held on 21 March 2018, 
as they relate to the remit of the Scrutiny Board.

9 - 22

8  CHAIR'S UPDATE

To receive an update from the Chair on scrutiny 
activity since the previous Board meeting, on 
matters not specifically included elsewhere on the 
agenda.

23 - 
24



D

9  REQUEST FOR SCRUTINY - PROPOSALS 
FROM LEEDS TEACHING HOSPITALS NHS 
TRUST TO ESTABLISH A WHOLLY OWNED 
SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

To consider a report from the Head of Governance 
and Scrutiny Support that presents details of a 
request for scrutiny relating to proposals from 
Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust to establish a 
Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company.

25 - 
26

10 THE ANNUAL REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF 
PUBLIC HEALTH 2017/2018

To consider a report from the Head of Governance 
and Scrutiny Support introducing the Annual 
Report of the Director of Public Health 2017/2018, 
considered by the Executive Board at its meeting 
on 21 March 2018.

27 - 
76

11 SCRUTINY INQUIRY INTO THE HEALTH AND 
SOCIAL CARE NEEDS OF PRISONERS - 
DRAFT REPORT

To receive a report from the Head of Governance 
and Scrutiny Support presenting the Scrutiny 
Board’s draft report following its recent inquiry into 
the Health and Social Care Needs of Prisoners.

77 - 
78

12 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

There are no further meetings of the Scrutiny 
Board planned during the remainder of the current 
municipal year.



E

THIRD PARTY RECORDING

Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those 
not present to see or hear the proceedings either as 
they take place (or later) and to enable the reporting of 
those proceedings.  A copy of the recording protocol is 
available from the contacts on the front of this agenda.

Use of Recordings by Third Parties – code of practice

a) Any published recording should be 
accompanied by a statement of when and 
where the recording was made, the context 
of the discussion that took place, and a clear 
identification of the main speakers and their 
role or title.

b) Those making recordings must not edit the 
recording in a way that could lead to 
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the 
proceedings or comments made by 
attendees.  In particular there should be no 
internal editing of published extracts; 
recordings may start at any point and end at 
any point but the material between those 
points must be complete.



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting 
to be held on Date Not Specified

SCRUTINY BOARD (ADULTS AND HEALTH)

TUESDAY, 13TH MARCH, 2018

PRESENT: Councillor H Hayden in the Chair

Councillors C Anderson, J Chapman, 
B Flynn, J Jarosz, G Latty, J Pryor, 
D Ragan, P Truswell and S Varley

Co-opted Member Dr J Beal
98 Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents 

There were no appeals against refusal of inspection of documents.
99 Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public 

There were no exempt items.
100 Late Items 

There were no formal late items. 

However there was supplementary information in relation to Item 9: Care 
Quality Commission – Adult Social Care Providers Inspection Outcomes 
November 2017 to January 2018 – Appendix 1 (minute 106 refers)

101 Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

No declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests were made at the meeting.

Dr Beal drew the Board’s attention to his position as a member of Leeds 
Clinical Commissioning Group’s Primary Care Commissioning Committee; as 
it was relevant to the update on GP services in Leeds (minute 106 refers).   
However, as the matter was non-pecuniary Dr Beal remained present for that 
discussion.  

102 Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitutes 

No apologies for absence were received at the meeting.
103 Minutes - 13 February 2018 

RESOLVED – Subject to the inclusion of Dr Beal to the list of attendees, that 
the minutes of the meeting held on 13th February 2018 be approved as a 
correct record.

104 Minutes of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire 
and the Humber) - 12 January 2018 

The minutes of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire 
and The Humber) meeting held on 12 January 2018 were presented to the 
Board for information, with particular reference to providing the following:-

 A summary of activity of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (Yorkshire and The Humber) over a number of years.

 Confirmation that the work of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (Yorkshire and The Humber) had essentially been 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting 
to be held on Date Not Specified

completed and was unlikely to meet again to consider matters 
associated with the planning and delivery of congenital heart disease 
services for adults and children.

 Confirmation that the future commissioning and delivery arrangements 
for congenital heart disease services for adults and children.

 Confirmation that the further assurance report identified in the minutes 
would, as a minimum, be presented to a future meeting of the Scrutiny 
Board (Adults and Health) – or its successor body – for consideration.

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (Yorkshire and The Humber) meeting held on 12 January 2018, 
and details highlighted at the meeting be noted.

105 Delivery of GP services in Leeds - update 

The Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support submitted a report that 
introduced an update from Leeds Clinical Commissioning Groups Partnership 
regarding the delivery of GP services across Leeds.

The report specifically highlighted matters associated with provision of 
services at Radshan Medical Centre in Kippax where, in October 2017, the 
provider of services had presented their formal resignation without prior 
warning.
 
In attendance at the meeting presenting the report were:-

 Dr Simon Stockill, Medical Director, NHS Leeds Clinical 
Commissioning Groups Partnership 

 Gaynor Connor, Associate Director: Primary Care Development, NHS 
Leeds Clinical Commissioning Groups Partnership.

Also in attendance at the meeting were local Ward Members for Kippax and 
Methley, Councillors Keith Wakefield, Mary Harland and James Lewis.

In introducing the item, the Medical Director outlined the overall role of Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) in terms of commissioning local GP services 
within the context of nationally negotiated and agreed contract framework.  

It was also highlighted that CCGs were commissioning organisations and, as 
such, were not permitted to provide services directly – unlike Primary Care 
Trusts (PCTs) previously.  

The Medical Director also provided some additional national context around 
the GP Forward View and funding and workforce issues across general 
practice.  

The Medical Director outlined the details, including a brief background, 
associated with the circumstances leading to the imminent closure of the 
Radshan Medical Centre; and highlighted:  

 Aspects of the CCG’s consultation and engagement activities could 
have been improved. 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting 
to be held on Date Not Specified

 The provider’s decision to terminate the contractual relationship to 
provide services at Radshan Medical Centre had been unexpected.

 The minimum notice period of 6-months had been submitted by the 
existing provider on 31 October 2017.

The Chair of the Scrutiny Board invited the local ward members to address 
the Scrutiny Board.  The issues highlighted included:

 The CCG had been aware that the practice was to close from October 
2017;

 Most patients first received a letter concerning the closure in January 
2018;

 Communication had not been good for residents of Kippax or for 
patients of the Radshan;

 The practice had formed part of the local community for over 70 years; 
and pre-dated the NHS.

 The closure should be considered in the context of projected increases 
to the local population – largely as a result of new housing 
developments across the local area.

 Inconsistencies in approach and length of notice when considering 
potential closures in local GP areas.  

 The involvement and communication with local ward members.
 General poor communication with patients / service users. 
 Local residents needed reassurance about access to appointment. 
 The impact of previous closures decisions on surrounding GP practices 

(including Garforth Clinic).
 The potential impact of availability of local public transport services.

The Medical Director sought to address the concerns expressed by local 
Ward Members and highlighted some additional points, including:

 The different needs, and therefore different type of relationships 
between patients and their GPs.

 Earlier involvement of local ward members would often result in less 
certainty / assurance at that time.

 The CCG had worked to prioritise higher risk patients to ensure re-
registration and continuity of care.

 The timing and complexity associated with the Radshan Medical 
Centre.  
 

The Scrutiny Board considered the details set out in the report and 
highlighted at the meeting and discussed a range of matters, including:

 The addition of qualitative performance data in future reports, 
including average waiting times for appointment, missed 
appointments, vacancies and levels of funding.

 The analysis of qualitative performance data, including patient 
experience, when considering the impact of GP closures in general 
and specifically in relation to the Radshan Medical Centre.  

 The reporting of practice level surveillance group activity/ outcomes.

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting 
to be held on Date Not Specified

 Transitional funding arrangements associated with GP closures and 
list dispersals.

 The use and potential impact of technology in delivering GP 
services.

 The potential impact of Brexit (across a range of health and care 
professions and roles).

 CCG input, comment and impact analysis associated with 
development proposals.

 The lack of any national system for capturing and reporting GP 
workforce and workload data for benchmarking purposes.

 Matters associated with GP practices potentially ‘cherry picking’ 
patients.

In drawing the item to a close, the Chair thanked all those present for their 
attendance and contribution to the discussion.  

RESOLVED – 
(a) That the information outlined in the report and discussed at the meeting 

be noted.
(b) That the Principal Scrutiny Adviser draft a brief statement summarising 

the main issues identified by the Scrutiny Board.

(NB The Kippax and Methley local Ward Members left the meeting at the end 
of discussions on the Radshan Medical Centre, as part of this item).

  
106 Care Quality Commission - Adult Social Care Providers Inspection 

Outcomes November 2017 to January 2018 

The Director of Adults and Health submitted a report that provided details of 
recent Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection outcomes for adult social 
care providers across Leeds, alongside general information on the CQC 
ratings for providers in the City. Members of the Board had also received 
supplementary information in relation to inspection outcomes prior to the 
meeting.

The following were in attendance to introduce the report and address any 
questions from the Scrutiny Board: 

 Councillor Rebecca Charlwood (Executive Member for Health, 
Wellbeing and Adults); and

 Mark Phillott (Head of Commissioning Contracts and Business 
Development Adults and Health).

The Executive Member for Health, Wellbeing and Adults addressed the 
meeting and highlighted that recent inspection outcomes showed an upward 
trend, with a 10% point improvement in providers rated as ‘Good’ across 
different elements of the adult care sector in Leeds (Rising from 64% to 74% 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting 
to be held on Date Not Specified

over the period November 2017 to January 2018).  The Executive Member 
also recognised that further work was required.  

The Scrutiny Board raised and discussed a range of matters, including: 
 Service user experience within the overall inspection process / ratings.
 The safety of service users where provider were rated as ‘requires 

improvement’ or ‘inadequate’.
 Specific matters in relation to Seacroft Grange, Springfield, 

Donisthorpe Hall and Morley Manor.
 The general impact of nursing recruitment across Leeds’ Nursing 

Homes 
 The role of the Council were no safeguarding issues or contractual 

relationship existed – particularly in relation to Homecare Agencies 
across Leeds.

 Progress of the ‘Leadership Academy’ in supporting providers meeting 
the requirement of the ‘well-led’ domain.

 General progress in the recruitment of the Care Quality Team.

RESOLVED – That the report and details discussed at the meeting be noted.

Cllr. Pryor left the meeting at the start of this item at 3:00pm returning part 
way through.

107 Leeds Health and Care Plan: Inspiring Change through Better 
Conversations with Communities 

The Chief Officer Health Partnerships submitted a report that provided an 
overview of the progress made in shaping the Leeds Health and Care Plan 
following the discussions with all Community Committee in November / 
December 2017.

The following attended the meeting and introduced the report:
 Tony Cooke – Chief Officer Health Partnerships, Adults and Health
 Paul Bollom – Head of Leeds Plan, Adults and Health

The Head of Leeds Plan presented the report and highlighted that the ongoing 
conversations with Community Committees had been key to the development 
of the Leeds Plan, reflecting a bottom up community led approach as a basis 
for integrating services and integrated working in Leeds. 

The Scrutiny Board was reminded that Leeds faced significant challenges 
across health and social care, however recent Core City comparisons health, 
housing and homelessness and a range of public health indicators.   

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting 
to be held on Date Not Specified

The Scrutiny Board considered the report presented and raised a number of 
issues that resulted in additional detail being highlighted at the meeting, 
including: 

 Better infrastructure around communication with the proposed 
recruitment of additional communications posts.  

 An £11m increase in CCG budget allocated due to increases in 
population.  (Members of the Scrutiny Board identified the need for a 
clear statement on the current and forecast financial position across 
Leeds’ Health and Care economy).

 Discussions around the operation of the initial and then enhanced 
Better Care Fund;

 Continuing discussions with Pharmacy representatives regarding the 
‘pharmacy’ contribution to Leeds Health and Care Plan.  

The Board noted the significant progress in developing the Leeds Health and 
Care Plan since the early discussions around the requirements of 
sustainability and Transformation Plans.  The Board thanked the officers in 
attendance for their efforts in this regard.

The Board also expressed the view that detailed consideration was needed to 
ensure the improved approach would be sustained, including the need to 
ensure any new elected members would be suitably briefed following the 
forthcoming local elections in May 2018.  

RESOLVED – That the details presented in the report and discussed at the 
meeting be noted.  

Cllr. Chapman left the meeting at 3:30pm at the start of this item.
108 Chair's Update 

The Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support submitted a report that 
provided an opportunity for the Chair of the Scrutiny Board to formally outline 
some of the areas of work and activity of since the previous Scrutiny Board 
meeting in February 2018.

The Chair updated the Board and specifically highlighted the following points:
 A working group meeting with Independent Monitoring Board (IMB) 

representatives from HMP Leeds and HMP Wealstun had been held 
on 5 March 2018, which would help inform the development of the 
Board’s inquiry report.

 A CQC report on Review of Children and Young People’s Mental 
Health Services had been published on 8 March 2018 which identified 
a series of recommendations requiring national, regional and local 
action. The Chair proposed this as a potential area for more detailed 
consideration in the new municipal year.

 An update on work around stroke care that had been received from 
West Yorkshire and Harrogate Health and Care Partnership.

RESOLVED – 

Page 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting 
to be held on Date Not Specified

(a) To note the content of the report and the verbal update provided at the 
meeting.

(b) To present details of the Care Quality Commission’s report on the 
Review of Children and Young People’s Mental Health Services for 
more detailed consideration in the successor Scrutiny Board in the new 
municipal year.

109 Work Schedule 

The Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support submitted a report that 
presented proposals for the Scrutiny Board’s work schedule for the remainder 
of the current municipal year 2017/18.

Scrutiny Board Members were advised of proposals for the Health Service 
Development Working Group, planned to take place on 6 April 2018, would 
focus on the following matters:  

 Customer Contact and Satisfaction (as it relates to Adult Social Care);
 Community Dental Services;
 Community Adult Mental Health Services; and 
 Maternity Services service proposals (subject to availability).

It was noted that due to time constraints, the Working Group would not 
consider the integrated performance and financial reports. However the 
information would still be provided to Scrutiny Board Members.

The Board also discussed the timing of the next formal Board meeting, which 
was proposed be held on 24 April 2018, which would focus on the Board’s 
Health and Care Needs of Offenders Report.

RESOLVED –
a) That details presented in the report, in particular the details set out at 

paragraphs 2.8-2.19, and outlined at the meeting be noted.
b) That the proposed work schedule be agreed, subject to the inclusion of 

the proposed changes discussed at the meeting.   
c) That the draft minutes of the Executive Board held on 7th February 

2018 and the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 19th February 2018 
be noted. 

110 Date and Time of Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Scrutiny Board (Adults and Health) will be Tuesday 
24th April 2018 at 1.30pm.  (Pre-meeting for all Scrutiny Board Members at 
1.00pm). 

The meeting concluded at 4.05pm.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 18th April, 2018 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 21ST MARCH, 2018 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor J Lewis in the Chair 

 Councillors A Carter, R Charlwood, 
D Coupar, S Golton, R Lewis, L Mulherin, 
M Rafique and L Yeadon 

 
SUBSTITUTE MEMBER:    Councillor B Anderson 
 

APOLOGIES: Councillor J Blake 
 
 

151 Chair of the Meeting  
In accordance with Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rule 3.1.5, in 
the absence of Councillor Blake who had submitted her apologies for absence 
from the meeting, Councillor J Lewis presided as Chair of the Board for the 
duration of the meeting. 
 

152 Substitute Member  
At the conclusion of the Board’s consideration of agenda item 10 (Outcome of 
Statutory Notices on Proposals to Increase Primary Places at Allerton Church 
of England Primary School and Beeston Hill St. Luke’s Primary School), 
Councillor A Carter left the meeting. At this point, under the provisions of 
Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rule 3.1.6, Councillor B Anderson 
was invited to attend the remainder of the meeting on behalf of Councillor A 
Carter. (Minute No. 161 refers). 
 

153 Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public  
RESOLVED – That, in accordance with Regulation 4 of The Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012, the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated as exempt from 
publication on the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business 
to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the 
public were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information 
so designated as follows:- 
 
(a) Appendix 1 to the report entitled, ‘Proposed Opera North Capital 

Works, Leeds Grand Theatre – Premier House’, referred to in Minute 
No. 163 is designated as exempt from publication in accordance with 
paragraph 10.4(3) of Schedule 12A(3) of the Local Government Act 
1972 on the grounds that it contains information relating to the financial 
or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 
holding that information). It is considered that the public interest in 
maintaining the content of appendix 1 as being exempt from publication 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information and the 
financial details contained within it, which, if disclosed would adversely 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 18th April, 2018 

 

affect the business of the Council and the business affairs of an 
individual organisation. 

 
(b) Appendix 5 to the report entitled, ‘The First White Cloth Hall and the 

Lower Kirkgate Townscape Heritage Initiative’ referred to in Minute No. 
168 is designated as exempt from publication in accordance with 
paragraph 10.4(3) of Schedule 12A(3) of the Local Government Act 
1972 on the grounds that it contains information relating to the financial 
or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 
holding that information). It is considered that the public interest in 
maintaining the content of Appendix 5 as being exempt from 
publication outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information, 
as it relates to the financial information of a private business applying 
for grant funding, and as such, the release of information at this time 
would prejudice the Council’s position. 

 
154 Late Items  

There were no formal late items of business submitted for the Board to 
consider, however, following the publication and despatch of the agenda, 
Board Members had been in receipt of Appendix 1 to agenda item 18 
(Adoption of the Leeds Talent and Skills Plan) which was the draft Leeds 
Talent and Skills Plan 2018-2023 document (Minute No. 169 refers). 
 

155 Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
There were no Disclosable Pecuniary Interests declared at the meeting, 
however, in relation to the agenda item entitled, ‘Proposed Opera North 
Capital Works, Leeds Grand Theatre – Premier House’, Councillor Yeadon 
drew the Board’s attention to her role as a member of the Leeds Grand 
Theatre and Opera House Board of Management.  (Minute No. 163 refers). 
 
In addition, again, although no Disclosable Pecuniary Interests were declared, 
in relation to the agenda item entitled, ‘The Local Centres Programme (First 
Call)’, Councillor Golton drew the Board’s attention to his involvement with an 
organisation which had submitted an expression of interest for the 
programme. He also advised the Board that the project in which he had been 
involved was not part of the first tranche of projects as proposed within the 
submitted report. (Minute No. 167 refers). 
 

156 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 7th February 
2018 be approved as a correct record. 
 
HEALTH, WELLBEING AND ADULTS 
 

157 The Annual Report of the Director of Public Health 2017/2018  
The Director of Public Health submitted a report which presented the 
Director’s annual report on the health of the city’s population for the period 
2017/2018. This was in line with the Health & Social Care Act 2012, which 
required the Director to compile and publish an annual report on the health of 
the city’s population.  

Page 10



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 18th April, 2018 

 

 
In presenting the report, the Director of Public Health provided the Board with 
a summary of the key findings, Leeds’ performance in the wider context, the 
areas of concern, emerging trends and the report’s conclusions together with 
associated recommendations. 
 
With regard to a Member’s comments on several specific issues highlighted 
by the report, namely: alcohol related mortality in women; infant mortality 
levels and drug related deaths in men - emphasis was placed upon the 
complexity of these issues and the wide range of causal factors involved. The 
Board was also provided with further detail on the actions being taken to 
address these emerging trends, however it was acknowledged that 
partnership and multi-agency approaches were key, when looking to improve 
such complex issues.  
 
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board was provided with further 
information on the nature of the recommendations detailed within the 
Director’s report and it was highlighted that the recommendations were 
designed to complement and add to the range of actions which were already 
in place across the city. Members also received assurance that the work 
being undertaken in those key areas highlighted within the Director’s report 
were being aligned with other initiatives, such as the priorities identified by the 
Leeds Academic Health Partnership. 
 
In conclusion, the Executive Member for Health, Wellbeing and Adults 
emphasised that whilst a number of health indicators across the city were 
improving, it was those associated with poverty and deprivation which were 
generally declining. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the contents of the Annual Report of the Director of Public Health, 

as appended to the submitted report be noted, and that the 
recommendations detailed within it be supported; 
 

(b) That the Health and Wellbeing Board be recommended to consider the 
Director’s Annual Report in relation to the next Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment; 
 

(c) That the City Development directorate be recommended to take due 
regard of the recommendations made within the Director’s report about 
the contribution of the Leeds Inclusive Growth Strategy in the tackling 
of deprivation and reduction in inequalities; 
 

(d) That the Director of Public Health be requested to provide an update to 
a future Executive Board meeting on the next set of life expectancy 
figures for males and females in Leeds. 

 
 
 
 

Page 11



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 18th April, 2018 

 

158 Leeds Academic Health Partnership  
Further to Minute No. 51, 17th July 2017, the Director of Adults and Health and 
the Director of City Development submitted a joint report which provided an 
update on the progress made by the Leeds Academic Health Partnership to 
establish a Strategic Framework of priorities. The report also presented a 
summary of its programme of active projects, and acknowledged the role of 
the Leeds Academic Health Partnership in a wider strategic context of the 
Best Council Plan which looked to create a strong economy and 
compassionate city. 
 
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board was provided with further 
information on how the progress being made against the identified Strategic 
Framework priorities would be monitored. 
 
Also in response to an enquiry, Member comments regarding the Leeds 
Health and Care Academy were acknowledged, and in addition to this, the 
Board received further information on: the importance of the multi-agency 
approach being taken as part of the Academy initiative, the key benefits that 
the Academy looked to realise and the ways in which such benefits would be 
maximised. 
 
In addition, the strategic level of the submitted report was acknowledged, 
however it was highlighted that when future reports were submitted to the 
Board, it was intended that further detail with specific examples of the 
progress being made would be provided.  
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the Board’s endorsement be provided to the Strategic Framework 

priorities, as detailed within the submitted report, together with the 
progress made by the Leeds Academic Health Partnership and its 
programme to deliver better health outcomes, reduced health 
inequality, more jobs and to stimulate investment in health and social 
care as part of the city’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy; 

 
(b) That it be noted that the Chief Officer, Health Partnerships Team will 

be responsible on behalf of the Council for overseeing the 
implementation by the Leeds Academic Health Partnership of its 
programme. 

 
159 One City Care Home Quality and Sustainability Project  

The Director of Adults and Health submitted a report which presented 
information on the work that has been undertaken to date on the ‘One City 
Care Home and Sustainability’ project. The report sought authority to proceed 
with the requirement to establish new contractual arrangements regarding 
Older People’s care homes in Leeds via a procurement exercise. 
 
Members welcomed the progress being made in this area, as detailed within 
the submitted report, and highlighted the proactive work being undertaken 
with care providers in order to help them achieve positive ratings. The Board 
highlighted the key importance of care providers actively participating in this 

Page 12



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 18th April, 2018 

 

process and also welcomed how the progress being made in this area could 
be easily monitored. 
 
In discussing the role of the Care Quality Team, a Member made suggestions 
around the potential to increase connections between the community and the 
monitoring of services delivered in this field by care providers. The comments 
were acknowledged and it was noted that the ways in which the Council 
looked to ensure the quality of service provision in this area would continue to 
be evolved. Finally, the Board received further information on the ongoing 
work being undertaken to further develop the relationship between the 
community and those care services detailed within the report.  
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the work which has been undertaken by all stakeholders as part of 

the ‘One City Care Home Quality and Sustainability Project’, be noted; 
 

(b) That support be given to the initiation of a procurement exercise based 
upon a simplified application process that complies with the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015, to implement the framework contract; with 
it being noted that the Director of Adults and Health will take a 
delegated decision in order to commence this procurement exercise in 
accordance with the Council’s scheme of delegation; 
 

(c) That the implementation of the Quality Action Plan which was co-
produced with stakeholders, be noted; and that it also be noted that the 
Deputy Director for Integrated Commissioning shall be responsible for 
the implementation of such matters, with the aim of having the Action 
Plan in place within the next three months; 
 

(d) That the recruitment of a Quality Team within Adults and Health to 
work with the Care Home sector to ensure all homes are delivering 
high quality care to the citizens of Leeds, be noted; and that it also be 
noted that the Deputy Director for Integrated Commissioning will 
continue the recruitment of the Quality Team with the aim of having the 
team operational within the next three months; 
 

(e) That the development of a Leadership Academy to work with registered 
managers in the sector to further develop their skills in order to 
enhance the quality of care provided in the care home setting, be 
noted; and that it also be noted that the Senior Organisational 
Development (OD) Business Partner in Adults and Health shall be 
responsible for the continued development of the Leadership Academy, 
with the aim of having the Academy functional within the next six 
months. 

 
CHILDREN AND FAMILIES 
 

160 Refresh of the Children and Young People's Plan  
The Director of Children and Families submitted a report which presented a 
refresh of the Council’s Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) for the 

Page 13



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 18th April, 2018 

 

purposes of the Board’s consideration and approval that it be recommended 
to full Council for formal adoption. 
 
Members considered the proposed expansion of one of the Plan’s obsessions 
to ‘improve attendance, achievement and attainment’, and in response to a 
Member’s specific enquiry, the Board was provided with further information on 
how the revised obsession specifically linked to other educational attainment 
aspects of the Plan, with details also being provided on the ways in which 
Members were being kept informed of progress in such areas. 
 
The Board also noted the narrative within the Plan around the objective to 
assist those parents who had experience of having a child being placed in 
care, with the aim of helping those parents, so that this did not reoccur with 
subsequent children. It was undertaken by officers that consideration would 
be given to revising the relevant text within the Plan so that the aim of this 
objective was clear to the reader.  
 
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board was provided with further 
information on the key role of the Child Poverty Impact Board in the 
improvement of outcomes for those children affected by poverty. It was also 
noted that the Chief Officer (Partnerships), within the Children and Families 
directorate was lead officer in terms of addressing the issue of child poverty in 
Leeds. 
 
Members noted the two indicators within the Plan which were still being 
developed. Specifically with regard to the indicator concerning the 
improvement of social, emotional mental health and wellbeing, the Board 
received an update on the development of this and noted that discussions 
with health partners were continuing, prior to the wording being finalised.  
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the changes which will be made to the CYPP, which will ensure 

that the Plan remains relevant and focused on the children and young 
people who most require support and on raising their learning 
outcomes, be agreed; 
 

(b) That full Council be recommended to adopt the revised CYPP, as 
submitted, which covers the period 2018-2023 (which follows the 
consultation process undertaken and discussion and approval at 
Children and Families Trust Board); 

 
(c) That it be agreed that updates on the CYPP priorities will be: reflected 

in Best Council Plan monitoring process; undertaken by the Children 
and Families Trust Board; and provided on a six monthly basis to 
Scrutiny Board (Children and Families). 
 

(The matters referred to within this minute, given that they were decisions 
being made in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure 
Rules, were not eligible for Call In) 

Page 14



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 18th April, 2018 

 

161 Outcome of Statutory Notices on proposals to increase primary places 
at Allerton Church of England Primary School and Beeston Hill St Luke's 
Primary School  
Further to Minute Nos. 119 and 120, 13th December 2017, the Director of 
Children and Families submitted a report presenting the outcome of Statutory 
Notices published in respect of proposals to expand primary school provision 
at Allerton Church of England Primary School and Beeston Hill St Luke’s 
Church of England Primary School, and to establish SEN provision for pupils 
with complex communication difficulties at Beeston Hill St Luke’s Primary 
School. Overall, the report sought a final decision in respect of such 
proposals. 
 
Responding to a Member’s enquiry regarding the proposals for Allerton 
Church of England Primary School, assurance was provided to the Board that 
relevant local Ward Members would be kept informed about any related traffic 
issues and any proposed mitigation measures.  
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That approval be given to the proposal to permanently expand primary 

provision at Allerton Church of England Primary School from a capacity 
of 420 pupils to 630 pupils, with an increase in the admission number 
from 60 to 90, with effect from September 2018; 
 

(b) That approval be given to the proposal to permanently expand primary 
provision at Beeston Hill St Luke’s Church of England Primary School 
from a capacity of 315 pupils to 420 pupils, with an increase in the 
admission number from 45 to 60 from September 2019, and to 
establish SEN provision for pupils with Complex Communication 
Difficulties including children who may have a diagnosis of ASC 
(Autistic Spectrum Condition) for approximately 8 pupils, with effect 
from September 2019; 

 
(c) That it be noted that the responsible officer for the implementation of 

such matters is the Head of Learning Systems. 
 
(At the conclusion of this item Councillor A Carter left the meeting. At this 
point, under the provisions of Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rule 
3.1.6, Councillor B Anderson was invited to attend the remainder of the 
meeting on behalf of Councillor A Carter. 
 
In addition, at the conclusion of this item, Councillor Mulherin also left the 
meeting). 
 
ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY 
 

162 Bin Yards Regeneration Investment  
The Director of Communities and Environment submitted a report providing 
information on the anti-social behaviour and illegal activities associated with 
‘bin yards’ in the inner city, and which presented the case for investment to 

Page 15



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 18th April, 2018 

 

improve ‘problem’ yards and which looked to identify a route to secure the 
long-term funding required to do so. 
 
Members made enquiries regarding the selection criteria to be used when 
prioritising yards, and made a suggestion regarding the potential to work with 
accredited landlords as part of the initiative.  In response, it was highlighted 
that the intention was to initially target a limited number of bin yards over the 
next year by developing sustainable and appropriate solutions, which would 
require working closely with relevant partners such as the local communities, 
Ward Members, environmental champions and landlords, with a view to 
returning to the Board in due course to consider a business plan for the longer 
term, which would be informed by the initial experiences. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the contents of the submitted report be noted;  

 
(b) That the injection of £247,500 into the Capital Programme, in order to 

deliver improvements to around 45 bin yards, be approved; 
 
(c) That it be noted that the Director of Communities and Environment will 

be responsible for the implementation of such matters. 
 
ECONOMY AND CULTURE 
 

163 Proposed Opera North Capital Works, Leeds Grand Theatre - Premier 
House  
Further to Minute No. 85, 19th October 2016, the Director of City Development 
submitted a report which sought support for proposed Opera North works to 
be undertaken in order to refurbish the vacant shop units at 34-40 New 
Briggate for restaurant/bar use, in order to improve access to the Howard 
Assembly Room above (properties in the ownership of the City Council) and 
the adjacent Premier House (owned by Opera North), which form the 
headquarters of Opera North. In addition, the report also sought related, 
specific approvals from the Board in order to enable such proposals to be 
progressed. 
 
In response to a number of enquiries made by a Member, it was highlighted 
that the purpose of the submitted report was to agree the Council’s position 
on the shop units it owned and also on the nature of the support that the 
Council would be prepared to provide for the proposed scheme. The 
Members also received further information on how scheme looked to 
contribute towards the improvement of the cultural offer in that area of the city 
centre, whilst clarification was also provided that in order for the scheme to be 
progressed, Council approval was required as the freeholder of the Grand 
Theatre, and consent of the Grand Theatre Board of Management was also 
required as leaseholder. 
 
Following consideration of Appendix 1 to the submitted report designated as 
exempt from publication under the provisions of Access to Information 

Page 16



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 18th April, 2018 

 

Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which was considered in private at the conclusion of 
the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That approval be given to the leasing of 34-40 New Briggate to Opera 

North Ltd. at a market rent, and that approval also be given to the offer 
a rent free period from the commencement of the new lease: the rent 
free period being determined against the landlord’s improvements that 
Opera North make, relative to the rental value of the premises once the 
scheme has been developed on the terms as detailed within exempt 
Appendix 1 to the submitted report, with the remaining areas to be 
leased to Opera North at a peppercorn rent as per their existing lease; 
 

(b) That approval be given to the payment of a reverse premium of up to 
£750,000 to Opera North, in order to make the future occupation of the 
shop units at 34-40 New Briggate commercially viable, on the terms as 
detailed within exempt Appendix 1 to the submitted report; 

 
(c) That ‘Authority to Spend’ up to £750,000 from Capital Scheme No. 

32615 as the reverse premium payable to Opera North, be approved;  
 
(d) That subject to the agreement of both Leeds Grand Theatre and Opera 

House Ltd. and Opera North, approval be given to authorise variations 
to their respective leased areas in order to allow the delivery of the 
proposed Opera North works; 

 
(e) That subject to consultation with the Executive Member for ‘Economy 

and Culture’, the necessary authority be delegated to the Director of 
City Development in order to enable the Director to negotiate and 
approve the final terms of all legal agreements associated with the 
proposed delivery of the Opera North capital project, in accordance 
with the Council’s officer delegation scheme; 

 
(f) That the following be noted: the actions required to implement the 

Board’s decisions; the proposed timescale to progress the proposed 
works, as detailed within the submitted report; and that the Director of 
City Development will be responsible for the implementation of such 
matters. 
 

(With regard to the resolutions made by the Board on this matter, as 
Councillor B Anderson was in attendance as a non-voting Member, he drew 
the Board’s attention to the fact that if he were able to, he would abstain from 
voting on the decisions referred to within this minute) 
 
RESOURCES AND STRATEGY 
 

164 Financial Health Monitoring 2017/18 - Month 10  
The Chief Officer, Financial Services submitted a report which set out the 
Council’s projected financial health position for 2017/18, as at month 10 of the 
financial year. 

Page 17



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 18th April, 2018 

 

 
In presenting the submitted report, the Executive Member for Resources and 
Strategy provided the Board with an update on a successful backdated claim 
which had been submitted to HMRC relating to overpaid VAT in respect of 
sports admission charges at sports centres, and it was noted that further 
details on this would be submitted to the Board in due course. 
 
Responding to a Member’s enquiry regarding the payment of a grant to the 
Council in respect of the work being undertaken as part of Leeds’ Children 
and Families sector led improvement role in partnership with Kirklees Council, 
the Board received an update regarding the current position. 
 
Also, responding to an enquiry regarding income pressures in respect of 
Section 278 monies (income from developers), it was noted that the figure 
within the budget was an estimated figure based on the amounts received in 
previous financial years, which, it was highlighted can vary from year to year, 
and which therefore explained the current variation to the budget. 
 
In reply to a Member’s comments, the Board received further information and 
explanation regarding the projected overspend within the Community Hubs 
budget. 
 
RESOLVED – That the projected financial position of the authority, as at 
month 10 of the financial year, be noted. 
 
REGENERATION, TRANSPORT AND PLANNING 
 

165 Leeds 20mph Local Areas Speed Limit Programme  
The Director of City Development submitted a report which detailed proposals 
for the final stage of completing a long standing programme of establishing 
20mph zones and speed limits in residential areas across Leeds. 
 
The Board discussed the methods and levels of associated enforcement of 
residential speed limits and 20mph zones. The comments made were 
acknowledged, with it being highlighted that the comprehensive roll out of 
such measures were aimed at promoting a long term change in people’s 
driving habits. 
 
Members also discussed the criteria used to identify 20mph zones and also 
the use of other traffic calming measures, and with regard to the types of 
measures used, it was noted that the Council followed Government guidance 
on such matters.  
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the progress made regarding the establishment of 20mph speed 

limits and zones in suitable residential areas of Leeds, be noted; 
 

(b) That the proposals for the completion of schemes at all remaining 
identified sites for residential 20mph zones and speed limit 
programmes in Leeds, be approved; 

Page 18



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 18th April, 2018 

 

 
(c) That approval be given to incur expenditure of £500,000 to complete 

approximately 90 remaining 20mph speed limits in residential areas 
across Leeds, to be fully funded from the West Yorkshire Local 
Transport Plan grant; 

 
(d) That the City Solicitor be instructed to advertise draft speed limit orders 

as necessary for the completion of this programme, and if no 
objections are received, to make and seal the orders as advertised; 
 

(e) That the following be noted:- 
(i)  Construction of the scheme is programmed to commence in the 

spring of 2018 for completion by summer 2019; and 
(ii)  That the Chief Officer Highways & Transportation will be 

responsible for the implementation of such matters. 
 

166 Improving Traffic Flow on the A65 Corridor  
The Director of City Development submitted a report which set out the 
purpose of the SCOOT National Productivity Investment Fund (NPIF) scheme 
and which sought ‘approval to spend’ for the £2.16m NPIF grant awarded to 
Leeds City Council by the Department for Transport in respect of the 
enhancement of the traffic control system on the A65 corridor.  
 
In considering the report, it was noted that SCOOT (Split Cycle Offset 
Optimisation Technique) was an adaptive traffic signal control system. 
 
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board received assurances that 
relevant Ward Members would be kept informed on the development of this 
scheme. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the injection of £2.16m into the Capital Programme, which is fully 

funded from the Department for Transport grant, be approved; 
 

(b) That ‘Approval to Spend’ for £2.16m (being £250,000 staff design fees, 
and £1.91m construction costs) over a 2 year period from April 2018, to 
be fully funded from the Department for Transport grant of £2.16m, be 
authorised; 

 
(c) That the following be noted:- 

(i) The scheme proposals, as described in sections 2 and 3 of the 
submitted report; 

(ii) That the construction of the scheme is programmed to start in 
September 2018 and be fully operational by March 2020; and 

(iii) That the Chief Officer Highways & Transportation will be 
responsible for the implementation of such matters. 
 

167 The Local Centres Programme (First Call)  
Further to Minute No. 97, 15th November 2017, the Director of City 
Development submitted a report presenting the project ideas which had been 

Page 19



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 18th April, 2018 

 

submitted as part of a ‘first call’ for bids in relation to the Local Centres 
Programme (LCP) and which recommended in principle support for a number 
of schemes. In addition, the report also sought confirmation of the timeline for 
a ‘second call’ for bids to begin in February 2019. 
 
A Member highlighted that when proposals for the programme were 
assessed, that the technical aspects of the proposal were balanced against 
the overriding community benefit that it could potentially provide.  In addition, 
it was noted that for those submissions not included within the initial tranche, 
further opportunities for potential schemes remained, as part of future 
tranches.  
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the contents of the submitted report be noted;  

 
(b) That in principle agreement be given to the first tranche of Local 

Centres Programme schemes, as set out at paragraphs 3.2 – 3.5 and 
Appendix 1 of the submitted report, and that agreement be given for 
the Director of City Development, in liaison with the Executive Member 
(Regeneration, Transport and Planning), to be authorised to approve 
detailed business cases for their implementation as these come 
forward; 
 

(c) That approval be given for a ‘second call’ for projects to be issued, and 
that the necessary authority be delegated to the Director of City 
Development in order to enable the Director to agree the precise timing 
of this in liaison with the Executive Member for ‘Regeneration, 
Transport and Planning’; 
 

(d) That agreement be given that further ‘calls’ for projects may be issued 
by the Director of City Development, subject to the continued 
availability of funding within the Local Centres programme; 
 

(e) That it be noted that the Executive Manager (Town Centres, Heritage & 
Buildings) will be responsible for the implementation of the Local 
Centres Programme. 

 
168 The First White Cloth Hall and the Lower Kirkgate Townscape Heritage 

Initiative  
Further to Minute No. 164, 20th April 2016, the Director of City Development 
submitted a report which sought approval to award a £500,000 grant to the 
owner of the First White Cloth Hall for a scheme of repair and restoration that 
would enable the building to be brought back into sustainable use, subject to 
a receipt of final costs and a suitable grant application. In addition, the report 
also provided an update on the progress made in respect of the rest of the 
Lower Kirkgate Townscape Heritage Initiative (THI) scheme and detailed 
options to ensure that the available Heritage Lottery Funds were fully drawn 
down, in order to deliver the originally envisaged programme outcomes. 
 

Page 20



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 18th April, 2018 

 

Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board was provided with an update 
regarding the associated planning application following the recent 
consideration of that application by City Plans Panel on 8th March 2018.  
 
Following consideration of Appendix 5 to the submitted report designated as 
exempt from publication under the provisions of Access to Information 
Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which was considered in private at the conclusion of 
the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That approval in principle be given to the award of a maximum 

£500,000 grant from the Lower Kirkgate THI scheme to the owner of 
the of the First White Cloth Hall for its repair and restoration, and that 
the necessary authority be delegated to the Director of City 
Development in order to enable the Director to undertake the detailed 
approval and issuing of a grant agreement; 
 

(b) That the progress made in respect of the Lower Kirkgate Townscape 
Heritage Initiative be noted, and that support be given to the 
exploration of statutory compulsory purchase action, should it be 
required. 

 
EMPLOYMENT, SKILLS AND OPPORTUNITY 
 

169 Adoption of the Leeds Talent and Skills Plan  
Further to Minute No. 58, 20th September 2017, the Director of City 
Development submitted a report presenting the final draft of the Leeds Talent 
and Skills Plan for the period 2018-2023 and which recommended the 
Council’s adoption of the Plan. In addition, the report also provided further 
detail on the associated consultation processes undertaken, which had 
informed the final draft. 
 
Following the publication of the agenda, Board Members had been in receipt 
of Appendix 1 to the report, which was the draft Leeds Talent and Skills Plan 
2018-2023 document.  
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the adoption of the Leeds Talent and Skills Plan 2018-2023, as 

appended to the submitted report, be approved; 
 

(b) That the proposed outcome framework which will be used to monitor 
the impact and support the ongoing review of the Plan, be approved; 

 
(c) That it be noted that the Chief Officer, Employment and Skills is 

responsible for the implementation of such matters. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 18th April, 2018 

 

 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:  FRIDAY, 23RD MARCH 2018 
 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN  
OF ELIGIBLE DECISIONS: 5.00 P.M., TUESDAY, 3RD APRIL 2018 
 

Page 22



Report of Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support

Report to Scrutiny Board (Adult and Health)

Date: 24 April 2018

Subject: Chairs Update – April 2018

Are specific electoral Wards affected?   Yes   No
If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?

  Yes   No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No
If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:
Appendix number:

1 Purpose of this report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an opportunity to formally outline some of the 
areas of work and activity of the Chair of the Scrutiny Board since the previous 
Scrutiny Board meeting in March 2018.

2 Main issues

2.1 Invariably, scrutiny activity can often occur outside of the formal monthly Scrutiny 
Board meetings.  Such activity may involve a variety of activities and can require 
specific actions of the Chair of the Scrutiny Board.

2.2 The purpose of this report is, therefore, to provide an opportunity to formally update 
the Scrutiny Board on the Chair’s activity and actions, including any specific 
outcomes, since the previous Scrutiny Board meeting held in March 2018.  It also 
provides an opportunity for members of the Scrutiny Board to identify and agree any 
further scrutiny activity that may be necessary.

2.3 The Chair and Principal Scrutiny Adviser will provide a verbal update on other activity 
at the meeting, as required.

3. Recommendations

3.1 Members are asked to:
a) Note the content of this report and the verbal update provided at the meeting.  
b) Identify any specific matters that may require further scrutiny input/ activity.

Report author:  Steven Courtney
Tel:  (0113) 37 88666

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



4. Background papers1 

4.1 None used

1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 24



Report of Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support

Report to Scrutiny Board (Adults and Health)

Date: 24 April 2018

Subject: Request for Scrutiny – Proposals from Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Trust to establish a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company

Are specific electoral Wards affected?   Yes   No
If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?

  Yes   No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No
If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary of main issues

1. A Request for Scrutiny has been received from Councillor Janette Walker, on behalf 
of a constituent, regarding proposals from Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust to 
create a Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS) Company to deliver aspects of its current 
services, including estates and facilities.

2. Details received directly from the constituent relating to the request, and presented 
by Councillor Walker, are set out below:

I work for the Leeds Teaching Hospital Trust and yesterday (13th March) we had a 
meeting with Senior Management in the Estates & Facilities Department. I do not 
know whether you are already aware of the plans they have put forward to turn the 
Department into a WOC. However the majority of the workforce in the Estates & 
Facilities is against the proposed changes, as are the three major Unions 
representing us, UNISON, Unite and GMB.

The reason for our displeasure is the fact we will no longer work for the NHS Trust 
but a company owned by it. Even though it is stated we will be protected for 25 
years, I do not understand how that can be guaranteed? As employers can change 
conditions for economic, technical or organisational reasons, which I am sure after a 
short period, the WOC would find a reason. There is also the fact of the unfeasibly 
short time scale, 29th March 2018 before it is either rejected or ratified by the 
Board.

This would also create a two tier workforce within the Trust.

Report author:  Steven Courtney
Tel:  0113 3788666 

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



3. Councillor Walker has been advised that the Scrutiny Board will be considering this 
request at the meeting.

4. In considering this request, it should be noted that at a meeting of the Trust Board on 
29 March 2018, the following recommendations were agreed and approved by the 
Trust Board:

 Note progress in developing proposals to establish a wholly owned subsidiary 
(WOS) company for the provision of estates, facilities, procurement and 
clinical engineering services.

 Consider the staff and Trade Union feedback received to date.
 Note the outstanding issues requiring further consideration.
 Defer the decision to establish a WOS and approve an extension of the period 

of engagement in order to allow the fullest possible engagement with Leeds 
Teaching Hospitals staff and representatives, including the review of 
alternative models.

 Approve the continued development of the current proposal.
 Note the financial impact of the consequence of any delays or failure to 

establish a WOS.

5. The full report considered by the Trust Board is available on the Trust’s website, 
using the following link: http://www.leedsth.nhs.uk/about-us/board-meetings/29-03-
2018-09-30 

6. The decision whether or not to further investigate matters raised by a request for 
scrutiny is the sole responsibility of the Scrutiny Board.  As such, any decision in this 
regard is final and there is no right of appeal.

7. When considering the request for Scrutiny, the Scrutiny Board may wish to consider:              
 If further information is required before considering whether further scrutiny 

should be undertaken;
 If a similar or related issue is already being examined by Scrutiny or has been 

considered by Scrutiny recently;
 If the matter raised is of sufficient significance and has the potential for scrutiny 

to produce realistic recommendations that could be implemented and lead to 
tangible improvements;

 The impact on the Board’s current workload;
 The time available to undertake further scrutiny;
 The level of resources required to carry out further scrutiny;
 Whether an Inquiry should be undertaken.

Recommendations

8.     The Scrutiny Board (Adults and Health) is asked to consider the Request for Scrutiny 
and determine what, if any, further action it wishes to make in this regard.  

Background papers1

9. None used

1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. Page 26

http://www.leedsth.nhs.uk/about-us/board-meetings/29-03-2018-09-30
http://www.leedsth.nhs.uk/about-us/board-meetings/29-03-2018-09-30


Report of Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support

Report to Scrutiny Board (Adults and Health)

Date 24 April 2018

Subject: The Annual Report of the Director of Public Health 2017/2018

Are specific electoral Wards affected?   Yes   No
If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?

  Yes   No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No
If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary of main issues 

1. At its meeting on 21 March 2018, the Executive Board received and considered the 
Annual Report of the Director of Public Health 2017/2018.  

2. The Executive Board report and associated appendices are appended to this report 
for consideration by the Scrutiny Board (Adults and Health).    

3. The following extract from the draft minutes from the Executive Board meeting is 
also provided for consideration.

157 The Annual Report of the Director of Public Health 2017/2018

The Director of Public Health submitted a report which presented the
Director’s annual report on the health of the city’s population for the period
2017/2018. This was in line with the Health & Social Care Act 2012, which 
required the Director to compile and publish an annual report on the health of 
the city’s population.

In presenting the report, the Director of Public Health provided the Board with 
a summary of the key findings, Leeds’ performance in the wider context, the 
areas of concern, emerging trends and the report’s conclusions together with 
associated recommendations.

Report author:  Steven Courtney
Tel:  (0113) 37 88666

Page 27

Agenda Item 10



With regard to a Member’s comments on several specific issues highlighted by 
the report, namely: alcohol related mortality in women; infant mortality levels 
and drug related deaths in men - emphasis was placed upon the complexity of 
these issues and the wide range of causal factors involved. The Board was 
also provided with further detail on the actions being taken to address these 
emerging trends, however it was acknowledged that partnership and multi-
agency approaches were key, when looking to improve such complex issues.

Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board was provided with further 
information on the nature of the recommendations detailed within the 
Director’s report and it was highlighted that the recommendations were 
designed to complement and add to the range of actions which were already 
in place across the city. Members also received assurance that the work being 
undertaken in those key areas highlighted within the Director’s report were 
being aligned with other initiatives, such as the priorities identified by the 
Leeds Academic Health Partnership.

In conclusion, the Executive Member for Health, Wellbeing and Adults 
emphasised that whilst a number of health indicators across the city were 
improving, it was those associated with poverty and deprivation which were 
generally declining.

RESOLVED –

(a) That the contents of the Annual Report of the Director of Public Health, as 
appended to the submitted report be noted, and that the recommendations 
detailed within it be supported;

(b) That the Health and Wellbeing Board be recommended to consider the 
Director’s Annual Report in relation to the next Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment;

(c) That the City Development directorate be recommended to take due regard 
of the recommendations made within the Director’s report about the 
contribution of the Leeds Inclusive Growth Strategy in the tackling of 
deprivation and reduction in inequalities;

(d) That the Director of Public Health be requested to provide an update to a 
future Executive Board meeting on the next set of life expectancy figures 
for males and females in Leeds.

4. It should be noted that due to the timing of the Scrutiny Board’s meeting, the 
Director of Public Health is unable to attend.  As such, the details presented in this 
report and appendices are provided ‘for information’.  Any specific comments or 
queries identified by the Scrutiny Board will be provided to the Director of Public 
Health to address and report back to the Scrutiny Board.

5. It should also be noted that it is proposed to re-present the attached Annual Report 
of the Director of Public Health 2017/2018 to the first meeting of the reconstituted 
Scrutiny Board in the new municipal year.  

Page 28



 Recommendations

6. That the Scrutiny Board:

(a) Notes the attached Annual Report of the Director of Public Health 2017/2018 
and the associated extract from the draft minutes from the Executive Board’s 
meeting held on 21 March 2018.

(b) Identifies and agrees any specific comments or queries to be submitted to the 
Director of Public Health to address and report back to the Scrutiny Board.

(c) Notes the proposal to re-present the attached Annual Report of the Director of 
Public Health 2017/2018 to the first meeting of the reconstituted Scrutiny Board 
in the new municipal year.  

Background documents1

5.        None.

1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report author: Ian Cameron 

Tel: 0113 378 8653 

 
Report of Director of Public Health 
 
Report to Executive Board 
 
Date: 21st March 2018 
 
Subject: The Annual Report of the Director of Public Health 2017/2018 
 

Are specific electoral wards affected?   Yes  No 

If yes, name(s) of ward(s):  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?  

 Yes  No 

Is the decision eligible for call-in?   Yes  No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes  No 

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:  

Appendix number:  

 
 
Summary of main issues 

1. Through the Leeds Health and Well Being Strategy, the city has a clear direction of 
travel to improve health and well being and to reduce health inequalities. This is 
backed by an increasing breadth and depth of partnership working centred around 
the Leeds Health and Well Being Board. 

2. Progress is being made. Just recently Leeds has been identified in a national 
independent report as the best core city for well being.  

3. Tackling poverty, including child poverty, and the wider determinants of health remain 
the cornerstone to reducing health inequalities. However, the continuing difficult 
financial climate faced by individuals and families is detrimental to health and well 
being. 

4. The latest life expectancy figures for Leeds show a fall in life expectancy for women 
and a static position for men. This picture does not match the ambitions for health 
improvement and reducing health inequalities as set out in the Leeds Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy. 

5. The decline and stalling of life expectancy may turn out to be a temporary position, 
but does come on the back of a concerning picture around deprivation statistics in 
the city that have previously been presented to the Executive Board. 

6. This year’s report focuses on the reasons behind the current life expectancy figures 
and covers infant mortality; alcohol related deaths in women; drug related deaths in 
men, suicides in men; self harm and women. 

Page 31



2 of 7 

7. The report also covers Inclusive Growth and the contribution that can be made by the 
Leeds Inclusive Growth Strategy to reducing health inequalities. 

8. The report provides an update on the progress from last year on those key public 
health indicators most related to the Leeds Health & Wellbeing Strategy. 

9. A comparison with the other core cities shows a very similar picture of change 
including a fall in life expectancy for females. 

Recommendations 

1.1 The Executive Board is asked to: 

 Note the content of the Annual Report of the Director of Public Health and 
support the recommendations; 

 Recommend that the Health & Wellbeing Board consider the Annual Report 
in relation to the next Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. 

 Recommend that the Department of City Development take due regard to the 
recommendations made about the contribution of the Leeds Inclusive Growth 
Strategy to tackling deprivation and reducing inequalities. 

 Request an update from the Director of Public Health on the next set of life 
expectancy figures for males and females in Leeds at a future Executive 
Board meeting. 

Page 32



 

1. Purpose of this report 

1.2 To summarise the content of the Director of Public Health’s Annual Report 2017/18 
entitled Nobody Left Behind: Good Health and A Strong Economy. 

2. Background information 

2.1 Under the Health & Social Care Act 2012 (Section 31) the Director of Public Health 
has a duty to write an annual report on the health of the population. Within the same 
section of the Act, the council has a duty to publish the report. 

2.2 The Annual Reports of the Medical Officer of Health (predecessor name of the 
Director of Public Health) became a statutory requirement under the 1875 Public 
Health Act but the Leeds Medical Officers of Health had produced such reports right 
from the first appointment in 1866. The Annual Reports are held in Leeds Central 
Library.  

3. Main issues 

3.1 Leeds has much to be proud about. Progress can be judged by obvious physical 
developments such as Trinity Leeds and Victoria Gate. In addition, progress can be 
judged by a broader sense of what it is like to live here. Leeds has been named 
best city in Britain for quality of life. Even more recently, this year the ‘What Works 
Centre for Well Being’ produced a national, independent report that identified Leeds 
as the best core city well being. 

3.2 The Leeds Health and Well Being Board has set a clear direction of travel to 
improve health and well being and to reduce health inequalities through the Leeds 
Health and Well Being Strategy. Tackling poverty, including child poverty along with 
other wider determinants of health remain the cornerstone for action and this is 
reflected in the new Leeds Health and Care Plan and the Best Council Plan 
2018/19-2020/21. 

3.3 However, the current financial climate is extremely challenging for individuals and 
families and detrimental to health and well being. While the breadth and depth of 
partnership working on health and well being has developed to an astonishing 
degree over the last few years organisations including Leeds City Council are also 
faced with financial challenges. Hence the greater emphasis on a partnership 
approach to the "Leeds pound". 

3.4 Included within last year’s Annual Report of the Director of Public Health was a 
statistical appendix that set out the starting position of the new Leeds Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy 2016-2021. This covered the seven health status indicators 
within the new strategy alongside key indicators that related to the public health 
issues described as priorities in the Leeds Health & Wellbeing Strategy. 

3.5 This year’s Annual Report of the Director of Public Health provides an update as an 
appendix. Inevitably a one year update means that there are not statistically 
significant changes for many indicators. This includes physical activity, one of the 
health status indicators in the Leeds Health & Wellbeing Strategy. 

3.6 There has though been progress in some areas. The levels of excess weight 
(overweight or obese) is reducing in 4-5 year olds and is now below the England 
average. This is a health status measure in the Health & Wellbeing Strategy. 
Teenage pregnancy rates continue to fall in Leeds, although still above the England 

Page 33



 

average. The Leeds My Health My School survey identifies a reduction in bullying at 
school albeit this is still high at 30% describing being bullied in the last year. This 
forms part of a health status indicator in the Health & Wellbeing Strategy. 

3.7 Smoking is the largest single preventable cause of ill health and health inequalities. 
Smoking levels amongst adults have dropped to 17.8% - the lowest recorded. This 
is a health status measure in the Health & Wellbeing Strategy. Cancer mortality 
rates for those under 75 years are reducing. This is to be welcomed and is a 
positive contrast to the position in the Annual Reports of around ten years ago when 
cancer rates for females were essentially staying the same and with small declines 
for males. The hope is that the progress made over the last 5-10 years in reducing 
cardio-vascular disease mortality and the inequality gap can be replicated for 
cancer. 

3.8 Leeds has a worse rate than England for those dying before the age of 75 years 
with a serious mental illness – a health status indicator in the Health & Wellbeing 
Strategy. However the way data is collected means no proper comparisons over 
time can be made yet.  

3.9 There has then been progress. However, the most striking comparison from last 
year is a decline in life expectancy in women and a static life expectancy in men. 

3.10 The reasons for this concerning position forms the basis of this year’s Annual 
Report of the Director of Public Health. 

3.11 We may find that the next set of life expectancy figures show a rise again. In which 
case this has been a false alarm. However, the current life expectancy figures follow 
the latest Indices of Deprivation for Leeds that have previously been presented to 
the Executive Board. These showed a greater number of our communities now in 
the worst 10% super output areas (SOA’s) in the country alongside a greater 
number in the best 10% super output areas (SOA’s) in the country. 

3.12 There is a national context. Improvements in life expectancy figures for England as 
a whole have slowed down markedly both for men and women in recent years. We 
continue to be in the “age of austerity” as declared by the prime minister in 2009. 

3.13 Improving the socioeconomic position of the people of Leeds is a crucial foundation 
for health & wellbeing and to reducing health inequalities. The Annual Report 
describes the work of the Inclusive Growth Commission led by the Royal Society for 
the Encouragement of the Art, Manufacturers and Commerce in 2017 and the call 
for a new look at economic growth. The Annual Report then goes on to make 
recommendations about the contribution the new Leeds Inclusive Growth Strategy 
can make to help reverse the deprivation indicators and inequalities in our city. 

3.14 The Annual Report focuses particularly on the underlying reasons behind the fall in 
life expectancy for women and the static position for male life expectancy. Perhaps 
surprisingly, the big killers – cardiovascular, cancer, respiratory disease – are not 
the reasons.  

3.15 A rise in infant mortality (deaths of live births under the age of one year) accounts 
for around half of the lack of improvement in life expectancy. The Executive Board 
will be aware that Leeds has made tremendous progress over the last ten years in 
reducing infant mortality and reducing the inequality gap on infant mortality within 
the city. 

3.16 From being on a national “worry” list with subsequent implementation of a 
partnership Infant Mortality Plan, Leeds has reduced infant mortality to below that 
for England. A remarkable achievement for a major urban city. However, a rise from 

Page 34



 

a low of 35 deaths in 2012 to 49 in 2016 has resulted in an infant mortality for 2014-
2016 of 4.4/1000 live births – above the England figure of 3.9/1000. This small rise, 
albeit important, has had a disproportionate effect on the life expectancy figures. 

3.17 In recent years Leeds has broadened its approach to infant mortality to the period 
from conception to the child’s second birthday – the first thousand days and 
described as Best Start. Best Start is a priority in the Leeds Health & Wellbeing 
Strategy and the Annual Report confirms the importance of a continued focus on 
implementing the Best Start Plan 2015 – 2019. 

3.18 There are three other significant causes for the disappointing life expectancy figures 
– a rise in deaths in women from alcohol related liver disease, a rise in deaths in 
men from drug related overdoses and a rise in deaths in men who have taken their 
own lives. 

3.19 For each of these three public health issues there is a section describing the current 
position in Leeds, the actions being taken in Leeds and recommendations for further 
action. Case studies are used to describe the impact on individual Leeds residents 
of excess alcohol, heroin use, experiences of attempting to take one’s own life. 

3.20 In relation to increasing deaths in women from alcohol related liver disease 
recommendations include social marketing targeted at young women, increased 
identification and brief advice in primary care and secondary care, reviewing alcohol 
treatment needs and services for women. 

3.21 In relation to increasing drug related deaths in men recommendations include use of 
drug misuse death audit data to better target interventions, reviewing opiate users. 

3.22 In relation to increasing numbers of men taking their own lives recommendations 
include ensuring that 30-50 year old men remain a priority within the implementation 
of Leeds Suicide Prevention Plan. 

3.23 The Annual Report covers one further area – self-harm by women especially in the 
16-24 year age group. While not directly linked to the life expectancy figures this is 
an area of increasing concern. A comparison with last year’s Annual Report on the 
Leeds My Health My School survey shows a rise in the number of primary and 
secondary students feeling stressed or anxious – now over one in five. This is also 
part of one of the health status indicators in the Leeds Health & Wellbeing Strategy. 
This rise coupled with an increase in admissions for women who self-harm has 
warranted inclusion in this year’s Annual Report. Again case studies have been 
used to better highlight the issue with recommendations for further action.  

3.24 The Annual Report acknowledges the need to have a greater understanding of 
gender in relation to health & wellbeing – including those who cross traditional 
gender boundaries (trans) whether permanently or otherwise. Leeds City Council in 
conjunction with Leeds Beckett University has undertaken the largest men’s health 
needs assessment in the country. There is a recommendation that a comprehensive 
health needs assessment for women should be undertaken for Leeds. 

3.25 Finally, the report covers the importance of local public health information and 
intelligence that can analyse issues within our city. Public Health England provide 
an excellent service but one that stops at the Leeds boundary. Fortunately, Leeds 
City Council has a nationally recognised Public Health Intelligence team. The need 
for this service will only increase and Leeds City Council is to be commended for 
combining Public Health intelligence with the intelligence function of the Leeds 
Clinical Commissioning Groups. 

Page 35



 

3.26 The Annual Report is available online and readers are signposted for further 
information on the health statistics for Leeds at http://observatory.leeds.gov.uk 

3.27 Looking at Leeds in relation to the other core cities, then what is striking is that 
where indicators have worsened for Leeds, then that has also occurred in the other 
core cities. For example, all, bar one, core city has seen a decline in female life 
expectancy. 

4. Corporate considerations 

4.1 Consultation and engagement 

4.1.1 Various initiatives described in the Annual Report have been developed with the 
public. 

4.1.2 Members of the public have helped write this and previous Annual Reports through 
personal stories and experience. 

4.1.3 There is a communications plan associated with this year’s Annual Report. 

4.2 Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration 

4.2.1 The Annual Report recognises the differential impact of gender on health issues 
impacting on life expectancy. 

4.3 Council policies and best council plan 

4.3.1 The Annual Report of the Director of Public Health supports the council’s role 
improving health and reducing health inequalities as set out in the Leeds Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy. The links made between the Health & Wellbeing Strategy and 
the contributing role of the new Leeds Inclusive Growth Strategy can play also 
support the delivery of the Best Council Plan 2018/19 – 2020/21 which recognises 
these two under linked strategies as key drivers in tackling poverty and a range of 
inequalities.  

4.4 Resources and value for money 

4.4.1 The costs of producing the Annual Report of the Director of Public Health are 
contained within the ring fenced Public Health Grant. 

4.5 Legal implications, access to information, and call-in 

4.5.1 Publication of the Annual Report of the Director of Public Health will enable the 
council to meet its statutory requirements under the Health & Social Care Act 2012. 

4.6 Risk management 

4.6.1 There are no risks identified with the publication of the Annual Report of the Director 
of Public Health. 

5. Conclusions 

Page 36



 

5.1 This year’s Annual Report is able to show progress on some key health status 
indicators aligned to the Leeds Health & Wellbeing Strategy.  

5.2 However the focus of this year’s report is on what lies behind a fall in life 
expectancy in females and a static life expectancy in men – a rise in infant mortality, 
a rise in alcohol related deaths in women, a rise in drug related deaths in men, a 
rise in men taking their own lives. In addition, there is a focus on women who self-
harm as a rising trend of concern. 

5.3 There needs to be further action taken on all the above areas and a more general 
greater understanding of underlying gender issue. A comprehensive needs 
assessment for women is a current gap and should be rectified. 

5.4 The new Leeds Inclusive Growth Strategy provides an opportunity to reverse the 
increased inequalities gap as revealed by the latest Indices for Multiple Deprivation. 
Tackling the socio-economic determinants of health is the cornerstone for improving 
the health inequalities in our city. 

6. Recommendations 

6.1 The Executive Board is asked to: 

 Note the content of the Annual Report of the Director of Public Health and 
support the recommendations; 

 Recommend that the Health & Wellbeing Board consider the Annual Report 
in relation to the next Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. 

 Recommend that the Department of City Development take due regard to the 
recommendations made about the contribution of the Leeds Inclusive Growth 
Strategy to tackling deprivation and reducing inequalities. 

 Request an update from the Director of Public Health on the next set of life 
expectancy figures for males and females in Leeds at a future Executive 
Board meeting. 

7. Background documents1  

7.1 None 

8.      Appendices 

8.1 Appendix 1 The Annual Report of the Director of Public Health 2017/2018 

8.2 Appendix 2 Health status indicator 

8.3 Appendix 3 Equality, Diversity, Cohesion & Integration Screening 

 
 
 

                                            
1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



11

NOBODY LEFT BEHIND:  
GOOD HEALTH AND  
A STRONG ECONOMY

T H E  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  O F  T H E  D I R E C T O R  

Page 39



2

3

FO
RE

W
O
RD

 
5

ST
EE

RI
N
G
 IN

 T
H
E 
RI
G
H
T 
D
IR
EC

TI
O
N
 

7
Th

e 
In

cl
us

iv
e 

G
ro

w
th

 P
rio

rit
y 

9
Th

e 
H

ea
lt

h 
&

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 P

rio
rit

y 
13

In
fa

nt
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

an
d 

lif
e 

ex
pe

ct
an

cy
 

14
W

ha
t o

th
er

 tr
en

ds
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

nc
er

n 
us

? 
16

AL
C
O
H
O
L-

RE
LA

TE
D
 M

O
RT

AL
IT
Y 
IN

 W
O
M
EN

 
17

W
ha

t i
s 

th
e 

st
or

y?
 

19
W

ha
t i

s 
ha

pp
en

in
g 

in
 L

ee
ds

? 
20

W
ha

t a
re

 w
e 

do
in

g 
to

 ta
ck

le
 a

lc
oh

ol
 h

ar
m

 in
 L

ee
ds

? 
20

W
O
M
EN

’S
 M

EN
TA

L 
H
EA

LT
H
 

27
Se

lf
-h

ar
m

in
g 

an
d 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 
27

W
ha

t i
s 

th
e 

pi
ct

ur
e 

fo
r L

ee
ds

? 
28

W
ha

t a
re

 w
e 

do
in

g 
in

 L
ee

ds
? 

 
28

D
RU

G
-R

EL
AT

ED
 D

EA
TH

S 
IN

 M
EN

 
33

W
ha

t’s
 h

ap
pe

ni
ng

 in
 L

ee
ds

? 
34

Fo
rw

ar
d 

Le
ed

s 
– 

th
e 

lo
ca

l d
ru

g 
an

d 
al

co
ho

l s
er

vi
ce

  
36

SU
IC

ID
ES

 IN
 M

EN
 

39
W

ha
t i

s 
th

e 
pi

ct
ur

e 
fo

r L
ee

ds
? 

 
39

W
ha

t a
re

 w
e 

do
in

g 
in

 L
ee

ds
? 

40
W

ha
t d

o 
w

e 
ne

ed
 to

 d
o 

m
or

e 
of

? 
 

44
Ri

se
 H

ig
h 

 
46

C
O
N
C
LU

SI
O
N
S 

48
RE

C
O
M
M
EN

D
AT

IO
N
S 
20

17
-1

8 
49

AC
KN

O
W
LE

D
G
EM

EN
TS

 
50

A
 s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 th

is
 re

po
rt

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 la
rg

e 
pr

in
t,

 B
ra

ill
e,

 o
n 

au
di

ot
ap

e 
 

or
 tr

an
sl

at
ed

, u
po

n 
re

qu
es

t.
 P

le
as

e 
co

nt
ac

t  
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lt
h 

in
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

te
am

  
PH

I.R
eq

ue
st

s@
le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk

Th
is

 re
po

rt
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
on

lin
e 

at
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

/r
es

id
en

ts
/P

ag
es

/D
ire

ct
or

-o
f-

Pu
bl

ic
-H

ea
lt

h-
A

nn
ua

l-
Re

po
rt

.a
sp

x 

Pa
st

 re
po

rt
s 

ca
n 

be
 a

cc
es

se
d 

at
  

ht
tp

:/
/o

bs
er

va
to

ry
.le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk

Fu
rt

he
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

on
 h

ea
lt

h 
st

at
is

ti
cs

 fo
r L

ee
ds

  
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
on

lin
e 

at
  

ht
tp

:/
/o

bs
er

va
to

ry
.le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk

W
e 

w
el

co
m

e 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 a

bo
ut

 o
ur

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t o
r a

ny
 o

f 
ou

r o
th

er
 d

oc
um

en
ts

. I
f y

ou
 h

av
e 

an
y 

co
m

m
en

ts
 p

le
as

e 

01
13

 3
78

92
21

 o
r o

n 

 
ba

rb
ar

a.
m

ac
do

na
ld

@
ta

lk
ta

lk
.n

et

D
es

ig
n:

 L
ee

ds
 C

it
y 

Co
un

ci
l C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

cr
ea

ti
ve

.s
er

vi
ce

s@
le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk

©
 T

he
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 m

ap
pi

ng
 in

cl
ud

ed
 w

it
hi

n 
th

is
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 L
ee

ds
 C

it
y 

Co
un

ci
l u

nd
er

 li
ce

nc
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 

he
ld

 p
ub

lic
 d

om
ai

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 P

er
so

ns
 v

ie
w

in
g 

th
is

 m
ap

pi
ng

 s
ho

ul
d 

co
nt

ac
t O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 c

op
yr

ig
ht

 fo
r a

dv
ic

e 
w

he
re

 th
ey

 w
is

h 
to

 li
ce

ns
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

pi
ng

/m
ap

 d
at

a 
fo

r t
he

ir 
ow

n 
us

e.

©
 C

op
yr

ig
ht

 L
ee

ds
 C

it
y 

Co
un

ci
l 2

01
8

C
O
N
TE
N
TS

Page 40



5

4

W
el

co
m

e 
to

 m
y 

la
te

st
 P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lt
h 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t f
or

 L
ee

ds
.

I a
m

 v
er

y 
aw

ar
e 

ho
w

 p
riv

ile
ge

d 
I a

m
 

to
 h

av
e 

th
e 

op
po

rt
un

it
y 

to
 p

ro
du

ce
 

an
 A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t.

 L
as

t y
ea

r, 
in

 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lt

h)
, I

 to
ld

 th
e 

st
or

y 
of

 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lt
h 

in
 L

ee
ds

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

ts
 o

f m
y 

pr
ed

ec
es

so
rs

, 
go

in
g 

al
l t

he
 w

ay
 b

ac
k 

to
 18

66
. I

’m
 

gr
at

ef
ul

 fo
r t

he
 le

ve
l o

f i
nt

er
es

t t
ha

t 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
w

ill
 h

el
p 

fu
tu

re
 

ge
ne

ra
ti

on
s 

an
d 

m
y 

th
an

ks
 g

o 
to

 th
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lt

h 
Tr

ai
l. 

H
ow

ev
er

, I
 a

m
 a

ls
o 

pr
iv

ile
ge

d 
in

 th
at

 
I a

m
 a

bl
e 

to
 d

ec
id

e 
th

e 
co

nt
en

t o
f 

m
y 

re
po

rt
. T

o 
be

 fr
an

k,
 th

is
 y

ea
r’s

 
re

po
rt

 is
 n

ot
 th

e 
on

e 
th

at
 I 

st
ar

te
d 

ou
t w

rit
in

g.
 I 

de
ci

de
d 

to
 c

ha
ng

e 
di

re
ct

io
n 

be
ca

us
e 

th
e 

m
os

t r
ec

en
t 

sh
ow

ed
 a

 d
ec

lin
e 

w
hi

le
 th

os
e 

fo
r 

m
en

 h
av

e 
st

ay
ed

 th
e 

sa
m

e,
 ra

th
er

 
th

an
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

as
 w

e 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
ho

pe
d.

 T
hi

s 
fo

llo
w

ed
 o

n 
fr

om
 a

 
w

or
se

ni
ng

 p
ic

tu
re

 fo
r d

ep
riv

at
io

n 
in

 
Le

ed
s.

 I 
ha

ve
 b

ec
om

e 
co

nc
er

ne
d.

So
m

e 
of

 m
y 

co
lle

ag
ue

s b
el

ie
ve

 th
at

 
I s

ho
ul

d 
w

ai
t t

ill
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 c
le

ar
er

 
pi

ct
ur

e 
of

 th
e 

tr
en

ds
 in

 o
ur

 c
ity

. 
Pe

rh
ap

s t
he

y 
ar

e 
rig

ht
. P

er
ha

ps
 I 

am
 

ov
er

-c
on

ce
rn

ed
 a

nd
 th

e 
ne

xt
 se

t o
f 

he
al

th
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 sh

ow
 th

at
 a

ll 
th

is
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

a 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 b
lip

. 

O
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r h
an

d,
 th

er
e 

is
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l c
on

te
xt

. N
at

io
na

lly
, t

he
re

 
ha

s b
ee

n 
a 

sl
ow

in
g 

do
w

n 
in

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f l
ife

 e
xp

ec
ta

nc
y.

 T
he

re
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
on

ly
 sl

ig
ht

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
in

 re
ce

nt
 y

ea
rs

 b
ot

h 
fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 

fe
m

al
es

. A
ls

o,
 in

 2
00

9,
 th

e 
Pr

im
e 

au
st

er
ity

”. 
W

e 
st

ill
 a

re
. I

 se
e 

Le
ed

s  
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

or
ki

ng
 h

ar
d 

to
 

m
in

im
is

e 
th

e 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

s o
n 

Le
ed

s r
es

id
en

ts
 o

f h
ug

e 
na

tio
na

lly
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

ud
ge

t c
ut

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
gr

et
ta

bl
y 

to
 p

ub
lic

 h
ea

lt
h.

 I 
se

e 
pa

rt
ne

r o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 in

 L
ee

ds
 fa

ce
d 

Ta
ki

ng
 th

is
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
, m

y 
re

po
rt

 
th

is
 y

ea
r f

oc
us

es
 o

n 
w

ha
t l

ie
s 

be
ne

at
h 

th
es

e 
di

sa
pp

oi
nt

in
g 

lif
e 

qu
es

tio
n,

 sh
ou

ld
 w

e 
be

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
? 

Pe
rh

ap
s s

ur
pr

is
in

gl
y, 

th
e 

bi
g 

ki
lle

rs
 

– 
ca

rd
io

va
sc

ul
ar

 d
is

ea
se

, c
an

ce
r, 

re
sp

ira
to

ry
 d

is
ea

se
 –

 d
on

’t 
pl

ay
 a

 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
hu

ge
 a

m
ou

nt
 

of
 w

or
k 

go
in

g 
on

 a
cr

os
s t

he
 c

ity
 to

 
re

du
ce

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 th

es
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
ha

ve
 o

n 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 h
ea

lt
h 

in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s.

 

So
 w

ha
t h

as
 e

m
er

ge
d?

 F
irs

tl
y,

 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 in

fa
nt

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
ac

co
un

ts
 fo

r a
bo

ut
 h

al
f o

f t
he

 
w

or
se

ni
ng

 p
os

it
io

n.
 A

ft
er

 10
 y

ea
rs

 

fr
om

 b
ei

ng
 a

 c
it

y 
of

 c
on

ce
rn

 to
 a

 
ci

ty
 w

it
h 

an
 in

fa
nt

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
ra

te
 

be
lo

w
 th

at
 o

f E
ng

la
nd

 a
s 

a 
w

ho
le

. A
 

re
m

ar
ka

bl
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t.

 H
ow

ev
er

, 
th

e 
re

ce
nt

 ri
se

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
s 

th
e 

ne
ed

, 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
ci

ty
-w

id
e 

fo
cu

s 
on

 g
iv

in
g 

ch
ild

re
n 

th
e 

be
st

 p
os

si
bl

e 
st

ar
t i

n 
lif

e.
 A

 s
m

al
l c

ha
ng

e 
he

re
 h

as
 h

ad
 a

 

O
f e

ve
n 

m
or

e 
co

nc
er

n 
is

 th
at

 w
e 

ar
e 

se
ei

ng
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 n
um

be
r 

of
 d

ea
th

s 
as

 a
 c

on
se

qu
en

ce
 o

f 
ch

an
gi

ng
 h

ea
lt

h 
tr

en
ds

 –
 a

nd
 th

is
 is

 

th
ro

ug
h 

al
co

ho
l h

ar
m

, m
or

e 
m

en
 

ar
e 

dy
in

g 
fr

om
 s

ui
ci

de
, m

or
e 

m
en

 
ar

e 
dy

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

dr
ug

 o
ve

rd
os

es
. 

W
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 s
ee

in
g 

m
or

e 
w

om
en

, 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 y
ou

ng
 w

om
en

, s
el

f-
ha

rm
in

g.
 S

o 
m

y 
re

po
rt

 w
ill

 fo
cu

s 
on

 th
es

e 
fo

ur
 a

re
as

, r
ec

og
ni

si
ng

 
th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 b
et

te
r u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f g

en
de

r. 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

be
fo

re
 th

at
, m

y 
re

po
rt

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
w

or
se

ni
ng

 d
ep

riv
at

io
n 

st
at

is
ti

cs
 a

nd
 h

ow
 L

ee
ds

 C
it

y 
Co

un
ci

l’s
 n

ew
 In

cl
us

iv
e 

G
ro

w
th

 
St

ra
te

gy
 m

us
t c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 
re

ve
rs

in
g 

th
is

 p
os

it
io

n.
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
fo

r a
ct

io
n,

 b
ut

 
I w

is
h 

al
so

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

cl
os

e 
ey

e 
on

 o
ur

 li
fe

 e
xp

ec
ta

nc
y 

Fo
r t

ho
se

 w
ho

 w
is

h 
to

 s
ee

 a
  

br
oa

de
r r

an
ge

 o
f h

ea
lt

h 
st

at
is

ti
cs

, 
w

he
th

er
 fo

r t
he

 w
ho

le
 c

it
y 

or
 ju

st
 

th
ei

r l
oc

al
 a

re
a,

 p
le

as
e 

go
 to

  
ht

tp
:/

/o
bs

er
va

to
ry

.le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

I a
m

 in
de

bt
ed

 to
 m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 

ha
ve

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

ed
 to

 
m

y 
re

po
rt

. T
he

y 
ar

e 
lis

te
d 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

re
po

rt
. I

 w
ou

ld
 p

ar
ti

cu
la

rl
y 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

er
, a

nd
 B

ar
ba

ra
 

I a
ls

o 
w

an
t t

o 
th

an
k 

al
l m

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 

Sl
ad

e,
 m

y 
pe

rs
on

al
 a

ss
is

ta
nt

.

A
s a

lw
ay

s,
 I 

w
ou

ld
 w

el
co

m
e 

yo
ur

 
fe

ed
ba

ck
, c

om
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 su
gg

es
tio

ns
.

Ia
n 

Ca
m

er
on

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth

FO
RE
W
O
RD

Ia
n 

Ca
m

er
on

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth

Page 41



7

6
1

Le
ed

s 
in

cl
us

iv
e 

gr
ow

th
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

20
17

–2
02

3:
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
dr

af
t h

tt
p:

//
w

w
w

.le
ed

sg
ro

w
th

st
ra

te
gy

.c
om

2
Th

e 
En

gl
is

h 
in

di
ce

s 
of

 d
ep

riv
at

io
n 

20
15

  
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.g

ov
.u

k/
go

ve
rn

m
en

t/
st

at
is

ti
cs

/e
ng

lis
h-

in
di

ce
s-

of
-d

ep
riv

at
io

n-
20

15

Le
ed

s 
is

 d
oi

ng
 w

el
l. 

Th
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 
is

 th
er

e 
fo

r a
ll 

to
 s

ee
 –

 th
e 

op
en

in
g 

of
 T

rin
it

y 
Le

ed
s 

in
 2

01
3 

an
d 

Vi
ct

or
ia

 
G

at
e 

in
 2

01
6,

 th
e 

£4
bn

 o
f m

aj
or

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 o

ve
r t

he
 la

st
 te

n 
ye

ar
s,

 th
e 

la
rg

es
t i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 a

ve
ra

ge
 

ea
rn

in
gs

 a
ny

w
he

re
 in

 th
e 

U
K.

 W
e 

ar
e 

pr
ou

d 
th

at
 L

ee
ds

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
na

m
ed

 
th

e 
be

st
 c

it
y 

in
 B

rit
ai

n 
fo

r q
ua

lit
y 

of
 

lif
e.

 A
ll 

of
 th

is
 p

os
it

iv
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 is
 

te
st

am
en

t t
o 

th
e 

ha
rd

 w
or

k 
an

d 
co

-
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

, s
ec

to
rs

 
an

d 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
ov

er
 m

an
y 

ye
ar

s.
 

H
ow

ev
er

, a
s i

s w
el

l k
no

w
n,

 L
ee

ds
 is

 a
ls

o 
a 

ci
ty

 m
ar

ke
d 

by
 in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

he
al

th
 in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s.
 Is

 th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 

or
 ju

st
 th

e 
fe

w
? A

re
 in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
na

rr
ow

in
g 

or
 g

et
tin

g 
w

id
er

? 
W

e 
kn

ow
 th

at
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

so
ci

o-
ec

on
om

ic
 p

os
it

io
n 

of
 in

di
vi

du
al

s,
 

co
m

m
un

it
ie

s 
an

d 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
ds

 
is

 c
en

tr
al

 to
 re

du
ci

ng
 th

e 
he

al
th

 
in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
in

 o
ur

 c
it

y.
 T

hi
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 
a 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 th

em
e 

in
 m

y 
pr

ev
io

us
 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

ts
. S

o 
ho

w
 a

re
 w

e 
do

in
g 

no
w

?
Si

nc
e 

th
e 

19
70

s 
th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
ha

s 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 lo
ca

l m
ea

su
re

s 
of

 d
ep

riv
at

io
n 

ac
ro

ss
 E

ng
la

nd
. 

Th
ey

 d
o 

th
is

 b
y 

us
in

g 
th

e 
In

de
x 

of
 

by
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

. E
ac

h 
of

 th
es

e 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
ds

 ty
pi

ca
lly

 re
pr

es
en

ts
 

ar
ou

nd
 1,

50
0 

pe
op

le
.2

 T
hi

s 
is

 n
ot

 a
n 

ea
sy

 ta
sk

 b
ut

 it
 is

 a
 v

er
y 

im
po

rt
an

t 

us
 to

 s
ee

 w
ha

t i
s 

ha
pp

en
in

g 
– 

go
od

 

Le
ed

s 
ov

er
 p

er
io

ds
 o

f t
im

e.
 

Ju
st

 a
s 

im
po

rt
an

t a
s 

id
en

ti
fy

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
of

 d
ep

riv
at

io
n 

is
 a

ss
es

si
ng

 
ch

an
ge

 o
ve

r t
im

e.
 In

 2
00

9,
 L

ee
ds

 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
th

e 
N

H
S 

pr
od

uc
ed

 

at
 u

nm
et

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 
he

al
th

, s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

an
d 

w
el

lb
ei

ng
 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
e 

ci
ty

. A
t t

he
 ti

m
e,

 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
e 

ha
d,

 I 
be

lie
ve

d 
w

e 
w

ou
ld

 c
on

ti
nu

e 
to

 s
ee

 
a 

gr
ad

ua
l d

ec
re

as
e 

in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

in
 L

ee
ds

 fa
lli

ng
 

in
to

 th
e 

w
or

st
 10

%
 o

f d
ep

riv
ed

 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
ds

 n
at

io
na

lly
. 

A
lo

ng
si

de
 th

is
, w

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 s
ee

 
a 

dr
op

 fr
om

 th
e 

15
0,

00
0 

pe
op

le
 

liv
in

g 
in

 s
uc

h 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
ds

. I
n 

th
e 

in
te

rv
en

in
g 

ye
ar

s 
w

e 
ha

ve
 s

ee
n 

th
at

 
gr

ad
ua

l p
ro

gr
es

s 
an

d 
I h

ad
 h

op
ed

 
th

at
 th

is
 w

ou
ld

 la
y 

th
e 

fo
un

da
ti

on
s 

fo
r f

as
te

r p
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
he

al
th

 in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

in
 o

ur
 c

it
y.

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 la
te

st
 re

le
as

e 
of

 th
e 

Le
ed

s.
 P

ut
 s

im
pl

y,
 w

e 
no

w
 h

av
e 

10
0 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
 th

at
 fa

ll 
in

 
th

e 
w

or
st

 10
%

 n
at

io
na

lly
. T

hi
s 

is
 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 8
8 

in
 2

01
0 

– 
in

 o
th

er
 

w
or

ds
, a

 w
or

se
 p

os
it

io
n.

 T
hi

s 
ne

w
 

pe
op

le
 in

 L
ee

ds
. 

Le
ed

s h
as
 a
 st

ro
ng

 e
co

no
m
y 
th
at
 h
as
 e
na

bl
ed

 th
e 
ci
ty
 

to
 re

co
ve

r w
el
l f
ro
m
 th

e 
re
ce

ss
io
n.
 W

e 
ha

ve
 a
 d
iv
er
se
 

ta
le
nt
 p
oo

l, 
wo

rld
 c
la
ss
 a
ss
et
s, 
in
no

va
tiv

e 
bu

sin
es
se
s 

an
d 
be

au
tif
ul
 c
ou

nt
ry
sid

e.
 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il,
 u
ni
ve

rs
iti
es
, 

sc
ho

ol
s, 
in
no

va
to
rs
 a
nd

 e
nt
re
pr
en

eu
rs
 h
av
e 
al
l p

la
ye

d 
th
ei
r p

ar
t i
n 
cr
ea

tin
g 
gr
ow

th
. T

he
re
 is
 m

uc
h 
to
 b
e 

pr
ou

d 
of
 in

 L
ee

ds
 a
nd

 w
e 
ha

ve
 a
 g
re
at
 st

or
y 
to
 te

ll.

(L
ee

ds
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ne
w

 In
cl

us
iv

e 
G

ro
w

th
 S

tr
at

eg
y)

1

ST
EE
RI
N
G
 IN
 T
H
E 
 

RI
G
H
T 
D
IR
EC
TI
O
N

Tr
in

it
y 

Le
ed

s 
op

en
in

g 
20

13

Page 42



 

9

P
oo

l

A
de

l

O
tle

y

B
ur

le
y

A
rm

le
y

G
ip

to
n

R
od

le
y

P
ud

se
y

M
or

le
y

H
al

to
n

C
ol

to
n

O
ul

to
n

K
ip

pa
x

W
al

to
n

Li
nt

on

R
aw

do
n

Ye
ad

on

Ty
er

sa
l

W
or

tle
y

Fa
rn

le
y

H
ol

be
ck B
ee

st
on

H
un

sl
et

C
ar

lto
n

M
et

hl
ey

O
ak

w
oo

d

S
ch

ol
es

Th
or

ne
r

B
ar

ds
ey

B
ra

m
ha

m

B
ra

m
le

y

W
hi

tk
irk

S
to

ur
to

n

W
hi

nm
oo

r

C
hu

rw
el

l

R
ot

hw
el

l

G
ar

fo
rth

R
ou

nd
ha

y

S
ha

dw
el

l S
ea

cr
of

t

A
be

rfo
rd

W
et

he
rb

y

M
oo

rto
w

nH
ar

ew
oo

d

W
ea

rd
le

y

B
ra

m
ho

pe

Ti
ns

hi
ll

G
ui

se
le

y

W
oo

dh
ou

se

M
id

dl
et

on

H
ar

eh
ills

S
ca

rc
ro

ft

A
lw

oo
dl

ey

C
al

ve
rle

y

K
irk

st
al

l

H
ol

t P
ar

k
C

oo
kr

id
ge

H
or

sf
or

th

B
el

le
 Is

le

C
ha

pe
lto

w
n

G
ild

er
so

m
e

C
ot

tin
gl

ey

H
ea

di
ng

le
y

B
os

to
n 

S
pa

C
ol

lin
gh

am

A
rth

in
gt

on

N
ew

 F
ar

nl
ey

C
IT

Y 
C

E
N

TR
E

B
ur

m
an

to
fts

W
oo

dl
es

fo
rd

S
w

ill
in

gt
on

M
ic

kl
ef

ie
ld

Th
or

pe
 A

rc
h

D
rig

hl
in

gt
on

E
as

t A
rd

sl
ey

O
sm

on
dt

ho
rp

e

P
ot

te
rn

ew
to

n

Li
nc

ol
n 

G
re

en

M
oo

r A
lle

rto
n

C
ha

pe
l A

lle
rto

n

A
lle

rto
n 

B
yw

at
er

B
ar

w
ic

k 
in

 E
lm

et

Pr
op

or
ti

on
 o

f  
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
ds

 
in

 e
ac

h 
de

ci
le

  
fo

r I
M

D
 in

 L
ee

ds

D
ec

ile
 1 

M
O

ST
 

de
pr

iv
ed

 10
%

 in
 

En
gl

an
d

D
ec

ile
 2

D
ec

ile
 3

D
ec

ile
 4

D
ec

ile
 5

D
ec

ile
 6

D
ec

ile
 7

D
ec

ile
 8

D
ec

ile
 9

D
ec

ile
 10

 L
EA

ST
 

de
pr

iv
ed

 10
%

 in
 

En
gl

an
d

Th
e 

ai
m

 o
f t

he
 L

ee
ds

 H
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

20
16

–2
02

13
 is

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

he
al

th
 o

f t
he

 p
oo

re
st

 
fa

st
es

t.
 T

hi
s 

la
te

st
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t o

ur
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s 
sh

ow
s 

th
e 

fo
un

da
ti

on
s 

to
 d

o 
th

is
 g

et
ti

ng
 

w
ea

ke
r r

at
he

r t
ha

n 
st

ro
ng

er
. L

ee
ds

 
m

ay
 w

el
l b

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
st

ro
ng

 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
, b

ut
 o

ur
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 
nu

m
be

r o
f d

ep
riv

ed
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s 
sh

ow
s 

th
at

 w
e 

ar
e 

no
t s

ee
in

g 
a 

fr
om

 re
ce

ss
io

n.
 A

 ri
si

ng
 ti

de
 h

as
 n

ot
 

lif
te

d 
al

l b
oa

ts
.4

Le
ed

s C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il w

ill
 co

nt
in

ue
 to

 ta
ke

 
th

e l
ea

d 
in

 d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
th

e f
ut

ur
e o

f 
ou

r c
ity

. A
s p

ar
t o

f t
ha

t r
ol

e,
 Le

ed
s C

ity
 

Co
un

cil
 is

 n
ow

 fo
cu

sin
g 

on
 h

ow
 it

 ca
n 

w
or

k w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s t
o 

ta
ck

le
 d

ee
p-

ro
ot

ed
 

an
d 

lo
ng

-s
ta

nd
in

g 
pr

ob
le

m
s i

n 
six

 o
f t

he
 

m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 n
eig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
 in

 th
e 

cit
y. 

Th
es

e i
nc

lu
de

 H
ol

df
or

th
s a

nd
 C

ly
de

s;
 

St
ra

tf
or

ds
 a

nd
 B

ev
er

le
ys

; R
ec

re
at

io
ns

, 
Cr

os
by

 S
t a

nd
 B

ar
to

ns
; B

og
ga

rt
 H

ill
 a

nd
 

Cl
ift

on
; N

ow
el

ls;
 Li

nc
ol

n 
G

re
en

. T
hi

s w
ill

 
re

qu
ire

 a
 n

ew
 tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

na
l a

pp
ro

ac
h.

 
In

 ta
ki

ng
 fo

rw
ar

d 
its

 vi
sio

n 
fo

r L
ee

ds
 to

 
be

 th
e 

‘b
es

t c
ity

 in
 th

e 
U

K’
, L

ee
ds

 C
ity

 
Co

un
ci

l w
ill

 sh
or

tly
 p

ub
lis

h 
its

 B
es

t 
Co

un
ci

l P
la

n 
20

18
/1

9-
20

/2
1.5

  T
he

 P
la

n 
st

at
es

 a
n 

in
te

nt
io

n 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 p
ov

er
ty

 
an

d 
in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s b
y m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

 lo
ng

-
te

rm
 st

ra
te

gi
c f

oc
us

 o
n 

st
re

ng
th

en
in

g 
th

e 
ec

on
om

y w
hi

ls
t s

up
po

rt
in

g 
th

e 
m

os
t v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e.
 T

he
re

 a
re

 se
ve

n 
pr

io
rit

y a
re

as
 in

 th
e 

Pl
an

. O
ne

 o
f t

he
se

 
is 

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 a

nd
 th

is 
is 

to
 b

e 
w

el
co

m
ed

. A
no

th
er

 p
rio

rit
y i

s I
nc

lu
siv

e 
G

ro
w

th
. I

 h
op

e 
to

 sh
ow

 w
hy

 w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 

gi
ve

 e
qu

al
 a

tt
en

tio
n 

to
 b

ot
h.

Th
e 
In
cl
us
iv
e 

G
ro
wt

h 
Pr
io
rit

y
W

ha
t 

do
es

 ‘I
nc

lu
si

ve
 G

ro
w

th
’ 

ac
tu

al
ly

 m
ea

n?
 T

he
re

 a
re

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 s
im

ila
r p

hr
as

es
 in

 c
irc

ul
at

io
n.

 

as
 ‘e

na
bl

in
g 

as
 m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 a

s 

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

In
cl

us
iv

e 
G

ro
w

th
 

So
ci

et
y 

fo
r t

he
 E

nc
ou

ra
ge

m
en

t 

Co
m

m
er

ce
) i

n 
20

17
.6

Th
e 

In
cl

us
iv

e 
G

ro
w

th
 C

om
m

is
si

on
 

ca
lle

d 
fo

r a
 n

ew
 lo

ok
 a

t e
co

no
m

ic
 

gr
ow

th
 b

ec
au

se
, i

t s
ai

d,
 to

o 
m

an
y 

fa
m

ili
es

, c
om

m
un

it
ie

s 
an

d 
pl

ac
es

 a
re

 
be

in
g 

le
ft

 b
eh

in
d 

in
 o

ur
 e

co
no

m
y.

 
In

 th
e 

pa
st

 u
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t w

as
 

th
e 

ke
y 

pr
ob

le
m

, b
ut

 a
 s

ta
gg

er
in

g 
55

%
 o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

liv
in

g 
in

 p
ov

er
ty

 
na

ti
on

al
ly

 n
ow

 a
re

 in
 w

or
k.

7  T
o 

ge
t a

 
jo

b,
 a

ny
 jo

b,
 is

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 a

 ro
ut

e 
ou

t 
of

 p
ov

er
ty

. L
ow

-p
ai

d,
 lo

w
-s

ta
tu

s 
jo

bs
 

w
it

h 
po

or
 jo

b 
se

cu
rit

y,
 c

ou
pl

ed
 w

it
h 

lo
w

 p
ro

du
ct

iv
it

y 
an

d 
a 

pr
ol

ife
ra

ti
on

 
of

 lo
w

-s
ki

lle
d 

jo
bs

, m
ak

e 
a 

po
te

nt
 

an
d 

to
xi

c 
m

ix
tu

re
. 

Cu
ts

 to
 c

ou
nc

il 
bu

dg
et

s 
as

 a
 re

su
lt

 o
f 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t’s

 p
ol

ic
y 

of
 a

us
te

rit
y 

ha
ve

 h
ei

gh
te

ne
d 

th
e 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
by

 
pr

od
uc

in
g 

a 
fo

cu
s 

on
 th

e 
sh

or
t 

te
rm

 a
nd

 c
ris

is
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
t t

he
 

ex
pe

ns
e 

of
 p

re
ve

nt
io

n,
 e

ar
ly

 a
ct

io
n 

an
d 

a 
fo

cu
s 

on
 th

e 
lo

ng
 te

rm
.

IN
D
EX
 O
F 
M
U
LT
IP
LE
 D
EP
RI
VA
TI
O
N
 ‒
 L
EE
D
S

3 
Le

ed
s 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
20

16
–2

02
1 h

tt
p:

//
w

w
w

.le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

/d
oc

s/
H

ea
lt

h%
20

an
d%

20
W

el
lb

ei
ng

%
20

20
16

-2
02

1.p
df

4 
ht

tp
s:

//
en

.w
ik

ip
ed

ia
.o

rg
/w

ik
i/A

_r
is

in
g_

ti
de

_l
ift

s_
al

l_
bo

at
s

5 
Le

ed
s 

Ci
ty

 C
ou

nc
il,

 B
es

t c
ou

nc
il 

pl
an

 2
01

8/
19

-2
0/

21
 

6
 In

cl
us

iv
e 

G
ro

w
th

 C
om

m
is

si
on

: m
ak

in
g 

ou
r e

co
no

m
y 

w
or

k 
fo

r e
ve

ry
on

e 

7
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

po
ve

rt
y 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 e

xc
lu

si
on

 2
01

6 
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.jr

f.o
rg

.u
k/

re
po

rt
/m

on
it

or
in

g-
po

ve
rt

y-
an

d-
so

ci
al

-e
xc

lu
si

on
-2

01
6

©
 T

he
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 m

ap
pi

ng
 2

01
7

Le
ed

s 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

  
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y  
 

20
16

-2
02

1

‘L
ee

ds
 w

ill
 b

e 
a 

he
al

th
y 

 
an

d 
ca

rin
g 

ci
ty

 fo
r 

al
l a

ge
s,

  
w

he
re

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 a
re

 th
e 

po
or

es
t i

m
pr

ov
e 

th
ei

r 
 

he
al

th
 th

e 
fa

st
es

t’.

In
cl

us
iv

e 
G

ro
w

th
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

M
ak

in
g 

ou
r 

Ec
on

om
y W

or
k 

fo
r E

ve
ry

on
e

In
de

ed
, 1

6 
of

 th
es

e 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
ds

 
ar

e 
in

 th
e 

m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 1%
 n

at
io

na
lly

 
an

d 
fa

ll 
w

it
hi

n 
ni

ne
 o

f o
ur

 w
ar

ds
: 

A
rm

le
y;

 B
ee

st
on

 a
nd

 H
ol

be
ck

; 
Bu

rm
an

to
ft

s 
an

d 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

H
ill

; C
it

y 
an

d 
H

un
sl

et
; C

ha
pe

l A
lle

rt
on

;  
G

ip
to

n 
an

d 
H

ar
eh

ill
s;

 H
yd

e 
Pa

rk
 

Ki
lli

ng
be

ck
 a

nd
 S

ea
cr

of
t.

 

O
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r h
an

d,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 th

e 
go

od
 

ne
w

s 
th

at
 w

e 
ha

ve
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

in
 th

e 
10

%
 

le
as

t d
ep

riv
ed

 n
at

io
na

lly
 fr

om
 2

7 
in

 
20

10
 to

 4
0 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
 in

 2
01

5.
 

no
w

 h
av

e 
a 

ci
ty

 w
it

h 
a 

gr
ea

te
r 

co
nc

en
tr

at
io

n 
of

 m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 a
nd

 
le

as
t d

ep
riv

ed
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s.
 

In
 o

th
er

 w
or

ds
, t

he
 in

eq
ua

lit
y 

ga
p 

in
 L

ee
ds

 is
 g

et
ti

ng
 w

id
er

 –
 w

e 
ar

e 
go

in
g 

in
 th

e 
w

ro
ng

 d
ire

ct
io

n.

Page 43



11

10

111111 11

 
 

‘a
bs

ol
ut

e 
po

ve
rt

y’
 

 28
,00
0 

Le
ed

s 
ch

ild
re

n 
ar

e 
in

 p
ov

er
ty

 
 - 

of
 th

os
e ..
.

...
64
% 

ar
e 

es
ti

m
at

ed
 to

 b
e 

 
fr

om
 w

or
ki

ng
 fa

m
ili

es

C
O

N
T

R
AC

T

0 
H

O
U

RS

8,0
00

w
or

ke
rs

 a
re

 o
n 

ze
ro

  
ho

ur
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

38
,00
0 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 a

re
 in

  
fu

el
 p

ov
er

ty

 
pa

yd
ay

 lo
an

s 
ac

ce
ss

ed
 b

y 

 
 

by
 in

-w
or

k 
po

ve
rt

y

24
,00
0 

fu
ll-

ti
m

e 
w

or
ke

rs
 e

ar
n 

le
ss

 
th

an
 th

e 
Li

vi
ng

 W
ag

e

80
,00
0 

in
 jo

bs
 p

ai
d 

le
ss

 th
an

 R
ea

l 
Li

vi
ng

 W
ag

e

PO
VE
RT
Y 
AN
D
 D
EP
RI
VA
TI
O
N
 IN
  L
EE
D
S 
 ‒
 T
H
E 
FA
C
TS

(L
ee

ds
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

Bo
ar

d 
Re

po
rt

 2
01

6)

In
 c
on

tr
as
t t
o 
th
e 
pa

st
 

wh
en

 u
ne

m
pl
oy

m
en

t 

      

Ho
ldf

ort
hs

 an
d 

Cly
de

s i
s t

he
 

pa
thf

ind
er 

for
 th

e n
ew

 ap
pr

oa
ch

. 

Th
is 

is 
a n

eig
hb

ou
rh

oo
d 

fac
ing

 

ma
ny

 ch
all

en
ge

s. 
It 

is 
ran

ke
d 

nin
th 

mo
st 

ch
all

en
ge

d 
ne

igh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

in 
Le

ed
s. 

Ov
er 

43
% 

of 
its

 re
sid

en
ts 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e i
nc

om
e d

ep
riv

ati
on

 

an
d 

36
% 

are
 un

em
plo

ye
d. 

Un
em

plo
ym

en
t a

mo
ng

st 
yo

un
ge

r 

pe
op

le 
is 

do
ub

le 
the

 ci
ty 

av
era

ge
. 

Ou
t-o

f-w
ork

 be
ne

fits
 pa

ym
en

ts 
are

 

thr
ee

 tim
es

 hi
gh

er 
tha

n a
cro

ss
 th

e 

cit
y a

s a
 w

ho
le.

 M
en

 ar
e m

ore
 lik

ely
 

to 
be

 un
em

plo
ye

d t
ha

n w
om

en
. 

Th
e l

os
s o

f h
ea

vy
 in

du
str

y a
nd

 m
an

ufa
ctu

rin
g m

ea
ns

 th
at 

me
n a

re 
no

w 
tak

ing
 on

 w
ork

 w
ith

in 

the
 se

rvi
ce

 in
du

str
y a

s o
pp

ort
un

itie
s f

or 
ful

l-t
im

e, 
pe

rm
an

en
t p

hy
sic

al 
wo

rk 
dis

ap
pe

ar.
 W

om
en

 

oft
en

 ba
lan

ce
 se

ve
ral

 pa
rt-

tim
e, 

ins
ec

ure
 jo

bs
, a

s w
ell

 as
 pr

ov
idi

ng
 th

e m
ain

 ca
rin

g r
ole

 

at 
ho

me
. In

 H
old

for
ths

 an
d C

lyd
es

, 4
1%

 of
 re

sid
en

ts 
ha

ve
 no

 qu
ali

fic
ati

on
s a

nd
 82

% 
of 

low
-

inc
om

e f
am

ilie
s e

arn
 le

ss
 th

an
 £1

5,0
00

 pe
r y

ea
r. O

ne
 in

 fo
ur

 re
sid

en
ts 

liv
es

 in
 a 

fla
t, a

nd
 a 

hig
h 

pro
po

rtio
n o

f r
es

ide
nts

 re
nt.

 

Th
is 

is 
a d

ive
rse

 po
pu

lat
ion

, w
ith

 14
% 

of 
res

ide
nts

 bo
rn

 ou
tsi

de
 th

e U
K. 

Th
ere

 is
 si

gn
ific

an
t a

nti
-

so
cia

l b
eh

av
iou

r l
ink

ed
 to

 co
mm

un
ity

 te
ns

ion
s a

nd
 th

e g
row

th 
of 

ne
w 

co
mm

un
itie

s.  
Un

de
r-r

ep
or

tin
g 

of 
cr

im
e 

re
m

ain
s a

n 
iss

ue
. T

he
re

 a
re

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 h

ea
lth

 ch
all

en
ge

s t
oo

, 

pa
rti

cu
lar

ly 
ar

ou
nd

 d
ru

gs
 a

nd
 a

lco
ho

l. T
he

 m
ale

 su
ici

de
 ra

te 
is 

th
e 

hig
he

st 
for

 th
e 

cit
y, 

lin
ke

d 
to 

hig
h 

lev
els

 o
f m

en
tal

 il
l h

ea
lth

. T
he

re
 a

re
 g

ap
s i

n 
co

m
m

un
ity

 in
fra

str
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 

co
m

m
un

ity
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t, a
nd

 so
cia

l i
so

lat
ion

 is
 a

 p
ro

ble
m

.

Ho
we

ve
r, 

th
er

e 
is 

po
sit

ive
 ch

an
ge

 e
m

er
gin

g. 
A 

ne
w 

co
m

m
un

ity
 ce

nt
re

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
bu

ilt
 

alo
ng

sid
e 

th
e 

ex
ist

ing
 o

ne
. N

ew
 W

or
tle

y C
om

m
un

ity
 C

en
tre

 w
as

 a
nn

ou
nc

ed
 a

s L
ee

ds
 C

ity
 

Co
un

cil
 P

ar
tn

er
 o

f t
he

 Ye
ar

 a
t a

n 
aw

ar
ds

 ce
re

m
on

y i
n 

No
ve

m
be

r 2
01

7. 
Th

e 
fou

r t
ow

er
 

blo
ck

s h
av

e 
re

ce
ive

d 
m

ajo
r i

nv
es

tm
en

t t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ph
ys

ica
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 sa
fet

y, 

as
 w

ell
 a

s p
ro

vid
ing

 so
cia

l s
up

po
rt 

to 
th

e 
m

os
t v

ul
ne

ra
ble

 te
na

nt
s (

se
e 

lat
er

 ca
se

 st
ud

y, 

p.4
6)

. T
he

re
 is

 p
ote

nt
ial

 to
 h

ar
ne

ss
 su

rro
un

din
g 

co
un

cil
 la

nd
 a

nd
 a

ss
ets

 to
 d

riv
e 

ec
on

om
ic 

inv
es

tm
en

t i
n 

th
e 

ar
ea

. T
he

re
 is

 a
lso

 sc
op

e 
for

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 in

fra
str

uc
tu

re
 ch

an
ge

s a
t 

Ar
m

ley
 g

yra
tor

y t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

co
nn

ec
tiv

ity
 to

 th
e 

cit
y c

en
tre

. It
 is

 h
op

ed
 th

at 
th

es
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

wi
ll 

he
lp 

to 
dr

ive
 fo

rw
ar

d 
an

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
he

alt
h 

an
d 

we
llb

ein
g.  

th
e 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
fo

r L
ee

ds
. W

hi
le

 th
is

 m
ig

ht
 

be
 fa

m
ili

ar
, t

he
 im

po
rt

an
ce

 li
es

 in
 th

e 
di

re
ct

io
n 

of
 tr

av
el

. T
o 

re
pe

at
, i

n 
te

rm
s 

of
 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
le

ve
ls

 o
f d

ep
riv

at
io

n 
be

in
g 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 b

y 
so

m
e 

of
 o

ur
 c

om
m

un
it

ie
s,

 
w

e 
ar

e 
no

w
 g

oi
ng

 in
 th

e 
w

ro
ng

 d
ire

ct
io

n.
 

sh
ow

 is
 th

e 
di

sp
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 im

pa
ct

 fo
r 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 g

ro
up

s 
w

ho
 fa

ce
 e

xc
lu

si
on

 
fr

om
 th

e 
la

bo
ur

 m
ar

ke
t,

 fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e 

di
sa

bl
ed

 p
eo

pl
e,

 w
om

en
 a

nd
 e

th
ni

c 
m

in
or

it
ie

s.

14
% 

of
 re

si
de

nt
s 

bo
rn

  
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
U

K

41
% 

of
 re

si
de

nt
s 

ha
ve

  

36
% 

of
 re

si
de

nt
s 

ar
e 

un
em

pl
oy

ed

HO
LD
FO
RT
HS
 A
ND
 C
LY
DES

CA
SE

 ST
UD

Y

Page 44



  

13

12

Th
e 

In
cl

us
iv

e 
G

ro
w

th
 C

om
m

is
si

on
 

ar
gu

es
 th

at
 a

 ‘g
ro

w
 n

ow
, r

e-
di

st
rib

ut
e 

la
te

r’ 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 is

 fa
ili

ng
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 th
os

e 
w

ho
 a

re
 o

ut
 o

f 
w

or
k 

or
 in

 lo
w

-p
ai

d 
jo

bs
. E

co
no

m
ic

 
gr

ow
th

 h
as

 b
ec

om
e 

de
-c

ou
pl

ed
 fr

om
 

po
ve

rt
y.

 In
 o

th
er

 w
or

ds
, t

he
 n

at
io

n 
is

 
ge

tt
in

g 
ric

he
r b

ut
 m

an
y 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ev
er

. T
o 

ta
ck

le
 th

is
, w

e 
ne

ed
 a

 n
ew

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 th

at
 c

om
bi

ne
s 

so
ci

al
 a

nd
 

ec
on

om
ic

 p
ol

ic
y.

So
 y

es
, t

he
re

 n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

in
 b

us
in

es
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
, 

ye
s,

 th
er

e 
m

us
t b

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

 h
ig

h-
cl

as
s 

tr
an

sp
or

t, 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
di

gi
ta

l i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

su
ch

 a
s 

fa
st

er
 b

ro
ad

ba
nd

 to
 c

on
ne

ct
 la

bo
ur

 
m

ar
ke

ts
 to

 e
co

no
m

ic
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
. 

Bu
t w

ha
t i

s 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

is
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

f p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 p

la
ce

s 
or

 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
ds

 a
re

 n
ot

 a
bl

e 
to

 

be
ca

us
e 

th
e 

sk
ill

s 
ba

se
 is

 to
o 

lo
w

, o
r 

be
ca

us
e 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ex
 s

oc
ia

l 
is

su
es

 a
ct

 a
s 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n.

 
Ec

on
om

ic
 in

ve
st

m
en

t a
lo

ne
 is

 
no

t e
no

ug
h.

 W
e 

ne
ed

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 

th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 a
nd

 c
ap

ab
ili

tie
s 

of
 

in
di

vi
du

al
s,

 fa
m

ili
es

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 

to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
m

or
e 

fu
lly

 in
 e

co
no

m
ic

 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 in
 s

oc
ie

ty
. 

G
et

tin
g 

ba
ck

 to
 L

ee
ds

, w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

e 
In

cl
us

iv
e 

G
ro

w
th

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
in

 th
e 

Be
st

 C
ou

nc
il 

Pl
an

 n
ot

 
on

ly
 p

ow
er

s t
he

 w
ho

le
 c

ity
 fo

rw
ar

d 
bu

t a
ls

o 
re

ve
rs

es
 th

e 
w

or
se

ni
ng

 
so

ci
o-

ec
on

om
ic

 p
os

iti
on

 in
 m

an
y 

of
 

ou
r n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s.
 W

e 
m

us
t a

do
pt

 
a 

pe
rs

pe
ct

iv
e 

th
at

 in
cl

ud
es

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 g

ro
w

th
 a

s w
el

l a
s d

ry
 n

um
be

rs
. 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

in
 te

rm
s o

f o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s,
 

ba
rr

ie
rs

, s
ki

lls
, e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 li

vi
ng

 
st

an
da

rd
s –

 a
nd

 m
ak

e 
su

re
 th

at
 o

ur
 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

RE
C
O
M
M
EN
D
AT
IO
N

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 id
en

ti
fy

 
a 

br
oa

d 
ra

ng
e 

of
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 to
 

as
se

ss
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

on
 In

cl
us

iv
e 

G
ro

w
th

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ne
w

 
In

cl
us

iv
e 

G
ro

w
th

 S
tr

at
eg

y,
 

an
d 

po
pu

la
ti

on
s 

w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

ci
ty

.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

Th
er

e 
is

 g
ro

w
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 c
on

ce
rn

 
ab

ou
t t

he
 v

al
ue

s o
f b

ig
 b

us
in

es
s.

 F
or

 
ex

am
pl

e,
 S

ta
rb

uc
ks

 o
nl

y 
re

po
rt

ed
 

up
 to

 2
01

3 
in

 th
e 

U
K.

 D
es

pi
te

 a
nn

ua
l 

U
K 

sa
le

s o
f £

40
0m

, S
ta

rb
uc

ks
 

di
dn

’t 
pa

y 
an

y 
co

rp
or

at
io

n 
ta

x 
at

 a
ll 

to
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
or

 fo
ur

 y
ea

rs
 

pr
io

r t
o 

20
13

. T
he

 P
ub

lic
 A

cc
ou

nt
s 

be
lie

ve
 S

ta
rb

uc
ks

 w
as

 tr
ad

in
g 

w
ith

 
ap

pa
re

nt
 lo

ss
es

 fo
r n

ea
rly

 e
ve

ry
 y

ea
r 

of
 it

s o
pe

ra
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

U
K’

. P
er

ha
ps

 
w

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

gr
at

ef
ul

 th
at

 th
e 

13
 

St
ar

bu
ck

s o
ut

le
ts

 in
 L

ee
ds

 su
rv

iv
e!

 
A

lo
ng

sid
e 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r g

re
at

er
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
or

ki
ng

 to
 h

el
p 

fo
st

er
 

so
ci

al
 re

sp
on

sib
ili

ty
 o

n 
th

e 
pa

rt
 o

f 
bu

sin
es

se
s,

 w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 se

ek
 o

ut
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r e

nt
er

pr
ise

, in
no

va
tio

n 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t t
o 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 e
co

no
m

y, 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 se
ct

or
 

ec
on

om
y a

nd
 th

e 
so

ci
al

 e
co

no
m

y.
Th

is
 is

 w
ha

t w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 se

e 
ha

pp
en

in
g 

in
 o

ur
 m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s:
• 

In
cl

us
iv

e 
G

ro
w

th
 th

at
 c

on
sc

io
us

ly
 

fo
cu

se
s c

om
m

itm
en

t a
nd

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
on

 d
ep

riv
ed

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
pr

io
rit

y 
gr

ow
th

 se
ct

or
s 

in
 th

e 
ci

ty
 e

.g
. d

ig
it

al
, c

ul
tu

re
.

• 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f t
he

 p
hy

si
ca

l 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

tr
an

sp
or

t,
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 d

ig
it

al
 

se
rv

ic
es

 c
on

ne
ct

 to
 jo

b 
gr

ow
th

.
• 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

he
 s

oc
ia

l 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

ea
rl

y 
ye

ar
s 

su
pp

or
t,

 e
du

ca
ti

on
, 

sk
ill

s,
 li

fe
-l

on
g 

le
ar

ni
ng

, 
ca

re
er

s 
ad

vi
ce

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

it
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t e

na
bl

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 
fa

m
ili

es
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
it

ie
s 

to
 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
e 

m
or

e 
fu

lly
 b

ot
h 

in
 

so
ci

et
y 

an
d 

in
 e

co
no

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

.
• 

Pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 fa
m

ily
-f

rie
nd

ly
, 

se
cu

rit
y,

 jo
b 

pr
og

re
ss

io
n 

an
d 

a 
he

al
th

-p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

w
or

kp
la

ce
.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

RE
C
O
M
M
EN
D
AT
IO
N

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 it
s 

ne
w

 L
ee

ds
 In

cl
us

iv
e 

G
ro

w
th

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
im

pr
ov

es
  

th
e 

so
ci

o-
ec

on
om

ic
 p

os
it

io
n 

of
 th

e 
m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 10

%
 

co
m

m
un

it
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

ci
ty

.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

Th
e 
H
ea

lth
 

&
 W

el
lb
ei
ng

 
Pr
io
rit

y
I h

av
e 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
m

y 
co

nc
er

n 
 

ab
ou

t t
he

 d
et

er
io

ra
tin

g 
 

po
si

tio
n 

fo
r m

an
y 

of
 o

ur
 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
. A

nd
 I 

ho
pe

  
I h

av
e 

m
ad

e 
th

e 
ca

se
 th

at
  

w
e 

ne
ed

 In
cl

us
iv

e 
G

ro
w

th
  

to
 h

el
p 

re
ve

rs
e 

th
at

. 
  H

ow
ev

er
,  

m
y 

se
co

nd
  

co
nc

er
n 

is
  

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
 

 
th

ro
ug

h 
 

 
ha

vi
ng

 k
no

ck
-o

n 
 

co
ns

eq
ue

nc
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

he
al

th
 o

f o
ur

  
po

pu
la

ti
on

. T
he

 s
im

pl
es

t  
w

ay
 to

 s
ta

rt
 is

 to
 lo

ok
 a

t l
ife

 

ex
pe

ct
an

cy
 h

as
 d

ro
pp

ed
 to

 8
2 

ye
ar

s 
1 

m
on

th
 –

 a
 d

ro
p 

of
 a

ro
un

d 
2.

5 
m

on
th

s.
Th

is
 is

 n
ot

 w
he

re
 w

e 
w

an
t t

o 
be

 a
s 

a 
ci

ty
. N

ow
, it

 m
us

t b
e 

sa
id

 th
at

 th
is 

dr
op

 

w
ill

 im
pr

ov
e 

ne
xt

 ti
m

e 
ar

ou
nd

. I
 w

ill
 

th
en

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
ve

d 
to

 b
e 

al
ar

m
ist

. 
H

ow
ev

er
, I

 a
m

 v
er

y 
co

nc
er

ne
d 

at
 

w
ha

t l
ie

s 
be

ne
at

h 
th

is
 a

pp
ar

en
t s

te
p 

ba
ck

w
ar

ds
 in

 th
e 

he
al

th
 o

f f
em

al
es

 in
 

ou
r c

ity
. I

 a
m

 a
ls

o 
co

nc
er

ne
d 

th
at

 th
e 

ga
p 

fo
r w

om
en

 li
vi

ng
 in

 th
e 

de
pr

iv
ed

 
pa

rt
s 

of
 L

ee
ds

 a
nd

 th
e 

re
st

 o
f L

ee
ds

 
ha

s 
w

or
se

ne
d 

by
 a

bo
ut

 s
ix

 m
on

th
s,

 
to

 4
 y

ea
rs

 8
 m

on
th

s.

at
 7

8 
ye

ar
s 

4 
m

on
th

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, h

er
e 

al
so

 th
e 

ga
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
os

e 
liv

in
g 

in
 d

ep
riv

ed
 L

ee
ds

 a
nd

 th
e 

re
st

 o
f 

Le
ed

s 
ha

s 
w

or
se

ne
d 

by
 a

bo
ut

 th
re

e 
m

on
th

s,
 to

 5
 y

ea
rs

 5
 m

on
th

s.

Th
e 

re
su

lt
 o

f t
hi

s 
is

 th
at

 li
fe

 
ex

pe
ct

an
cy

 fo
r b

ot
h 

m
al

es
 a

nd
 

fe
m

al
es

 in
 o

ur
 c

it
y 

is
 fa

lli
ng

 fu
rt

he
r 

be
hi

nd
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

 w
ho

le
. T

he
 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
no

w
 is

 to
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
w

ha
t l

ie
s 

be
hi

nd
 th

is
 g

lo
om

y 
pi

ct
ur

e.

in
 fe

m
al

e 
lif

e 
ex

pe
ct

an
cy

 a
nd

 th
e 

st
ag

na
tio

n 
of

 m
al

e 
lif

e 
ex

pe
ct

an
cy

 is
 

no
t d

ow
n 

to
 o

ur
 m

aj
or

 k
ill

er
s o

f c
ar

di
o-

va
sc

ul
ar

 d
ise

as
e,

 re
sp

ira
to

ry
 d

ise
as

e 
an

d 
ca

nc
er

. W
e 

m
us

t l
oo

k 
el

se
w

he
re

. 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 ro

le
 w

ill
 b

e 
of

 c
rit

ic
al

 im
po

rt
an

ce
.  

In
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
17

, C
llr

 Ju
di

th
 B

la
ke

, l
ea

de
r o

f L
ee

ds
 C

it
y 

Co
un

ci
l, 

 s
ai

d 
th

is
 to

 th
e 

In
cl

us
iv

e 
G

ro
w

th
 C

om
m

is
si

on
: 

Le
ed

s h
as
 b
ee

n 
wo

rk
in
g 
in
 a
 n
ew

 w
ay
 a
s a

 c
ity

, a
sk
in
g 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t t
o 
be

co
m
e 
m
or
e 
en

te
rp
ris

in
g,
 

bu
sin

es
s t

o 
be

 m
or
e 
ci
vi
c 
an

d 
ci
tiz

en
s t

o 
be

co
m
e 

m
or
e 
en

ga
ge

d.
 T
hi
s ‒

 a
s O

fs
te
d 
ha

s r
ec

og
ni
se
d 

‒ 
ha

s t
ra
ns
fo
rm

ed
 o
ur
 C

hi
ld
re
n’
s S

er
vi
ce

s. 
W
e’
ve

 
es
ta
bl
ish

ed
 o
ur
 o
pe

n 
‘L
ea

de
rs
 fo

r L
ee

ds
’ n

et
wo

rk
 

to
 a
dd

re
ss
 m

aj
or
 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 a
cr
os
s o

ur
 c
ity

. T
he

 
ne

xt
 st

ep
 is
 to

 se
e 
th
is 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 fr

om
 th

e 
ba

sis
 o
f 

ev
en

 m
or
e 
pr
od

uc
tiv

e 
ci
ty
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s t

ha
t h

av
e 

th
e 
po

we
r t

o 
wo

rk
 to

ge
th
er
, w

ith
ou

t c
re
at
in
g 
ne

w 
bu

re
au

cr
ac

ie
s a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t b
oa

rd
s.

Le
as

t d
ep

riv
ed

 

Th
e 

ca
ll 

fo
r b

us
in

es
s 

to
 b

e 
m

or
e 

ci
vi

c 
is

 to
 b

e 
w

el
co

m
ed

. B
us

in
es

se
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

nc
er

ne
d 

no
t j

us
t w

it
h 

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g 

to
 th

e 
qu

al
it

y 
of

 li
fe

 o
f 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

it
ie

s 
ar

ou
nd

 th
em

. 

 
Fe

m
al

e 
lif

e 
ex

pe
ct

an
cy

  
 do

wn
 by

 

2.5
 mt
hs 

 
 

 

sta
tic

Le
ed

s 
as

 a
 w

ho
le

Page 45



15

14

IN
FA
N
T 
M
O
RT
AL
IT
Y 
RA
TE
 L
EE
D
S

9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 0
20

04
 

20
05

 
20

06
 

20
07

 
20

08
 

20
09

 
20

10
 

20
11

 
20

12
 

20
13

20
06

 
20

07
 

20
08

 
20

09
 

20
10

 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15

3-
ye

ar
 a

gg
re

ga
te

 p
er

io
ds

D
ep

riv
ed

N
ot

 D
ep

riv
ed

Le
ed

s

Rate – Per 1000 live births

In
fa
nt
 m

or
ta
lit
y 

an
d 
lif
e 

ex
pe

ct
an

cy
In

fa
nt

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
is

 th
e 

de
at

h 
of

 a
 

bi
rt

hd
ay

. T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

a 
dr

am
at

ic
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 in
fa

nt
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

in
 

Le
ed

s 
ov

er
 th

e 
la

st
 15

0 
ye

ar
s.

 In
de

ed
, 

th
e 

de
cl

in
e 

in
 in

fa
nt

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
is

 th
e 

cl
ea

re
st

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 m

ad
e 

in
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

he
al

th
 o

f o
ur

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

 W
e 

w
en

t 

dy
in

g 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

ag
e 

of
 o

ne
 y

ea
r i

n 
th

e 
18

70
s 

to
 o

ne
 in

 2
50

 b
ab

ie
s.

 W
e 

ha
d 

a 
re

co
rd

 lo
w

 in
fa

nt
 m

or
ta

lit
y,

 
ev

en
 b

el
ow

 th
e 

En
gl

an
d 

ra
te

. W
e 

w
er

e 
al

so
 a

bl
e 

to
 n

ar
ro

w
 th

e 
ga

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 a

nd
 

le
as

t d
ep

riv
ed

 c
om

m
un

it
ie

s.
 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 in

fa
nt

 m
or

ta
lit

y.
 T

he
re

 
w

er
e 

48
 in

fa
nt

 d
ea

th
s 

in
 2

01
5 

– 
ou

r 
hi

gh
es

t n
um

be
r s

in
ce

 2
00

9.
 

In
fa

nt
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

ha
s 

a 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

bi
g 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
lif

e 
ex

pe
ct

an
cy

. T
hi

s 
is

 
be

ca
us

e 
th

at
 c

hi
ld

, t
ra

gi
ca

lly
, h

as
 

lo
st

 s
o 

m
an

y 
ye

ar
s 

of
 p

ot
en

tia
l l

ife
. 

A
lt

ho
ug

h 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 n
um

be
r o

f L
ee

ds
 

m
ay

 s
ee

m
 s

m
al

l a
t 4

8,
 th

is
 re

ce
nt

 
in

cr
ea

se
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

fo
r a

bo
ut

 h
al

f t
he

 
de

cl
in

e 
in

 li
fe

 e
xp

ec
ta

nc
y 

fo
r f

em
al

es
 

to
 th

e 
st

ag
na

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
m

al
e 

lif
e 

ex
pe

ct
an

cy
. A

lt
ho

ug
h 

it 
is

 im
po

rt
an

t 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

of
 in

fa
nt

 d
ea

th
 to

 li
fe

 e
xp

ec
ta

nc
y,

 
gi

ve
n 

th
e 

sm
al

l n
um

be
rs

 I 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 

se
le

ct
ed

 in
fa

nt
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

as
 a

 m
aj

or
 

th
em

e 
of

 th
is

 re
po

rt
. H

ow
ev

er
, I

 
w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 to
 s

ay
 s

om
et

hi
ng

 a
bo

ut
 

th
e 

w
or

k 
th

at
 L

ee
ds

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
do

in
g 

in
 th

is
 k

ey
 a

re
a 

be
fo

re
 m

ov
in

g 
on

 to
 

th
e 

th
em

es
 I 

ha
ve

 c
ho

se
n 

to
 e

xp
lo

re
 

in
 m

or
e 

de
ta

il.
 

Le
ed

s 
ha

s 
a 

ve
ry

 a
ct

iv
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 w

or
k 

ar
ou

nd
 in

fa
nt

 m
or

ta
lit

y.
 

Th
is

 w
or

k 
be

ga
n 

ne
ar

ly
 10

 y
ea

rs
 a

go
, 

w
he

n 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f b

ab
ie

s 
dy

in
g 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r w
as

 a
pp

ro
ac

hi
ng

 6
0.

 T
he

 
de

cl
in

e 
in

 in
fa

nt
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

in
 L

ee
ds

 

ov
er

 th
e 

co
ur

se
 o

f t
he

 la
st

 10
 y

ea
rs

, 
th

e 
Le

ed
s 

ra
te

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
fa

lli
ng

 fa
st

er
 

th
an

 th
e 

na
ti

on
al

 ra
te

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
m

os
t 

– 
to

 th
os

e 
48

 d
ea

th
s 

in
 2

01
5.

W
hy

 h
as

 L
ee

ds
 b

ee
n 

so
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l 
in

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

in
fa

nt
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

to
 

da
te

? 
In

 2
00

2,
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
se

t a
 n

at
io

na
l t

ar
ge

t t
o 

re
du

ce
 

in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

in
 in

fa
nt

 m
or

ta
lit

y:

St
ar
tin

g 
wi
th
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
un

de
r 

on
e 
ye
ar
, b

y 
20

10
 to

 re
du

ce
 

by
 a
t l
ea
st
 1
0%

 th
e 
ga
p 
in
 

m
or
ta
lit
y 
be

tw
ee
n 
th
e 
ro
ut
in
e 

an
d 
m
an

ua
l g

ro
up

 a
nd

 th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
as
 a
 w
ho

le
.

Sa
dl

y,
 d

es
pi

te
 th

is
 ta

rg
et

, a
 n

at
io

na
l 

re
vi

ew
 in

 2
00

7 
sh

ow
ed

 th
at

 b
ig

 

am
on

g 
43

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

w
it

h 
a 

hi
gh

er
 n

um
be

r o
f i

nf
an

t d
ea

th
s.

 
Le

ed
s 

ro
se

 to
 th

e 
ch

al
le

ng
e,

 
br

in
gi

ng
 to

ge
th

er
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

fr
om

 
ac

ro
ss

 s
ec

to
rs

, u
nd

er
 P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lt
h 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
, t

o 
la

un
ch

 th
e 

Le
ed

s 

D
ra

w
in

g 
on

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
ev

id
en

ce
 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
ga

p,
 L

ee
ds

 c
ol

le
ct

iv
el

y 

su
ch

 a
s:

 re
du

ci
ng

 s
m

ok
in

g 
du

rin
g 

pr
eg

na
nc

y 
an

d 
in

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s;

 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 b
re

as
tf

ee
di

ng
; a

dd
re

ss
in

g 
ch

ild
 p

ov
er

ty
; r

ed
uc

in
g 

te
en

ag
e 

pr
eg

na
nc

y 
an

d 
su

pp
or

ti
ng

 te
en

ag
e 

pa
re

nt
s;

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
m

at
er

na
l 

nu
tr

it
io

n;
 a

ct
io

ns
 to

 re
du

ce
 

su
dd

en
 in

fa
nt

 d
ea

th
 –

 a
nd

 m
an

y 
m

or
e.

 T
hi

s 
pr

ev
en

ta
ti

ve
 a

ge
nd

a 
w

as
 w

id
el

y 
em

br
ac

ed
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
ci

ty
 b

y 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
r, 

th
e 

th
ird

 
se

ct
or

 a
nd

 b
y 

co
m

m
un

it
ie

s 
at

 
lo

ca
l l

ev
el

 in
 tw

o 
hi

gh
ly

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l 

‘d
em

on
st

ra
ti

on
 s

it
es

’ i
n 

Ch
ap

el
to

w
n 

an
d 

Be
es

to
n 

H
ill

. T
he

 n
ar

ro
w

in
g 

of
 

th
e 

ga
p 

in
 L

ee
ds

, a
t a

 ti
m

e 
w

he
n 

th
e 

po
pu

la
ti

on
 o

f w
om

en
 g

iv
in

g 
bi

rt
h 

in
 

th
e 

ci
ty

 w
as

 b
ec

om
in

g 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 

m
ob

ile
, c

om
pl

ex
 a

nd
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e,
 

is
 a

 te
st

am
en

t t
o 

th
e 

en
er

gy
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
it

m
en

t o
f a

ll 
th

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
. 

sh
ow

 a
 s

im
ila

r t
re

nd
 in

 s
om

e 
of

 
th

e 
ot

he
r c

or
e 

ci
ti

es
, a

lt
ho

ug
h 

no
t 

na
ti

on
al

ly
. W

e 
ca

n 
on

ly
 s

pe
cu

la
te

 
on

 th
e 

re
as

on
s 

fo
r t

he
 o

ve
ra

ll 
ris

e 
an

d 
th

e 
w

id
en

in
g 

of
 th

e 
ga

p,
 d

es
pi

te
 

re
ce

ss
io

n 
m

ak
es

 fa
m

ili
es

 m
or

e 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 a
nd

 a
ls

o 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 
th

e 
qu

an
ti

ty
 a

nd
 d

ep
th

 o
f p

ub
lic

 
an

d 
th

ird
-s

ec
to

r s
er

vi
ce

s.
 T

hi
s 

is
 

de
sp

it
e 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
at

te
m

pt
s 

to
 fo

cu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
n 

th
os

e 
in

 g
re

at
es

t n
ee

d.
In

 re
ce

nt
 y

ea
rs

, L
ee

ds
 h

as
 b

ro
ad

en
ed

 
it

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 in
fa

nt
 m

or
ta

lit
y.

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 a

do
pt

ed
 a

 B
es

t S
ta

rt
 

pr
io

rit
y 

w
hi

ch
 s

pa
ns

 th
e 

pe
rio

d 
fr

om
 c

on
ce

pt
io

n 
to

 th
e 

ch
ild

’s
 

se
co

nd
 b

irt
hd

ay
, a

ls
o 

kn
ow

n 
as

 

is
 a

 p
rio

rit
y 

in
 th

e 
Le

ed
s 

H
ea

lt
h 

&
 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y.

 T
he

 L
ee

ds
 B

es
t 

St
ar

t P
la

n 
20

15
–1

98
 b

ui
ld

s 
on

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 e
vi

de
nc

e-
ba

se
d 

ac
tio

ns
, 

bu
t e

xt
en

ds
 th

is
 to

 c
on

si
de

r k
ey

 
as

pe
ct

s 
of

 e
ar

ly
 li

fe
 th

at
 w

ill
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

so
ci

al
 a

nd
 e

m
ot

io
na

l c
ap

ac
ity

 a
nd

 
co

gn
iti

ve
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

su
ch

 a
s 

pa
re

nt
in

g,
 a

tt
ac

hm
en

t a
nd

 b
on

di
ng

, 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n.
 O

nc
e 

ag
ai

n,
 

st
ro

ng
 c

ity
-w

id
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 li
e 

at
 

th
e 

he
ar

t o
f B

es
t S

ta
rt

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

t 
lo

ca
l l

ev
el

 in
 o

ur
 B

es
t S

ta
rt

 Z
on

es
. 

Th
es

e 
w

ill
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 w

e 
ca

n 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
hu

ge
 re

tu
rn

 
in

 p
ot

en
tia

l o
ut

co
m

es
 fo

r f
ut

ur
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

ns
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 o
ur

 c
ity

.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

RE
C
O
M
M
EN
D
AT
IO
N

Th
e 

Le
ed

s 
Be

st
 S

ta
rt

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
G

ro
up

 to
 h

el
p 

en
su

re
 th

at
 

pa
re

nt
s 

ar
e 

w
el

l p
re

pa
re

d 
fo

r 
pr

eg
na

nc
y 

an
d 

th
at

 fa
m

ili
es

 

ea
rl

y 
an

d 
su

pp
or

te
d.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

8 
 L

ee
ds

 C
it

y 
Co

un
ci

l, 
Le

ed
s b

es
t s

ta
rt

 p
la

n 
20

15
 –

20
19

ht
tp

:/
/d

em
oc

ra
cy

.le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

/d
oc

um
en

ts
/s

12
68

45
/1

0%
20

2%
20

Be
st

%
20

St
ar

t%
20

Pl
an

 
%

20
lo

ng
%

20
ve

rs
io

n%
20

FI
N

A
L%

20
VE

RS
IO

N
%

20
fo

r%
20

H
W

B%
20

Bo
ar

d%
20

4%
20

2%
20

20
15

.p
df

48 in
fa

nt
 d

ea
th

s 
 

in
 L

ee
ds

Page 46



17

16

10
Th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lth
 b

ur
de

n 
of

 a
lc

oh
ol

: a
n 

ev
id

en
ce

 re
vi

ew
 

 
ht

tp
s:

//
w

w
w

.g
ov

.u
k/

go
ve

rn
m

en
t/

pu
bl

ic
at

io
ns

/t
he

-p
ub

lic
-h

ea
lt

h-
bu

rd
en

-o
f-

al
co

ho
l-

ev
id

en
ce

-r
ev

ie
w

11
et

 a
l

G
lo

ba
l h

ea
lth

 ri
sk

s:
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

an
d 

bu
rd

en
 o

f d
is

ea
se

 a
tt

rib
ut

ab
le

 to
 s

el
ec

te
d 

m
aj

or
 ri

sk
s,

 G
en

ev
a:

 W
H

O
 

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.w

ho
.in

t/
he

al
th

in
fo

/g
lo

ba
l_

bu
rd

en
_d

is
ea

se
/G

lo
ba

lH
ea

lt
hR

is
ks

_r
ep

or
t_

fu
ll.

pd
f

12
St

at
is

tic
s 

on
 A

lc
oh

ol
  h

tt
ps

:/
/w

w
w

.a
lc

oh
ol

co
nc

er
n.

or
g.

uk
/a

lc
oh

ol
-s

ta
ti

st
ic

s

9
Br

iti
sh

 M
ed

ic
al

 Jo
ur

na
l 3

57
: j

16
76

W
ha

t o
th
er
 

tr
en

ds
 sh

ou
ld
 

co
nc

er
n 
us
?

If 
in

fa
nt

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
ac

co
un

ts
 fo

r 
ha

lf
 th

e 
po

or
er

 p
os

it
io

n 
ar

ou
nd

 li
fe

 
ex

pe
ct

an
cy

, a
nd

 if
 c

ar
di

ov
as

cu
la

r 
di

se
as

e,
 c

an
ce

r a
nd

 re
sp

ira
to

ry
 

di
se

as
e 

ar
e 

no
t r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 fo

r t
he

 
ot

he
r h

al
f, 

th
en

 w
ha

t i
s?

Th
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 s
ug

ge
st

s 
th

at
 w

e 
ne

ed
 

to
 fo

cu
s 

ou
r c

on
ce

rn
 o

n:
• 

a 
ris

e 
in

 d
ea

th
s 

in
 m

en
 fr

om
 d

ru
g 

ov
er

do
se

• 
a 

ris
e 

in
 d

ea
th

s 
in

 w
om

en
 fr

om
 

al
co

ho
lic

 li
ve

r d
is

ea
se

.
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

tw
o 

ad
di

tio
na

l t
re

nd
s 

th
at

 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

ce
rn

 u
s.

 A
lt

ho
ug

h 
th

ey
 a

re
 

of
 m

or
ta

lit
y,

 w
e 

al
so

 n
ee

d 
to

 lo
ok

 a
t:

• 
a 

ris
e 

in
 d

ea
th

s 
in

 m
en

 fr
om

 
su

ic
id

e
• 

a 
ris

e 
in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f w
om

en
 

w
ho

 s
el

f-
ha

rm
.

Th
es

e 
ar

e 
th

e 
fo

ur
 a

re
as

 th
at

 I 
sh

al
l 

co
ve

r i
n 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
se

ct
io

ns
 o

f 
th

is
 re

po
rt

.
Re

ad
er

s 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

no
te

d 
th

at
 a

ll 
fo

ur
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
 h

ea
lt

h 
tr

en
ds

 
m

en
ti

on
ed

 a
bo

ve
 s

ho
w

 a
 g

en
de

r 

pr
op

er
ly

 a
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
ge

nd
er

 w
he

n 
w

e 
co

ns
id

er
 u

nm
et

 n
ee

ds
, a

cc
es

s 
to

 
se

rv
ic

es
, i

nt
er

ve
nt

io
ns

 o
r f

ol
lo

w
-u

p 
su

pp
or

t?
 T

he
 a

ns
w

er
 is

, n
ot

 o
ft

en
 

en
ou

gh
. 

na
ti

on
w

id
e 

fa
ilu

re
 to

 a
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 

N
H

S 
En

gl
an

d 
ha

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
44

 S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 a
cr

os
s 

En
gl

an
d 

to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

en
or

m
ou

s 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 fa
ce

d 
by

 
th

e 
N

H
S.

 L
ee

ds
 fa

lls
 w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
W

es
t 

Tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 E
ac

h 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
ha

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

pl
an

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

, 
im

pr
ov

e 
ca

re
 a

nd
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 

N
ow

, w
e 

al
re

ad
y 

kn
ow

 th
at

 m
en

 
ha

ve
 a

 p
oo

re
r l

ife
 e

xp
ec

ta
nc

y 
th

an
 

w
om

en
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
hi

gh
er

 ra
te

s 
of

 th
e 

‘b
ig

 k
ill

er
s’.

 A
cc

or
di

ng
ly

, P
ro

fe
ss

or
 

A
la

n 
W

hi
te

 a
nd

 A
m

an
da

 S
ei

m
s 

fr
om

 
Le

ed
s 

Be
ck

et
t U

ni
ve

rs
it

y,
 a

lo
ng

 w
it

h 

m
ys

el
f, 

ha
ve

 re
vi

ew
ed

 a
ll 

44
 p

la
ns

 
to

 c
he

ck
 w

he
th

er
 m

en
’s

 h
ea

lt
h 

is
 

th
e 

sh
oc

ki
ng

 d
is

co
ve

ry
 th

at
 o

nl
y 

15
 o

f t
he

se
 4

4 
m

aj
or

 p
la

ns
 e

ve
n 

m
en

ti
on

 th
at

 m
en

 h
av

e 
hi

gh
er

 
de

at
h 

ra
te

s.
 F

or
tu

na
te

ly
, t

he
 B

rit
is

h 
M

ed
ic

al
 Jo

ur
na

l h
as

 re
co

gn
is

ed
 th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 g

en
de

r g
ap

 in
 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
lt

h 
by

 p
ub

lis
hi

ng
 o

ur
 w

or
k 

to
 a

 w
id

er
 a

ud
ie

nc
e.

9  
W

e 
w

ill
 n

ow
 lo

ok
 in

 m
or

e 
de

ta
il 

at
 

th
e 

fo
ur

 a
re

as
 o

f c
on

ce
rn

, b
eg

in
ni

ng
 

w
it

h 
w

ha
t i

s 
ha

pp
en

in
g 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
ris

e 
in

 a
lc

oh
ol

-r
el

at
ed

 d
ea

th
s 

in
 

w
om

en
.

as
 a

 re
su

lt
 o

f a
lc

oh
ol

-r
el

at
ed

 d
ea

th
s 

th
an

 fr
om

 c
an

ce
rs

 o
f t

he
 lu

ng
, 

br
on

ch
us

, t
ra

ch
ea

, c
ol

on
, r

ec
tu

m
, 

br
ai

n,
 p

an
cr

ea
s,

 s
ki

n,
 o

va
ry

, k
id

ne
y,

 
st

om
ac

h,
 b

la
dd

er
 a

nd
 p

ro
st

at
e 

co
m

bi
ne

d.
10

 It
 th

er
ef

or
e 

co
m

es
 a

s 
no

 s
ur

pr
is

e 
th

at
 th

e 
W

or
ld

 H
ea

lt
h 

as
 th

e 
th

ird
 b

ig
ge

st
 g

lo
ba

l r
is

k 
fo

r 
bu

rd
en

 o
f d

is
ea

se
.11

 A
lc

oh
ol

 h
as

 

m
or

e 
th

an
 6

0 
m

ed
ic

al
 c

on
di

ti
on

s.
12

 
Le

t’s
 p

au
se

 a
nd

 th
in

k 
ab

ou
t t

ha
t f

or
 

a 
m

in
ut

e.
 It

 s
ee

m
s 

m
ad

 to
 th

in
k 

th
at

 
a 

su
bs

ta
nc

e 
th

at
 c

an
 c

au
se

 s
o 

m
uc

h 
ha

rm
 is

 s
ti

ll 
w

id
el

y 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

– 
bu

t i
t 

is
, a

nd
 th

is
 is

 u
nl

ik
el

y 
to

 c
ha

ng
e.

 
Th

e 
U

K 
ha

s 
a 

lo
ng

 h
is

to
ry

 w
it

h 
al

co
ho

l. 
A

s 
fa

r b
ac

k 
as

 17
51

, t
he

 
ar

ti
st

 W
ill

ia
m

 H
og

ar
th

 w
as

 m
ak

in
g 

a 
vi

su
al

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

al
co

ho
l 

an
d 

po
ve

rt
y,

 c
rim

e 
an

d 
ur

ba
n 

of
 c

om
m

er
ce

 a
nd

 ta
xa

ti
on

 o
n 

th
e 

po
or

, i
n 

hi
s 

sa
ti

ric
al

 im
ag

es
 G

in
 L

an
e 

an
d 

Be
er

 S
tr

ee
t.

 A
ll 

of
 th

is
 s

ti
ll 

rin
gs

 
tr

ue
 to

da
y.

 P
ub

lic
 h

ea
lt

h 
ha

s 
m

ad
e 

hu
ge

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
si

nc
e 

th
e 

ei
gh

te
en

th
 

ce
nt

ur
y,

 b
ut

 a
lc

oh
ol

 h
ar

m
 is

 s
ti

ll 
w

it
h 

us
. U

nl
ik

e 
20

0 
ye

ar
s 

ag
o,

 
th

ou
gh

, w
e 

no
w

 k
no

w
 a

 lo
t m

or
e 

ab
ou

t w
ha

t c
au

se
s 

th
es

e 
ha

rm
s.

AL
C
O
H
O
L-
RE
LA
TE
D
 

M
O
RT
AL
IT
Y 
IN
 W
O
M
EN

Page 47



19

W
ha

t i
s t

he
 st

or
y?

Ev
id

en
ce

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

s 
a 

cl
ea

r 
re

la
ti

on
sh

ip
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

vo
lu

m
e 

of
 a

lc
oh

ol
 co

ns
um

ed
 a

nd
 th

e 
ris

k 
of

 
a 

gi
ve

n 
ha

rm
. A

s 
th

e 
al

co
ho

l d
os

e 
in

cr
ea

se
s,

 s
o 

do
es

 th
e 

ris
k.

 T
he

 

th
e 

ris
k 

of
 h

ar
m

. R
ep

ea
te

d 
he

av
y 

dr
in

ki
ng

 is
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 a

lc
oh

ol
 

de
pe

nd
en

ce
,13

 w
he

re
as

 a
 si

ng
le

 b
ou

t o
f 

he
av

y d
rin

ki
ng

 –
 so

-c
al

le
d 

bi
ng

e 
dr

in
ki

ng
 

– 
is 

as
so

cia
te

d 
w

ith
 a

lc
oh

ol
-r

el
at

ed
 

cr
im

e,
 p

hy
sic

al
 in

ju
ry

 a
nd

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
ris

k 
of

 ca
rd

io
va

sc
ul

ar
  d

ise
as

e.
14

dr
an

k 
al

co
ho

l i
n 

20
16

, 2
7%

 o
f a

du
lt

s 

on
 th

ei
r h

ea
vi

es
t d

rin
ki

ng
 d

ay
 p

rio
r 

m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

th
an

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 a

ge
 

gr
ou

p 
to

 b
in

ge
-d

rin
k.

15
 T

hi
s 

no
t 

on
ly

 h
as

 h
ea

lt
h 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 b
ut

 
so

ci
al

 a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
 c

on
se

qu
en

ce
s 

to
o.

 H
ow

ev
er

, f
re

qu
en

t a
nd

 m
os

t 
ha

rm
fu

l d
rin

ki
ng

 te
nd

s 
to

 b
e 

am
on

g 
m

id
dl

e-
ag

ed
 p

eo
pl

e,
 w

it
h 

th
is

 a
ge

 
gr

ou
p 

of
 b

ot
h 

m
en

 a
nd

 w
om

en
 m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 d
rin

k 
ev

er
y 

da
y.

16
 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f a
du

lt
s 

co
ns

um
in

g 
al

co
ho

l a
t a

 le
ve

l p
ut

ti
ng

 th
em

 a
t 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
ris

k 
or

 a
bo

ve
 ri

se
s 

w
it

h 
ag

e,
 p

ea
ki

ng
 a

t 5
5–

64
 fo

r b
ot

h 
m

en
 

an
d 

w
om

en
.

So
ci

o-
ec

on
om

ic
 s

ta
tu

s 
is

 a
 k

ey
 

fa
ct

or
 in

 d
rin

ki
ng

 b
eh

av
io

ur
, w

it
h 

in
cr

ea
se

d-
ris

k 
dr

in
ki

ng
 a

nd
 

hi
gh

er
-r

is
k 

dr
in

ki
ng

. L
et

’s
 lo

ok
 a

t 

N
H

S 
D

ig
it

al
 H

ea
lt

h 
Su

rv
ey

 2
01

5 
re

po
rt

ed
 t

ha
t 

ad
ul

ts
 in

 h
ig

he
r-

in
co

m
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 a

re
 m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 d
rin

k 
w

ee
kl

y 
at

 le
ve

ls
 t

ha
t 

pu
t 

th
em

 a
t 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
ris

k 
th

an
 t

ho
se

 in
 

lo
w

er
-in

co
m

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

. W
om

en
 

in
 t

he
 h

ig
he

st
-in

co
m

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 
ar

e 
ov

er
 t

w
ic

e 
as

 li
ke

ly
 t

o 
be

 
dr

in
ki

ng
 a

t 
le

ve
ls

 p
re

se
nt

in
g 

an
 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
ris

k 
of

 h
ar

m
 t

ha
n 

w
om

en
 

in
 t

he
 lo

w
es

t-
in

co
m

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

.
H

ow
ev

er
, h

ig
he

r-
ris

k 
dr

in
ki

ng
 is

 
gr

ea
te

st
 in

 th
e 

lo
w

es
t-

in
co

m
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
, w

it
h 

th
e 

m
os

t 
se

ve
re

 a
lc

oh
ol

-r
el

at
ed

 h
ar

m
 

be
in

g 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 b
y 

th
os

e 
in

 th
e 

lo
w

es
t s

oc
io

-e
co

no
m

ic
 g

ro
up

s.
 

Th
is

 is
 c

al
le

d 
th

e 
‘a

lc
oh

ol
 h

ar
m

 
pa

ra
do

x’
.17

 It
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

es
ti

m
at

ed
 

m
os

t s
oc

io
-e

co
no

m
ic

al
ly

 d
ep

riv
ed

 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
ds

 a
re

 tw
o 

to
 th

re
e 

ti
m

es
 m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 d
ie

 fr
om

 a
n 

al
co

ho
l-

re
la

te
d 

co
nd

it
io

n 
th

an
 th

os
e 

liv
in

g 
in

 th
e 

le
as

t d
ep

riv
ed

 a
re

as
.18

G
en

de
r i

s 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t f
ac

to
r. 

Re
se

ar
ch

 c
on

si
st

en
tl

y 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
s 

us
e.

 T
he

 la
te

st
 s

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
hi

gh
lig

ht
 

th
at

 m
en

 a
re

 b
ot

h 
m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
th

an
 

w
om

en
 to

 b
e 

dr
in

ke
rs

 a
nd

 tw
ic

e 
as

 
lik

el
y 

to
 d

rin
k 

at
 le

ve
ls

 th
at

 p
re

se
nt

 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
ris

k 
or

 h
ig

he
r r

is
k,

 
irr

es
pe

ct
iv

e 
of

 a
ge

. H
ow

ev
er

, r
ec

en
t 

de
ca

de
s 

ha
ve

 s
ee

n 
a 

na
rr

ow
in

g 
of

 
th

e 
ga

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
m

en
 a

nd
 w

om
en

.19

19

 13
A

lc
oh

ol
-u

se
 d

iso
rd

er
s: 

N
IC

E 
gu

id
el

in
es

 o
n 

th
e 

di
ag

no
sis

, a
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f h

ar
m

fu
l d

rin
ki

ng
 a

nd
 a

lc
oh

ol
 d

ep
en

de
nc

e 
ht

tp
s:

//
w

w
w

.n
ic

e.
or

g.
uk

/g
ui

da
nc

e/
cg

11
5

14
Am

er
ica

n 
Jo

ur
na

l o
f E

pi
de

m
io

lo
gy

A
du

lt 
dr

in
ki

ng
 h

ab
its

 in
 G

re
at

 B
rit

ai
n:

 2
00

5 
to

 2
01

6 
ht

tp
s:

//
w

w
w

.o
ns

.g
ov

.u
k/

re
le

as
es

/a
du

lt
dr

in
ki

ng
ha

bi
ts

in
gr

ea
tb

rit
ai

n2
01

5
H

ea
lth

 s
ur

ve
y 

fo
r E

ng
la

nd
, 2

01
5:

 a
du

lt 
al

co
ho

l c
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
w

w
w

.c
on

te
nt

.d
ig

it
al

.n
hs

.u
k/

ca
ta

lo
gu

e/
PU

B2
26

10
/H

SE
20

15
-A

du
lt

-a
lc

.p
df

17
U

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 th
e a

lco
ho

l h
ar

m
 p

ar
ad

ox
, A

lc
oh

ol
 In

sig
ht

 12
2 

ht
tp

:/
/a

lc
oh

ol
re

se
ar

ch
uk

.o
rg

/a
lc

oh
ol

-in
sig

ht
s/

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g-
th

e-
al

co
ho

l-h
ar

m
-p

ar
ad

ox
-2

/
18

 
D

ea
co

n,
 L

 e
t a

l
 A

lc
oh

ol
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n:

 s
eg

m
en

ta
tio

n 
se

rie
s 

re
po

rt
 2

19
 

et
 a

l
Ps

yc
hi

at
ric

 C
lin

ic
s 

of
 N

or
th

 A
m

er
ic

a 

TH
E 
U
K 
C
H
IE
F 
M
ED
IC
AL
 O
FF
IC
ER
’S
 G
U
ID
EL
IN
ES
 

O
N
 A
LC
O
H
O
L 
C
O
N
SU
M
PT
IO
N
 (
20
16
)

 ca
te

go
ris

e 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

‘lo
w

 ri
sk

’ –
 m

en
 o

r w
om

en
 w

ho
 d

o 
no

t r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 d

rin
k 

 
m

or
e 

th
an

 14
 u

ni
ts

 o
f a

lc
oh

ol
 p

er
 w

ee
k

‘in
cr

ea
se

d 
ris

k’
 –

 fo
r m

en
, 1

4–
50

 u
ni

ts
 p

er
 w

ee
k;

  
fo

r w
om

en
 14

–3
5 

un
its

 p
er

 w
ee

k
‘h

ig
he

r r
is

k’
 –

 fo
r m

en
, o

ve
r 5

0 
un

its
 p

er
 w

ee
k;

  
fo

r w
om

en
, o

ve
r 3

5 
un

its
 p

er
 w

ee
k

‘h
ig

he
r r

is
k’

 –
 fo

r m
en

, o
ve

r 5
0 

un
its

 p
er

 w
ee

k;
  

fo
r w

om
en

, o
ve

r 3
5 

un
its

 p
er

 w
ee

k

O
ne

 7
50

m
l 

12
.5

%
 b

ot
tl

e 
of

 
w

in
e 

=
 9

 u
ni

ts

9 
un

it
s 

   
18

 u
ni

ts
 

 2
7 

un
it

s 
36

 u
ni

ts
 

 4
5 

un
it

s  
54

 u
ni

ts
 

63
 u

ni
ts

  

9 
un

it
s 

   
18

 u
ni

ts
 

 2
7 

un
it

s 
36

 u
ni

ts
 

 4
5 

un
it

s 
54

 u
ni

ts
 

63
 u

ni
ts

  

3r
d  

bi
gg

es
t c

on
tr

ib
ut

or
 

to
 d

is
ea

se
 b

ur
de

n 
gl

ob
al

ly
 is

 a
lc

oh
ol

60
+  

m
ed

ic
al

 c
on

di
ti

on
s 

ha
ve

 a
lc

oh
ol

 a
s 

a 
ca

us
al

 fa
ct

or

pe
r 

w
ee

k

pe
r 

w
ee

k

93
   

fe
m

al
e 

de
at

hs
 in

  
Le

ed
s 

w
er

e 
fr

om
   

   
  

of
 th

es
e 

de
at

hs
  

w
er

e 
fr

om
 a

lc
oh

ol
ic

  
liv

er
 d

is
ea

se 2x
  

as
 m

an
y 

w
om

en
 

fr
om

 d
ep

riv
ed

 L
ee

ds
 

ar
e 

ad
m

it
te

d 
to

 
ho

sp
it

al
 fo

r a
lc

oh
ol

-   

2-
3x
  

m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

 to
 d

ie
 fr

om
 a

n  
al

co
ho

l-
re

la
te

d 
di

se
as

e 
if 

yo
u 

liv
e 

in
 

a 
de

pr
iv

ed
 a

re
a 

Page 48



21

20

Le
ss

 is
 k

no
w

n 
ab

ou
t 

pr
ob

le
m

at
ic

 
al

co
ho

l u
se

 in
 w

om
en

 t
ha

n 
in

 
m

en
20

 b
ut

 w
e 

do
 k

no
w

 t
ha

t 
w

om
en

 a
cc

el
er

at
e 

fr
om

 s
ta

rt
in

g 
to

 d
ri

nk
 t

o 
pr

ob
le

m
at

ic
 u

se
 o

f 
al

co
ho

l m
uc

h 
fa

st
er

 t
ha

n 
m

en
. 

Th
is

 is
 k

no
w

n 
as

 ‘t
el

es
co

pi
ng

’. 
W

om
en

 a
ls

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
liv

er
 d

is
ea

se
 

m
or

e 
ra

pi
dl

y 
th

an
 t

he
ir

 m
al

e 
co

un
te

rp
ar

ts
21

 a
nd

 g
en

er
al

ly
 

pr
es

en
t 

fo
r t

re
at

m
en

t 
w

it
h 

a 
m

or
e 

se
ve

re
 c

lin
ic

al
 p

ro
fi

le
.

W
ha

t i
s 

ha
pp

en
in
g 
in
 

Le
ed

s?
A

 w
or

ry
in

g 
pi

ct
ur

e 
ha

s 
st

ar
te

d 
to

 
em

er
ge

 in
 L

ee
ds

 in
 re

ce
nt

 y
ea

rs
. 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 th

ei
r a

lc
oh

ol
 u

se
. 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
   
   
   
   
  A
lc
oh
ol
-s
pe
ci
fic
/   
      

 
 
   
 a
lc
oh
ol
-r
el
at
ed

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

ar
e 

co
nd

it
io

ns
 c

au
se

d 
so

le
ly

 
by

 a
lc

oh
ol

 u
se

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
ci

rr
ho

si
s 

of
 t

he
 li

ve
r, 

so
m

e 
ph

ys
ic

al
 in

ju
rie

s.
A

lc
oh

ol
-r

el
at

ed
 c

on
di

ti
on

s 
ar

e 
th

os
e 

in
 w

hi
ch

 a
lc

oh
ol

 u
se

 is
 a

 
fa

ct
or

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
so

m
e 

ca
se

s 
of

 c
ar

di
ov

as
cu

la
r d

is
ea

se
, c

an
ce

r 
an

d 
fa

lls
.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

A
dm

is
si

on
s 

to
 h

os
pi

ta
l f

or
 a

lc
oh

ol
-

20
13

–1
5,

 9
3 

w
om

en
 d

ie
d 

fr
om

 

ti
m

e,
 t

he
 n

um
be

r o
f y

ea
rs

 o
f l

ife
 

lo
st

 b
y 

w
om

en
 d

ue
 t

o 
al

co
ho

l-

w
or

se
ne

d.
 T

he
 p

rim
ar

y 
dr

iv
er

 
be

hi
nd

 t
hi

s 
in

cr
ea

se
 is

 fe
m

al
e 

de
at

hs
 fr

om
 a

lc
oh

ol
ic

 li
ve

r d
is

ea
se

. 

O
f t

he
 9

3 
de

at
hs

 in
 2

01
3–

15
, 7

1 w
er

e 
fr

om
 a

lc
oh

ol
ic

 li
ve

r d
is

ea
se

. W
e 

ar
e 

se
ei

ng
 w

om
en

 d
yi

ng
 fr

om
 a

lc
oh

ol
ic

 
liv

er
 d

is
ea

se
 a

s 
yo

un
g 

as
 3

5–
39

 
ye

ar
s,

 w
it

h 
a 

pe
ak

 a
t 5

0–
54

. T
hi

s 
is

 
yo

un
ge

r t
ha

n 
fo

un
d 

na
ti

on
al

ly
. 

Th
e 

ra
te

 o
f a

lc
oh

ol
ic

 li
ve

r d
is

ea
se

, 
as

 w
ith

 le
ve

ls
 o

f d
rin

ki
ng

, i
s h

ig
he

r 
fo

r m
en

 th
an

 w
om

en
 a

cr
os

s a
ll 

ag
e 

gr
ou

ps
 in

 L
ee

ds
. H

ow
ev

er
, w

hi
ls

t 
de

at
hs

 in
 m

en
 h

av
e 

be
en

 re
du

ci
ng

, 
de

at
hs

 in
 w

om
en

 h
av

e 
be

en
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 
si

nc
e 

20
12

, a
s n

ot
ed

 a
bo

ve
. T

hi
s m

ea
ns

 
th

at
 th

er
e 

ha
s b

ee
n 

a 
na

rr
ow

in
g 

of
 th

e 
ga

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
m

en
 a

nd
 w

om
en

 to
 th

e 
po

in
t w

he
re

 n
um

be
rs

 o
f d

ea
th

s f
ro

m
 

al
co

ho
lic

 li
ve

r d
is

ea
se

 in
 m

en
 a

nd
 

w
om

en
 a

re
 v

er
y 

si
m

ila
r. 

In
 L

ee
ds

, t
he

 m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 p
ar

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
ci

ty
 a

re
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

in
g 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t 

ra
te

s 
of

 a
lc

oh
ol

 h
ar

m
 a

nd
 m

or
ta

lit
y.

 
W

he
n 

w
e 

lo
ok

 a
t t

he
 n

um
be

rs
 o

f 
de

at
hs

 fr
om

 a
lc

oh
ol

-r
el

at
ed

 li
ve

r 

se
e 

th
at

 th
e 

m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 a
re

as
 a

re
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t n

um
be

rs
 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
ag

e 
gr

ou
ps

. P
eo

pl
e 

liv
in

g 
in

 d
ep

riv
ed

 L
ee

ds
, b

ot
h 

m
en

 
an

d 
w

om
en

, a
ls

o 
ac

co
un

t f
or

 th
e 

ad
m

is
si

on
s.

 T
w

ic
e 

as
 m

an
y 

w
om

en
 

in
 d

ep
riv

ed
 L

ee
ds

 a
re

 a
dm

it
te

d 
fo

r 
re

as
on

s 
at

tr
ib

ut
ab

le
 to

 a
lc

oh
ol

 u
se

 
th

an
 w

om
en

 in
 n

on
-d

ep
riv

ed
 L

ee
ds

. 

In
 2

01
6,

 5
2%

 o
f r

eg
is

te
re

d 
pa

tie
nt

s 
in

 

sc
re

en
in

g 
– 

A
ud

it 
C

), 
in

 a
n 

at
te

m
pt

 to
 

as
se

ss
 p

eo
pl

e’
s 

dr
in

ki
ng

 le
ve

ls
 lo

ca
lly

. 

pi
ct

ur
e.

 T
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 d

rin
k 

in
 L

ee
ds

 d
rin

k 
at

 lo
w

-r
is

k 
le

ve
ls

. O
f t

ho
se

 w
ho

 a
re

 d
rin

ki
ng

 
at

 ri
sk

y 
le

ve
ls

, 8
8%

 a
re

 d
rin

ki
ng

 a
t 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
ris

k 
an

d 
12

%
 a

t h
ig

he
r-

ris
k 

dr
in

ki
ng

 a
bo

ve
 th

e 
lo

w
 th

re
sh

ol
ds

 
th

an
 w

om
en

. H
ow

ev
er

, t
hr

ou
gh

 th
is

 
al

co
ho

l s
cr

ee
ni

ng
 d

at
a,

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C 

sc
or

es
 h

av
e 

re
ve

al
ed

 tw
o 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 

un
se

en
 p

at
te

rn
s 

of
 a

lc
oh

ol
 u

se
. 

of
 18

–2
9 

ye
ar

 o
ld

 w
om

en
 a

re
 d

rin
ki

ng
 

at
 in

cr
ea

se
d-

ris
k 

an
d 

hi
gh

er
-r

isk
 le

ve
ls

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 o

th
er

 a
ge

 g
ro

up
s.

 T
hi

s 
m

ay
 in

 p
ar

t b
e 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 st

ud
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

ci
ty

 w
ho

 re
gi

st
er

 w
ith

 
a 

G
P 

on
 a

rr
iv

al
 a

nd
 th

er
ef

or
e 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
an

 a
lc

oh
ol

 sc
re

en
. N

ev
er

th
el

es
s,

 w
e 

kn
ow

 th
at

 th
is 

ag
e 

gr
ou

p 
is 

m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

in
ge

-d
rin

k.
 A

s w
el

l a
s i

ts
 h

ea
lth

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
, b

in
ge

-d
rin

ki
ng

 h
as

 b
ot

h 
so

ci
al

 a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
 im

pa
ct

s,
 th

ro
ug

h 
al

co
ho

l-r
el

at
ed

 cr
im

e 
an

d 
an

tis
oc

ia
l 

be
ha

vi
ou

r. 
Fo

r a
ll 

th
es

e 
re

as
on

s w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 co

ns
id

er
 ta

rg
et

ed
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 

w
ith

 th
is 

yo
un

ge
r p

op
ul

at
io

n.

A
ud

it 
C 

is 
th

at
 si

m
ila

r n
um

be
rs

 o
f m

en
 

an
d 

w
om

en
 in

 th
e 

40
–4

9 
ag

e 
gr

ou
p 

ar
e 

no
w

 h
ig

he
r-

ris
k 

dr
in

ki
ng

. 
Th

es
e 

ne
w

 tr
en

ds
 –

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
an

d 
hi

gh
er

-r
is

k 
dr

in
ki

ng
 a

t a
 y

ou
ng

er
 a

ge
, 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
hi

gh
er

-r
is

k 
dr

in
ki

ng
 in

 
m

id
dl

e 
ag

e 
– 

ar
e 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 st

ar
tin

g 
to

 

W
ha

t a
re
 w
e 

do
in
g 
to
 ta

ck
le
 

al
co

ho
l h

ar
m
 in

 
Le

ed
s?

Th
e 

Le
ed

s 
D

ru
g 

an
d 

A
lc

oh
ol

 S
tr

at
eg

y 

gu
id

el
in

es
 o

n 
th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 a
lc

oh
ol

 h
ar

m
. I

n 
Le

ed
s,

 w
e 

ar
e 

ad
op

ti
ng

 a
 h

ol
is

ti
c 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 w

e 
no

t o
nl

y 
su

pp
or

t 
al

co
ho

l r
ec

ov
er

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
Fo

rw
ar

d 
Le

ed
s,

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
lc

oh
ol

 a
nd

 d
ru

g 
se

rv
ic

e,
 b

ut
 a

ls
o 

ad
op

t m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 a
lc

oh
ol

 h
ar

m
, i

de
nt

ify
 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
ea

rl
ie

r a
nd

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 a

lc
oh

ol
 h

as
 o

n 
th

e 
fa

m
ily

 
an

d 
th

e 
ec

on
om

y.
 W

e 
ha

ve
 m

ad
e 

m
uc

h 
pr

og
re

ss
 b

ut
 th

er
e 

is
 s

ti
ll 

m
uc

h 
w

or
k 

to
 d

o 
if 

w
e 

ar
e 

go
in

g 
to

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
ou

r v
is

io
n 

fo
r L

ee
ds

. 

20
 

 L
an

ce
t P

sy
ch

ia
tr

y 
21

Th
e 

Ph
ar

m
ac

eu
tic

al
 Jo

ur
na

l, 
A

ug
us

t 2
01

7  
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.re

se
ar

ch
ga

te
.n

et
/p

ub
lic

at
io

n/
31

88
83

92
5_

Br
ea

ki
ng

_t
he

_s
ile

nc
e_

on
_w

om
en

_a
nd

_d
ru

g_
us

e

 6
0% 50

%

40
%

30
%

20
%

10
% 0

 1
8–

29
 

30
–3

9 
40

–4
9 

50
–5

9 
60

–6
9 

70
+ 

Fe
m

al
e

PR
O
PO
RT
IO
N
S 
FR
O
M
 A
U
D
IT
 C
 S
C
O
RE
 C
LA
SS
IF
IE
D
 

AS
 IN
C
RE
AS
IN
G
 R
IS
K 
(S
C
O
RE
 1
-1
5)
 ‒
 S
EX
 A
N
D
 A
G
E 
 

A
ge

 7
0% 60

%

50
%

40
%

30
%

20
%

10
% 0

 1
8–

29
 

30
–3

9 
40

–4
9 

50
–5

9 
60

–6
9 

70
+ 

Fe
m

al
e

PR
O
PO
RT
IO
N
S 
FR
O
M
 A
U
D
IT
 C
 S
C
O
RE
 C
LA
SS
IF
IE
D
 

AS
 H
IG
H
 R
IS
K 
(S
C
O
RE
 1
6-
19
) 
‒ 
SE
X
 A
N
D
 A
G
E

A
ge

 

80
0

70
0

60
0

50
0

40
0

30
0

20
0

10
0 0

 
20

11
/1

3 
20

12
/1

4 
20

13
/1

5 

D
ep

riv
ed

N
ot

 D
ep

riv
ed

AD
M
IS
SI
O
N
S 
TO
 H
O
SP
IT
AL
 D
IR
EC
TL
Y 
AT
TR
IB
U
TA
BL
E 

TO
 A
LC
O
H
O
L 
(F
RA
C
TI
O
N
 O
F 
1)
 C
RU
D
E 
RA
TE
: 1
00
,0
00
  

Females

Le
ed

s

Page 49



Pr
ev
en
tio
n

is
 a

bo
ut

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
be

ha
vi

ou
r. 

H
ea

lt
h 

w
or

ke
rs

 a
nd

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 

ha
ve

 m
ill

io
ns

 o
f d

ay
-t

o-
da

y 
in

te
ra

ct
io

ns
 w

it
h 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 a

re
 

be
in

g 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 to
 u

se
 e

ve
ry

 o
ne

 
of

 th
es

e 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 
be

ha
vi

ou
r t

ha
t w

ill
 h

av
e 

a 
po

si
ti

ve
 

of
 in

di
vi

du
al

s,
 c

om
m

un
it

ie
s 

an
d 

po
pu

la
ti

on
s.

W
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 w
or

ki
ng

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 

th
e 

na
ti

on
al

 in
it

ia
ti

ve
 o

n 
al

co
ho

l 

a 
sc

re
en

in
g 

to
ol

 to
 id

en
ti

fy
 ri

sk
y 

dr
in

ki
ng

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
al

co
ho

l 
sc

re
en

in
g 

of
 n

ew
ly

-r
eg

is
te

re
d 

O
nc

e 
a 

po
te

nt
ia

l p
ro

bl
em

 h
as

 b
ee

n 

sh
or

t,
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

d 
‘b

rie
f a

dv
ic

e’
 

w
it

h 
th

e 
ai

m
 o

f e
nc

ou
ra

gi
ng

 a
 ri

sk
y 

dr
in

ke
r t

o 
lo

w
er

 th
ei

r l
ev

el
 o

f r
is

k 
by

 
re

du
ci

ng
 th

ei
r a

lc
oh

ol
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n.

 

Fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e,

 th
e 

U
nd

er
 18

’s
 P

oc
ke

t 
G

ui
de

 to
 A

lc
oh

ol
 w

as
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 
lo

ca
lly

 a
s 

a 
to

ol
 fo

r f
ro

nt
lin

e 
pr

ac
ti

ti
on

er
s 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 b

rie
f a

dv
ic

e 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
ar

ou
nd

 a
lc

oh
ol

 
us

e.
 O

ve
r t

he
 la

st
 fo

ur
 y

ea
rs

, 3
0,

00
0 

po
ck

et
 g

ui
de

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 

an
d 

30
0 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 h
av

e 
be

en
 tr

ai
ne

d 
in

 it
s 

us
e.

 It
 h

as
 a

ls
o 

be
en

 a
do

pt
ed

 in
 

ot
he

r a
re

as
 o

f t
he

 U
K.

 

in
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

ad
ul

t 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 w
it

h 
th

e 
sk

ill
s 

to
 id

en
ti

fy
 

al
co

ho
l h

ar
m

 e
ar

lie
r t

hr
ou

gh
 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 IB

A
, w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

so
ci

al
 m

ar
ke

ti
ng

 
ca

m
pa

ig
ns

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
pe

op
le

’s
 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
of

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

al
co

ho
l 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

an
d 

al
co

ho
l h

ar
m

, 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

pe
op

le
 to

 m
ak

e 
m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 c
ho

ic
es

 a
nd

 to
 s

ig
np

os
t 

to
 F

or
w

ar
d 

Le
ed

s,
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

lc
oh

ol
 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
. 

a 
lo

ca
l e

qu
iv

al
en

t t
o 

th
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

na
ti

on
al

 ‘K
no

w
 y

ou
r L

im
it

s’
 

ca
m

pa
ig

n.
 It

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tl

y 
a 

so
ci

al
 m

ed
ia

 c
am

pa
ig

n 
to

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
th

e 
so

ci
al

 n
or

m
 o

f f
em

al
e 

dr
in

ki
ng

 
at

 h
om

e 
an

d 
ra

is
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
gu

id
el

in
es

. 
Pr

eg
na

nt
 w

om
en

 a
re

 m
or

e 
th

an
 

th
re

e 
ti

m
es

 a
s 

lik
el

y 
no

t t
o 

dr
in

k 
al

co
ho

l a
t a

ll 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 o

th
er

 
w

om
en

, b
ut

 s
ti

ll 
22

%
 o

f p
re

gn
an

t 
w

om
en

 in
 th

e 
U

K 
re

po
rt

 d
rin

ki
ng

 

al
co

ho
l d

ur
in

g 
pr

eg
na

nc
y.

22
 H

ig
h 

pr
en

at
al

 e
xp

os
ur

e 
to

 a
lc

oh
ol

 is
 

lin
ke

d 
to

 a
 h

ig
h 

ris
k 

of
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
fo

et
al

 a
lc

oh
ol

 s
yn

dr
om

e 
– 

a 
sp

ec
tr

um
 o

f p
re

ve
nt

ab
le

 d
is

ab
ili

ti
es

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

bi
rt

h 
de

fe
ct

s,
 b

eh
av

io
ur

al
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ti
es

. W
e 

do
n’

t y
et

 
kn

ow
 w

he
th

er
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 ‘s
af

e’
 le

ve
l 

of
 a

lc
oh

ol
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

th
at

 c
ar

rie
s 

no
 ri

sk
 o

f f
oe

ta
l a

lc
oh

ol
 s

pe
ct

ru
m

 
di

so
rd

er
 o

r o
th

er
 h

ea
lt

h 
pr

ob
le

m
s,

 
so

 th
e 

m
es

sa
ge

 h
as

 to
 b

e 
th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
sa

fe
 le

ve
l. 

U
nf

or
tu

na
te

ly
, a

s 
in

 m
an

y 
ot

he
r a

re
as

 in
 th

e 
co

un
tr

y,
 

th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

 la
ck

 o
f c

on
si

st
en

t 
m

es
sa

ge
s 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
al

co
ho

l 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n 
du

rin
g 

pr
eg

na
nc

y 
in

 
Le

ed
s.

 T
he

 L
ee

ds
 ‘N

o 
Th

an
ks

 I’
m

 
Pr

eg
na

nt
’ s

oc
ia

l m
ed

ia
 c

am
pa

ig
n 

w
as

 la
un

ch
ed

 in
 A

pr
il 

20
16

 to
 a

dv
is

e 
w

om
en

 th
at

 th
e 

sa
fe

st
 c

ho
ic

e 
is

 
no

t t
o 

dr
in

k 
an

y 
al

co
ho

l d
ur

in
g 

fa
ct

 s
he

et
s 

w
er

e 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 
he

al
th

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

ls
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
is

 
on

go
in

g 
so

ci
al

 m
ed

ia
 c

am
pa

ig
n.

23

22

30
0

25
0

20
0

15
0

10
0 50 0

 U
nd

er
 18

 
18

–2
4 

25
–3

4 
35

–4
4 

45
–5

4 
55

–6
4 

65
 o

r O
ve

r

A
lc

oh
ol

 O
nl

y

Pr
im

ar
y 

A
lc

oh
ol

Number

AL
C
O
H
O
L 
AS
 P
RI
M
AR
Y 
SU
BS
TA
N
C
E 
O
N
 E
N
TR
Y 
TO
 

TR
EA
TM
EN
T 
SE
RV
IC
E 
- 
G
EN
D
ER
 &
 A
G
E 
20
16
/1
7

Fe
m

al
es

22
A

du
lt 

dr
in

ki
ng

 h
ab

its
 in

 G
re

at
 B

rit
ai

n,
 2

01
3 

 h
tt

ps
:/

/w
w

w
.o

ns
.g

ov
.u

k/
pe

op
le

po
pu

la
ti

on
an

dc
om

m
un

it
y/

he
al

th
an

ds
oc

ia
lc

ar
e/

 
 

 
he

al
th

an
dl

ife
ex

pe
ct

an
ci

es
/c

om
pe

nd
iu

m
/o

pi
ni

on
sa

nd
lif

es
ty

le
su

rv
ey

/2
01

5-
03

-1
9/

ad
ul

td
rin

ki
ng

ha
bi

ts
in

gr
ea

tb
rit

ai
n2

01
3

22
% 

of
 w

om
en

 d
rin

k  
al

co
ho

l d
ur

in
g 

pr
eg

na
nc

y  
w

om
en

 a
tt

en
di

ng
  

Fo
rw

ar
d 

Le
ed

s  
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 c

om
pl

et
e 

al
co

ho
l t

re
at

m
en

t 
 

Page 50



25

24

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lt

h 
ca

nn
ot

 a
ch

ie
ve

 a
lc

oh
ol

 
ha

rm
 p

re
ve

nt
io

n 
w

or
k 

al
on

e.
 O

nl
y 

by
 

al
co

ho
l a

ge
nd

a 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 

ou
r p

ar
tn

er
s 

in
 th

e 
ci

ty
 w

ill
 w

e 
be

 
ab

le
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 o
ur

 v
is

io
n 

se
t o

ut
 in

 
th

e 
Le

ed
s 

D
ru

g 
an

d 
A

lc
oh

ol
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r a

 n
um

be
r o

f y
ea

rs
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 
pr

im
ar

y 
ca

re
 in

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
IB

A
. T

hr
ou

gh
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 th

e 
th

re
e 

Le
ed

s 
Cl

in
ic

al
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 a

lc
oh

ol
 tr

ea
tm

en
t i

n 
co

m
m

un
ity

 p
rim

ar
y 

ca
re

 s
et

tin
gs

. 
A

nd
, t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
Le

ed
s 

he
al

th
  

an
d 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

pl
an

, w
e 

ar
e 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 b
rie

f 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 a

ro
un

d 
al

co
ho

l  
ha

rm
 w

ith
in

 o
ur

 h
os

pi
ta

ls
.

I w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 to

 e
nd

 th
is

 s
ec

tio
n 

on
 

al
co

ho
l h

ar
m

 w
ith

 tw
o 

fu
rt

he
r b

rie
f 

ex
am

pl
es

 o
f o

ur
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l.

Re
ce

nt
ly

, L
ee

ds
 w

as
 o

ne
 o

f 
 

ei
gh

t 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

ri
ti

es
 t

o 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

e 
in

 t
he

 h
ea

lt
h 

as
 

na
ti

on
al

 p
ilo

t.
 P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lt
h 

ha
s 

a 
st

ro
ng

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
w

it
h 

th
e 

Le
ed

s 
C

it
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

lic
en

si
ng

 t
ea

m
 

an
d 

is
 a

n 
ac

ti
ve

 m
em

be
r 

in
 t

he
 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
En

fo
rc

em
en

t 
G

ro
up

. W
e 

ha
ve

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 

lic
en

si
ng

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
in

 In
ne

r 
W

es
t,

 
In

ne
r 

Ea
st

 a
nd

 S
ou

th
 L

ee
ds

. 
Th

es
e 

po
lic

ie
s 

se
ek

 t
o 

m
in

im
is

e 
th

e 
ne

ga
ti

ve
 im

pa
ct

 t
ha

t 
ne

w
 

pr
em

is
es

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
on

 t
he

 h
ea

lt
h 

of
 t

he
 lo

ca
l a

re
a.

 S
ou

th
 L

ee
ds

 
lo

ca
l l

ic
en

si
ng

 p
ol

ic
y 

ha
s 

be
en

 
sh

ow
ca

se
d 

na
ti

on
al

ly
 a

s 
an

 
ex

am
pl

e 
of

 b
es

t 
pr

ac
ti

ce
 a

nd
 w

as
 

re
ce

nt
ly

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 c

as
e 

st
ud

y 
by

 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lt
h 

En
gl

an
d 

in
 t

he
ir

 
A

lc
oh

ol
 L

ic
en

si
ng

 a
nd

 P
ub

lic
 

H
ea

lt
h 

G
ui

da
nc

e.
23

 

Pu
rp

le
 F

la
g 

is
 a

n 
aw

ar
d 

w
hi

ch
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 in
 th

e 
ci

ty
 w

or
ki

ng
 

to
ge

th
er

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
ci

ty
 

is
 c

le
an

, s
af

e 
an

d 
w

el
l a

ft
er

 
5p

m
. A

s 
a 

ke
y 

m
em

be
r o

f 
th

is
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lt
h 

is
 

w
or

ki
ng

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 

w
el

lb
ei

ng
 w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
ni

gh
t-

ti
m

e 
ec

on
om

y,
 p

ar
ti

cu
la

rl
y 

in
 re

la
ti

on
 

to
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
dr

in
ki

ng
. T

he
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

ha
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
al

co
ho

l 
an

d 
dr

ug
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r 

ec
on

om
y.

 T
hi

s 
is

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 b

y 
Fo

rw
ar

ds
 L

ee
ds

, w
it

h 
th

e 
ai

m
 o

f 
re

du
ci

ng
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f a

lc
oh

ol
-

re
la

te
d 

ha
rm

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
it

h 
ev

en
in

g 
en

te
rt

ai
nm

en
t i

n 
th

e 
ci

ty
.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

RE
C
O
M
M
EN
D
AT
IO
N
S

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il,
 L

ee
ds

 
Cl

in
ic

al
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
G

ro
up

s 

us
e 

lo
ca

l i
ns

ig
ht

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 

a 
so

ci
al

 m
ar

ke
ti

ng
 c

am
pa

ig
n 

ta
rg

et
in

g 
yo

un
g 

w
om

en
 a

nd
 

ai
m

ed
 a

t r
ed

uc
in

g 
al

co
ho

l 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

s.

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il,
 L

ee
ds

 
Cl

in
ic

al
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
G

ro
up

s 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
ca

re
 w

it
h 

a 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 
fo

cu
s 

on
 a

re
as

 o
f d

ep
riv

at
io

n 
w

it
h 

hi
gh

es
t a

lc
oh

ol
 h

ar
m

.

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
Fo

rw
ar

d 
Le

ed
s t

o 
re

vi
ew

 a
lc

oh
ol

 tr
ea

tm
en

t 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r f
em

al
es

 a
nd

 e
ns

ur
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 to
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 w

om
en

.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.

PU
RP

LE
 FL

AG
 S

TA
TU

S
FO

R
 T

H
E 

EV
EN

IN
G

 &
 N

IG
H

T 
TI

M
E 

EC
O

N
O

M
Y

‘P’ P i
s a

 42
-y

ea
r-o

ld 
ful

l-t
im

e m
um

. S
he

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
a d

rin
ke

r t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t h

er 
ad

ult
 li

fe 
bu

t h
ad

 co
ns

ide
red

 

he
rse

lf 
a ‘

so
cia

l d
rin

ke
r’. 

W
ith

 h
ind

sig
ht 

sh
e r

ea
lis

es
 th

at 
sh

e w
as

 d
rin

kin
g 

mo
re 

tha
n 

oth
er 

pe
op

le 
an

d 

tha
t h

er 
alc

oh
ol 

co
ns

um
pti

on
 h

ad
 st

ea
dil

y c
rep

t u
p 

ov
er 

the
 ye

ar
s. 

Sh
e w

as
 ‘d
rin
kin
g 
on 
an
xie
ty,
 

thi
nki
ng
 i
t 
wo
uld
 c
alm
 m
y 
ner
ves
’.

Af
ter

 a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
ev

en
ts 

in 
he

r p
ers

on
al 

life
, in

clu
din

g 
the

 lo
ss

 of
 fa

mi
ly 

me
mb

ers
, P

’s 
alc

oh
ol 

co
ns

um
pti

on
 in

cre
as

ed
 to

 th
e p

oin
t w

he
re 

sh
e h

ad
 b

ec
om

e p
hy

sic
all

y a
dd

ict
ed

 to
 al

co
ho

l a
nd

 w
as

 

fin
din

g 
it 

a p
rob

lem
 in

 h
er 

da
y-

to-
da

y l
ife

. H
er 

GP
 re

co
mm

en
de

d 
Fo

rw
ard

 Le
ed

s. 
P h

ad
 a 

su
cc

es
sfu

l 

co
mm

un
ity

 d
eto

x a
nd

 co
mb

ine
d 

thi
s w

ith
 co

gn
itiv

e b
eh

av
iou

r t
he

rap
y a

nd
 ot

he
r p

sy
ch

os
oc

ial
 th

era
pie

s 

to 
be

co
me

 so
be

r. S
he

 h
as

 n
ow

 b
ee

n 
so

be
r f

or 
alm

os
t a

 ye
ar.

23
Re

du
ci

ng
 a

lc
oh

ol
 re

la
te

d 
he

al
th

 h
ar

m
s 

in
 L

ee
ds

 (c
as

e 
st

ud
y)

  
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.g

ov
.u

k/
go

ve
rn

m
en

t/
ca

se
-s

tu
di

es
/r

ed
uc

in
g-

al
co

ho
l-

re
la

te
d-

he
al

th
-h

ar
m

s-
in

-l
ee

ds

CA
SE

 ST
UD

Y

Al
co
ho
l t
re
at
m
en
t ‒
 

Fo
rw
ar
d 
Le
ed
s

In
 2

01
5,

 th
e 

ne
w

ly
 

re
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ru

g 
an

d 
A

lc
oh

ol
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
an

d 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t S

er
vi

ce
 –

 
Fo

rw
ar

d 
Le

ed
s 

– 
be

ga
n 

it
s 

w
or

k 
in

 th
e 

ci
ty

. W
e 

ar
e 

no
w

 s
ta

rt
in

g 
to

 s
ee

 th
e 

ha
rd

 w
or

k 
an

d 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
m

e 
to

 fr
ui

ti
on

. 
Th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f c

lie
nt

s e
nt

er
in

g 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
in

 2
01

6–
17

 w
ith

 a
lc

oh
ol

 a
s 

th
e 

pr
im

ar
y s

ub
st

an
ce

 o
f u

se
 w

as
 

ju
st

 b
el

ow
 4

0%
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l. 
Th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f c

lie
nt

s w
ho

 h
av

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
lc

oh
ol

 
tr

ea
tm

en
t a

nd
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

no
t 

re
-p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

ith
in

 
six

 m
on

th
s –

 a
 n

at
io

na
l i

nd
ic

at
or

 –
 

ha
s s

te
ad

ily
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

ov
er

 2
01

7. 
Th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f w

om
en

 w
ho

 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
ei

r 
al

co
ho

l t
re

at
m

en
t 

is
 a

bo
ut

 

31
%

, s
lig

ht
ly

 h
ig

he
r t

ha
n 

th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f m
al

es
 a

t 
29

%
. 

Th
is

 in
di

ca
te

s 
th

at
 w

om
en

 
w

ho
 d

o 
ac

ce
ss

 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

 fo
r 

th
ei

r a
lc

oh
ol

 u
se

 e
ng

ag
e 

w
it

h 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

an
d 

ar
e 

ab
le

 t
o 

pr
og

re
ss

 t
ow

ar
ds

 re
co

ve
ry

.
H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 a

ge
 w

he
n 

w
om

en
 

st
ar

t t
o 

en
te

r t
he

 se
rv

ic
e 

in
 

gr
ea

te
r n

um
be

rs
 is

 fr
om

 2
5 

ye
ar

s.
 T

he
re

 w
er

e 
tw

o 
co

ho
rt

s 
of

 c
on

ce
rn

 fr
om

 A
ud

it 
C 

sc
or

es
. 

Th
es

e 
w

er
e 

w
om

en
 a

ge
d 

18
–2

9 
an

d 
w

om
en

 a
ge

d 
40

–4
9.

 T
he

 

w
om

en
 a

re
 n

ot
 a

cc
es

si
ng

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 W
e 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ne

ed
 to

 
re

vi
ew

 fe
m

al
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 p
oi

nt
s 

of
 a

cc
es

s t
o 

ex
pl

or
e 

ho
w

 w
e 

ca
n 

in
te

rv
en

e 
ea

rli
er

 a
nd

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 w
e 

ar
e 

do
in

g 
al

l w
e 

ca
n 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
se

rv
ic

e 
th

at
 w

om
en

 fe
el

 
th

ey
 c

an
 a

cc
es

s f
or

 th
e 

su
pp

or
t 

th
ey

 n
ee

d.
 In

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
, w

e 
ne

ed
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
yo

un
ge

r w
om

en
 

to
 re

ve
rs

e 
th

e 
hi

gh
er

 le
ve

l o
f 

ha
rm

 a
nd

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
th

at
 w

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tl
y 

se
ei

ng
 in

 th
e 

ci
ty

. 

Page 51



27

26

In
 L

ee
ds

, a
s 

in
 th

e 
re

st
 o

f E
ng

la
nd

, 
m

or
e 

w
om

en
 th

an
 m

en
 h

av
e 

m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

an
xi

et
y 

an
d 

de
pr

es
si

on
. T

he
se

 ty
pe

s 
of

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
ar

e 
ca

lle
d 

co
m

m
on

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 
di

so
rd

er
s.

 A
 re

ce
nt

 n
at

io
na

l s
tu

dy
24

 
fo

un
d 

th
at

 ra
te

s 
of

 th
es

e 
di

so
rd

er
s 

10
 y

ea
rs

, a
nd

 th
is

 is
 m

ai
nl

y 
du

e 
to

 
th

e 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 n
um

be
r o

f w
om

en
 

w
it

h 
th

es
e 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 
pr

ob
le

m
s.

 
In

 L
ee

ds
, t

he
re

 a
re

 tw
ic

e 
as

 m
an

y 
w

om
en

 a
s 

m
en

 w
it

h 
co

m
m

on
 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 
di

so
rd

er
s:

 th
at

’s
 o

ve
r 

80
,0

00
 w

om
en

. W
om

en
’s

 m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 is

 g
et

ti
ng

 w
or

se
.

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f w
om

en
 a

nd
 m

en
 

w
it

h 
m

or
e 

se
rio

us
 m

en
ta

l i
lln

es
s,

 
fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e 
ps

yc
ho

si
s,

 is
 s

im
ila

r 
ov

er
al

l, 
al

th
ou

gh
 m

en
 te

nd
 to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
ps

yc
ho

si
s 

at
 a

 y
ou

ng
er

 a
ge

 
an

d 
w

om
en

 la
te

r o
n 

in
 li

fe
. H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 g
ro

up
s 

of
 

w
om

en
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

hi
gh

 ra
te

s 
of

 o
th

er
 

se
rio

us
 c

on
di

ti
on

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
po

st
-

Se
lf

-h
ar

m
in

g 
– 

of
te

n 
a 

w
ay

 o
f c

op
in

g 
w

it
h 

m
en

ta
l d

is
tr

es
s 

– 
is

 th
ou

gh
t t

o 
be

 w
or

se
ni

ng
 in

 y
ou

ng
 w

om
en

.
Th

e 
re

as
on

s 
w

hy
 w

om
en

 h
av

e 
po

or
 

w
or

rie
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

de
bt

 a
nd

 lo
w

-p
ai

d 
w

or
k 

an
d 

st
re

ss
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

it
h 

ca
rin

g 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s.
 W

om
en

 
ar

e 
m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
th

an
 m

en
 to

 b
e 

in
 lo

w
er

 p
ai

d 
an

d 
le

ss
 s

ec
ur

e 
jo

bs
 –

 o
n 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 o

r z
er

o-
ho

ur
 

co
nt

ra
ct

s,
 fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e 
– 

an
d 

th
e 

ne
ga

ti
ve

 im
pa

ct
 o

f w
el

fa
re

 re
fo

rm
 

di
sp

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

ly
. 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 v
io

le
nc

e,
 tr

au
m

a 
an

d 

fa
ct

or
 fo

r c
om

m
on

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 

di
so

rd
er

s.
 W

om
en

 a
re

 tw
ic

e 
as

 
lik

el
y 

as
 m

en
 to

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

vi
ol

en
ce

 
an

d 
ab

us
e 

in
 th

e 
ho

m
e;

 th
e 

m
or

e 
ex

te
ns

iv
e 

th
e 

vi
ol

en
ce

, t
he

 m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

th
at

 it
 is

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 b
y 

w
om

en
. W

om
en

’s
 L

iv
es

 L
ee

ds
 re

po
rt

 
th

at
 a

bo
ut

 o
ne

 in
 e

ve
ry

 2
0 

w
om

en
 in

 
En

gl
an

d 
ha

s 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 e
xt

en
si

ve
 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
nd

 s
ex

ua
l v

io
le

nc
e 

an
d 

ab
us

e 
ac

ro
ss

 th
ei

r l
ife

 c
ou

rs
e 

– 
th

at
’s

 o
ve

r 1
6,

00
0 

fe
m

al
es

 o
f 1

5 
ye

ar
s 

an
d 

ol
de

r i
n 

Le
ed

s.
25

 T
he

se
 

w
om

en
 h

av
e 

be
en

 s
ex

ua
lly

 a
bu

se
d 

in
 c

hi
ld

ho
od

 o
r s

ev
er

el
y 

be
at

en
 b

y 
a 

pa
re

nt
 o

r c
ar

er
; m

an
y 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 

fr
om

 a
 p

ar
tn

er
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
ei

ng
 

ch
ok

ed
, s

tr
an

gl
ed

 o
r t

hr
ea

te
ne

d 
w

it
h 

a 
w

ea
po

n.
 It

 is
 th

ou
gh

t t
ha

t 
su

ch
 a

bu
se

 m
ay

 e
xp

la
in

, i
n 

pa
rt

, 
th

e 
hi

gh
er

 ra
te

s 
of

 c
om

m
on

 m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 d

is
or

de
rs

 s
ee

n 
in

 w
om

en
. 

A
bu

se
 a

ls
o 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 
m

or
e 

se
rio

us
 c

on
di

ti
on

s 
lik

e 
PT

SD
 

an
d 

pe
rs

on
al

it
y 

di
so

rd
er

. A
bu

se
 m

ay
 

m
ea

n 
th

at
 w

om
en

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ot
he

r 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

th
at

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

ei
r 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h,
 s

uc
h 

as
 d

ru
g 

us
e,

 
in

se
cu

re
 w

or
k 

or
 p

oo
r h

ou
si

ng
. 

Ce
rt

ai
n 

gr
ou

ps
 h

av
e 

po
or

er
 m

en
ta

l 
he

al
th

 th
an

 o
th

er
s.

 R
is

k 
fa

ct
or

s 
fo

r p
oo

r m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h,
 s

om
e 

of
 

w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 a

bo
ve

, 
cl

us
te

r i
n 

ar
ea

s 
w

he
re

 p
eo

pl
e 

ha
ve

 a
 lo

w
 le

ve
l o

f i
nc

om
e.

 T
hi

s 
m

ea
ns

 th
at

 w
om

en
 li

vi
ng

 in
 p

oo
re

r 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
ds

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 to

 
ha

ve
 w

or
se

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h.
 B

la
ck

/
Bl

ac
k 

Br
it

is
h 

w
om

en
 s

ho
w

 h
ig

he
r 

ra
te

s 
of

 c
om

m
on

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 
di

so
rd

er
s,

 w
hi

ls
t a

sy
lu

m
 s

ee
ke

rs
 a

nd
 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 im

m
ig

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
re

fu
ge

es
 

of
te

n 
ha

ve
 p

oo
r m

en
ta

l h
ea

lt
h 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

it
h 

tr
au

m
a.

 L
es

bi
an

 

an
d 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r w

om
en

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
at

 
hi

gh
er

 ri
sk

 o
f p

oo
r m

en
ta

l w
el

lb
ei

ng
.

Fi
na

lly
, t

he
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lt
h 

of
 y

ou
ng

 
w

om
en

 is
 w

or
se

ni
ng

. I
n 

En
gl

an
d,

 
w

om
en

 a
ge

d 
16

– 
24

 y
ea

rs
 h

av
e 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t r

at
es

 o
f c

om
m

on
 m

en
ta

l 
he

al
th

 d
is

or
de

rs
, s

el
f-

ha
rm

 a
nd

 
PT

SD
 o

f a
ll 

gr
ou

ps
. I

t i
s 

su
gg

es
te

d 
th

at
 th

is
 m

ay
 in

 p
ar

t b
e 

du
e 

to
 s

oc
ia

l 
m

ed
ia

 e
xp

os
ur

e,
 e

xc
es

si
ve

 u
se

 o
f 

co
m

pu
te

rs
 a

nd
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s,

 a
nd

 
po

or
 s

le
ep

, a
lt

ho
ug

h 
th

is
 re

se
ar

ch
 is

 
at

 a
n 

ea
rl

y 
st

ag
e.

 

Se
lf-

ha
rm

in
g 
an

d 
m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
   
   
   
   
   
Se
lf-
ha
rm

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

  
Se

lf
-h

ar
m

 is
 w

he
n 

so
m

eo
ne

 
in

te
nt

io
na

lly
 c

au
se

s 
th

em
se

lv
es

 
in

ju
ry

 o
r h

ar
m

. I
t i

s 
of

te
n 

se
en

 a
s 

a 
w

ay
 o

f c
op

in
g 

w
it

h 
or

 e
xp

re
ss

in
g 

fe
el

in
gs

 a
nd

 e
m

ot
io

ns
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
co

m
e 

ov
er

w
he

lm
in

g.
 S

el
f-

ha
rm

 
in

vo
lv

es
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 b
eh

av
io

ur
s,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

cu
tt

in
g,

 s
el

f-
po

is
on

in
g 

of
 s

el
f-

ha
rm

 c
an

 a
ls

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
al

co
ho

l a
nd

 s
ub

st
an

ce
 m

is
us

e,
 

di
so

rd
er

ed
 e

at
in

g 
an

d 
‘ri

sk
-t

ak
in

g’
 

be
ha

vi
ou

rs
, w

hi
ch

 in
cr

ea
se

 
a 

pe
rs

on
’s

 v
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
su

sc
ep

ti
bi

lit
y 

to
 h

ar
m

. S
el

f-
ha

rm
 

is
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

it
h 

bo
th

 s
ev

er
e 

an
d 

en
du

rin
g 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 
pr

ob
le

m
s,

 
fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e 
pe

rs
on

al
it

y 
di

so
rd

er
s,

 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

co
m

m
on

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 
di

so
rd

er
s.

 It
 is

 a
ls

o 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
w

it
h 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

ris
k 

of
 s

ui
ci

de
.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

W
O
M
EN
’S
 M
EN
TA
L 

H
EA
LT
H

24
et

 a
l 

M
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 in

 E
ng

la
nd

: a
du

lt 
ps

yc
hi

at
ric

 m
or

bi
di

ty
 s

ur
ve

y 
20

14
, L

ee
ds

: N
H

S 
D

ig
it

al
  

 
ht

tp
:/

/c
on

te
nt

.d
ig

it
al

.n
hs

.u
k/

ca
ta

lo
gu

e/
PU

B2
17

48
/a

pm
s-

20
14

-f
ul

l-
rp

t.
pd

f
25

H
id

de
n 

hu
rt

: v
io

len
ce

, a
bu

se
 a

nd
 d

isa
dv

an
ta

ge
 in

 th
e l

ive
s o

f w
om

en
 h

tt
ps

://
w

ea
re

ag
en

da
.o

rg
/w

p-
co

nt
en

t/
up

lo
ad

s/
20

15
/1

1/
H

id
de

n-
H

ur
t-

fu
ll-

re
po

rt
1.p

df

16
,00
0 

w
om

en
 in

 L
ee

ds
 h

av
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 e

xt
en

si
ve

 
ph

ys
ic

al
 a

nd
 s

ex
ua

l 
vi

ol
en

ce
 a

nd
 a

bu
se

80
,00
0 

w
om

en
 in

 L
ee

ds
 w

it
h 

co
m

m
on

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 
di

so
rd

er
s

1 
in
 20
 

w
om

en
 in

 L
ee

ds
 h

av
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 e

xt
en

si
ve

  
ph

ys
ic

al
 a

nd
 s

ex
ua

l  
vi

ol
en

ce
 a

nd
 a

bu
se

16
-2
4

ag
e 

gr
ou

p 
w

om
en

 in
 L

ee
ds

 
ha

ve
 th

e 
hi

gh
es

t r
at

es
 o

f  
co

m
m

on
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lt
h 

di
so

rd
er

s,
 s

el
f-

ha
rm

 a
nd

 P
TS

D

Page 52



29

Se
lf

-h
ar

m
 is

 n
ot

 re
st

ric
te

d 
to

 a
 

be
ha

vi
ou

r g
oe

s 
un

de
te

ct
ed

, s
o 

it
 

ho
w

 o
ft

en
 it

 h
ap

pe
ns

 a
nd

 to
 w

ho
m

. 
H

ow
ev

er
, w

e 
kn

ow
 it

 is
 m

or
e 

co
m

m
on

 
in

 y
ou

ng
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

th
an

 o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
m

or
e 

co
m

m
on

 in
 w

om
en

 th
an

 
in

 m
en

. O
ve

r t
w

ic
e 

as
 m

an
y 

yo
un

g 
w

om
en

 a
ge

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
16

 a
nd

 2
4 

ye
ar

s 
re

po
rt

 se
lf-

ha
rm

in
g 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 m
en

 
in

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
ag

e 
gr

ou
p.

 
A

 ra
ng

e 
of

 re
as

on
s 

m
ay

 c
au

se
 a

 
pe

rs
on

 to
 s

ta
rt

 s
el

f-
ha

rm
in

g 
– 

fa
m

ily
 

or
 re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
pr

ob
le

m
s,

 s
ch

oo
l 

or
 w

or
k 

pr
es

su
re

s,
 lo

w
 s

el
f-

es
te

em
 

an
d 

bo
dy

 im
ag

e,
 m

is
us

in
g 

al
co

ho
l 

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 s

el
f-

ha
rm

 s
ay

 th
ey

 d
o 

so
 

to
 re

lie
ve

 fe
el

in
gs

 o
f a

ng
er

, t
en

si
on

, 
an

xi
et

y 
or

 d
ep

re
ss

io
n.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 
to

 b
e 

se
ve

ra
l o

th
er

 re
as

on
s 

th
at

 le
ad

 
so

m
eo

ne
 to

 s
el

f-
ha

rm
, a

nd
 th

es
e 

w
ill

 

W
ha

t i
s t

he
 

pi
ct
ur
e 
fo
r L

ee
ds
?

W
it

hi
n 

Le
ed

s 
it

 is
 e

st
im

at
ed

 th
at

 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

16
,0

00
 y

ou
ng

 w
om

en
 a

ge
d 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

at
 a

ny
 o

ne
 

ti
m

e.
 N

at
io

na
lly

, a
ro

un
d 

1 i
n 

4 
yo

un
g 

w
om

en
 h

av
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 h
av

in
g 

‘e
ve

r 
se

lf
-h

ar
m

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
th

ei
r l

iv
es

’. I
n 

Le
ed

s,
 th

is
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

an
 e

st
im

at
ed

 
16

,0
00

 y
ou

ng
 w

om
en

.
In

 L
ee

ds
, l

ev
el

s o
f s

el
f-

ha
rm

 a
re

 
m

ea
su

re
d 

by
 c

ol
le

ct
in

g 
da

ta
 o

n 
ho

sp
ita

l a
dm

is
si

on
s.

 H
ow

ev
er

, 
be

ca
us

e 
se

lf-
ha

rm
 c

an
 ta

ke
 m

an
y 

fo
rm

s,
 it

 is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
un

de
r-

re
po

rt
ed

. 

tr
en

ds
. I

n 
Le

ed
s y

ou
ng

 w
om

en
 a

ge
d 

15
 to

 19
 h

av
e 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t i

nc
id

en
ce

 
of

 se
lf-

ha
rm

 a
dm

is
si

on
s:

 2
97

 y
ou

ng
 

w
om

en
 w

er
e 

ad
m

itt
ed

 in
 2

01
6–

17
 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 7
8 

yo
un

g 
m

en
, i

.e
. 

ar
ou

nd
 fo

ur
 ti

m
es

 th
e 

m
al

e 
ra

te
. 

so
 in

cl
ud

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

s w
ith

 m
or

e 
th

an
 

on
e 

ad
m

is
si

on
, b

ut
 w

e 
do

 k
no

w
 th

at
 

ad
m

is
si

on
s a

re
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 y
ea

r o
n 

ye
ar

 
an

d 
th

at
 th

er
e 

ha
s b

ee
n 

a 
ge

ne
ra

l 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 a
dm

is
si

on
s o

ve
r t

he
 la

st
 

tw
o 

ye
ar

s f
or

 b
ot

h 
fe

m
al

es
 a

nd
 m

al
es

.
A

dm
is

si
on

s 
fo

r t
he

 y
ou

ng
es

t a
ge

 
gr

ou
p 

of
 g

irl
s 

fo
r w

hi
ch

 s
el

f-
ha

rm
 

ar
e 

ni
ne

 ti
m

es
 h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
th

os
e 

of
 

bo
ys

 in
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

ag
e 

gr
ou

p.
 

Le
ve

ls
 o

f a
dm

is
si

on
s 

fo
r s

el
f-

ha
rm

 a
re

 c
lo

se
ly

 li
nk

ed
 to

 li
vi

ng
 

in
 d

ep
riv

ed
 a

re
as

 o
f t

he
 c

it
y.

 T
hi

s 
is

 a
 g

en
er

al
 tr

en
d 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
lo

ca
l 

an
d 

H
um

be
r r

eg
io

n 
bu

t i
s 

m
or

e 
pr

on
ou

nc
ed

 fo
r L

ee
ds

 th
an

 fo
r a

ny
 

ot
he

r c
it

y 
in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
. S

om
eo

ne
 

w
ho

 li
ve

s 
in

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
 m

os
t 

de
pr

iv
ed

 a
re

as
 o

f L
ee

ds
 is

 tw
ic

e 
as

 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
ad

m
it

te
d 

to
 h

os
pi

ta
l f

or
 

se
lf

-h
ar

m
 th

an
 s

om
eo

ne
 li

vi
ng

 in
 

on
e 

of
 th

e 
le

as
t d

ep
riv

ed
 a

re
as

. T
hi

s 
in

di
ca

te
s 

gr
ea

te
r h

ea
lt

h 
in

eq
ua

lit
y 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

it
h 

se
lf

-h
ar

m
 in

 L
ee

ds
.

Th
e 

st
ig

m
a 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

it
h 

se
lf

-
ha

rm
 o

ft
en

 p
re

ve
nt

s 
pe

op
le

 fr
om

 
se

ek
in

g 
he

lp
. T

hi
s 

st
ig

m
a 

al
so

 

w
ho

 s
el

f-
ha

rm
: f

am
ili

es
, f

rie
nd

s,
 

ac
qu

ai
nt

an
ce

s 
an

d 
w

or
k 

co
lle

ag
ue

s.
 

Se
lf

-h
ar

m
 is

 a
 c

om
pl

ex
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 
th

at
 is

 w
id

el
y 

m
is

un
de

rs
to

od
, 

an
d 

th
e 

st
ig

m
a 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

it
 h

as
 

se
rio

us
 c

on
se

qu
en

ce
s 

fo
r t

ho
se

 
se

ek
in

g 
he

lp
, b

ot
h 

w
it

hi
n 

an
d 

ou
ts

id
e 

of
 h

ea
lt

h 
se

rv
ic

es
.

W
ha

t a
re
 w
e 

do
in
g 
in
 L
ee

ds
?  

In
 L

ee
ds

, t
he

 fo
cu

s 
of

 P
ub

lic
 

H
ea

lt
h 

in
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

is
 o

n 
pr

ev
en

ti
on

 
by

 s
ta

rt
in

g 
w

or
k 

ea
rl

y 
in

 th
e 

lif
e 

co
ur

se
. W

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

em
ot

io
na

l h
ea

lt
h 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

Tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

Pl
an

 2
01

6–
20

20
.2

6  
W

e 
ar

e 
su

pp
or

ti
ng

 s
ch

oo
ls

 in
 L

ee
ds

 

Ch
am

pi
on

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

w
ho

le
-s

ch
oo

l a
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
po

si
ti

ve
 s

oc
ia

l, 
em

ot
io

na
l a

nd
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lt
h 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 o
n 

to
pi

cs
 s

uc
h 

as
 s

el
f-

ha
rm

 a
w

ar
en

es
s.

 R
ec

og
ni

si
ng

 
an

d 
re

sp
on

di
ng

 to
 s

el
f-

ha
rm

 is
 

al
so

 e
m

be
dd

ed
 w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
ne

w
 

cu
rr

ic
ul

um
 fo

r a
ll 

ke
y 

st
ag

es
 w

hi
ch

 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

on
lin

e.
27

 W
e 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 c

re
at

iv
e 

an
ti

-s
ti

gm
a 

ca
m

pa
ig

ns
 c

o-
pr

od
uc

ed
 b

y 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 s
et

ti
ng

. 
Th

is
 a

im
s 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 to

 ta
lk

 o
pe

nl
y 

ab
ou

t m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

st
ig

m
a 

th
at

 is
 

st
op

pi
ng

 th
em

 fr
om

 a
cc

es
si

ng
 h

el
p.

Se
le

ct
ed

 y
ea

r g
ro

up
s 

of
 p

rim
ar

y 
an

d 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

in
 L

ee
ds

 c
om

pl
et

e 

su
rv

ey
. I

n 
20

15
, q

ue
st

io
ns

 w
er

e 
ad

de
d 

Th
is

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
co

m
m

un
ity

-l
ev

el
 d

at
a 

fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

ag
ed

 11
–1

5 
th

at
 

ha
s 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 b

ee
n 

un
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
 

Le
ed

s.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 8
8%

 o
f t

he
 2

,18
2 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 re
sp

on
de

d 
to

 th
is

 
qu

es
tio

n 
sa

id
 th

at
 th

ey
 h

ad
 h

ur
t 

th
em

se
lv

es
 o

n 
pu

rp
os

e.
 In

 a
ns

w
er

 to
 

a 
se

pa
ra

te
 q

ue
st

io
n,

 7
%

 o
f t

he
 3

77
 

re
sp

on
de

rs
 s

ai
d 

th
ey

 h
ur

t t
he

m
se

lv
es

 
ev

er
y 

da
y;

 2
8%

 s
ai

d 
th

ey
 h

ad
 h

ur
t 

th
em

se
lv

es
 o

nc
e 

or
 tw

ic
e 

in
 th

e 
la

st
 

12
 m

on
th

s;
 4

8%
 s

ai
d 

th
ey

 u
se

d 
to

 
hu

rt
 th

em
se

lv
es

 b
ut

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 d

id
 s

o.
Th

e 
‘P

in
k 

Bo
ok

le
t’

28

pr
od

uc
ed

 b
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lt

h 
al

on
g 

w
it

h 
th

e 
th

re
e 

Cl
in

ic
al

 

th
e 

Le
ed

s 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
 L

ee
ds

 w
ho

 s
el

f-
ha

rm
 o

r f
ee

l s
ui

ci
da

l. 
It

 is
 u

se
d 

in
 

a 
w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 s
et

ti
ng

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
sc

ho
ol

s,
 y

ou
th

 w
or

k 
or

 c
om

m
un

it
y 

gr
ou

ps
. T

he
 P

in
k 

Bo
ok

le
t s

et
s 

ou
t 

ke
y 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 a

nd
 w

ay
s 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 

an
d 

ha
s 

be
en

 w
rit

te
n 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

it
h 

N
IC

E 
cl

in
ic

al
 g

ui
de

lin
es

.2
9  

26
  F

ut
ur

e 
in

 m
in

d:
 L

ee
ds

 2
01

6–
20

20
 

27
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.m

yh
ea

lt
hm

ys
ch

oo
ls

ur
ve

y.
or

g.
uk

/s
ur

ve
y-

11
/w

eb
fo

rm
-r

es
ul

ts
/a

na
ly

si
s 

28
  

 h
tt

ps
://

w
w

w
.m

in
dm

at
e.

or
g.

uk
/w

p-
co

nt
en

t/
up

lo
ad

s/
20

16
/0

5/
Se

lf-
ha

rm
-b

oo
kl

et
.p

df
29

Se
lf-

ha
rm

 in
 o

ve
r 8

s:
 lo

ng
-t

er
m

 m
an

ag
em

en
t  

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.n

ic
e.

or
g.

uk
/g

ui
da

nc
e/

cg
13

3/
ch

ap
te

r/
1-

G
ui

da
nc

e

TH
E 
KE
Y

Th
e K

ey
 is

 a 
loc

al 
se

rv
ice

 ru
n 

by
 W

om
en

s H
ea

lth
 M

att
ers

, w
hic

h 
su

pp
ort

s g
irl

s a
nd

 

yo
un

g 
wo

me
n 

in 
Le

ed
s t

o m
an

ag
e t

he
 ef

fec
ts 

of 
ab

us
e a

nd
 d

om
es

tic
 vi

ole
nc

e. 
Th

e K
ey

 

he
lps

 g
irl

s a
nd

 yo
un

g 
wo

me
n 

ide
nti

fy 
an

d 
ac

kn
ow

led
ge

 vi
ole

nc
e a

nd
 ab

us
e, 

de
ve

lop
 

co
pin

g 
me

ch
an

ism
s a

nd
 g

ain
 co

nfi
de

nc
e a

nd
 se

lf-
es

tee
m.

 

‘Wh
en 
I 
fir
st 
sta
rte
d 
at 
The
 K
ey 
I 
fel
t 
so 
dow
n. 
I 
wa
s 
sel
f-h
arm
ing
. I
 

wa
nte
d 
to 
die
. I
 d
idn
’t 
eve
n 
wa
nt 
to 
go 
out
sid
e. 
Now
 I
 a
m 
wo
rki
ng 
and
 

goi
ng 
to 
col
leg
e 
eve
ry 
day
. I
 a
m 
als
o 
con
vin
cin
g 
my
sel
f, 
slo
wly
 b
ut 
sur
ely
, 

tha
t 
I 
am
 a
s 
goo
d 
as 
eve
ryo
ne 
els
e 
and
 I
 a
m 
not
 l
eft
 o
ut 
- 
I 
can
 t
alk
 

to 
eve
ryo
ne.
 A
nd 
yes
, I
 d
o 
sti
ll 
get
 n
erv
ous
 a
 l
ot 
but
 I
 f
eel
 n
orm
al 
for
 

the
 f
irs
t 
tim
e 
in 
my
 l
ife
. W
ith
out
 t
he 
hel
p 
fro
m 
The
 K
ey 
I 
wo
uld
n’t
 b
e 

wh
ere
 I
 a
m 
tod
ay.
.. 
tha
nk 
you
.’

B 
wa

s f
irs

t r
efe

rre
d t

o T
he

 Ke
y i

n 2
01

3 b
y t

he
 ch

ari
ty 

Ba
sis

 Yo
rks

hir
e. 

Sh
e w

as
 15

 ye
ars

 ol
d. 

B 
wa

s i
n 

an
 ab

us
ive

 re
lat

ion
sh

ip,
 w

as
 ex

pe
rie

nc
ing

 ch
ild

 se
xu

al 
ex

plo
ita

tio
n 

an
d 

ha
d 

be
en

 p
hy

sic
all

y a
bu

se
d 

by
 h

er 
ste

p-
fat

he
r. S

he
 ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 an
xie

ty 
an

d 
low

 m
oo

d. 

Sh
e h

ad
 b

ee
n 

se
lf-

ha
rm

ing
 si

nc
e t

he
 ag

e o
f e

igh
t b

ut 
ha

d 
be

en
 u

na
ble

 to
 en

ga
ge

 w
ith

 

tal
kin

g 
the

rap
ies

. S
he

 w
as

 st
ru

gg
lin

g 
wi

th 
bu

llie
s a

t s
ch

oo
l a

nd
 in

 h
er 

ne
igh

bo
ur

ho
od

. 

Th
is 

ha
d 

a n
eg

ati
ve

 ef
fec

t o
n 

he
r s

elf
-e

ste
em

 an
d 

inc
rea

se
d 

he
r a

nx
iet

y l
ev

els
. T

he
 K

ey
 

su
pp

ort
ed

 B
 th

rou
gh

 b
oth

 on
e-

to-
on

e a
nd

 g
rou

p 
su

pp
ort

. 

Du
rin

g 
he

r f
irs

t t
wo

 ye
ar

s a
t T

he
 K

ey
, B

 fo
un

d 
it 

ha
rd

 to
 m

ain
tai

n 
fri

en
ds

hip
s. 

Sh
e e

nd
ed

 

on
e a

bu
siv

e r
ela

tio
ns

hip
 an

d 
be

ga
n 

an
oth

er 
tha

t p
rov

ed
 eq

ua
lly

 ab
us

ive
. H

er 
se

lf-

ha
rm

ing
 in

cre
as

ed
 d

ur
ing

 th
is 

se
co

nd
 re

lat
ion

sh
ip.

 S
he

 at
tem

pte
d 

to 
tak

e h
er 

ow
n 

life
 

on
 at

 le
as

t o
ne

 oc
ca

sio
n. 

Af
ter

 m
an

y i
nte

ns
ive

 se
ss

ion
s a

rou
nd

 h
er 

em
oti

on
al 

we
llb

ein
g, 

B 
fel

t a
ble

 to
 at

ten
d 

the
rap

y. 
Th

e K
ey

 re
fer

red
 h

er 
to 

IAP
T (

Im
pr

ov
ing

 A
cc

es
s t

o P
sy

ch
olo

gic
al 

Th
era

pie
s).

 S
he

 

ha
s n

ot 
se

lf-
ha

rm
ed

 fo
r o

ve
r a

 ye
ar

 an
d 

ha
s c

om
e o

ff 
an

tid
ep

res
sa

nts
, th

ou
gh

 sh
e s

till
 

ha
s m

oo
d 

flu
ctu

ati
on

s.

In 
all

, B
 re

ce
ive

d 
su

pp
ort

 fr
om

 Th
e K

ey
 fo

r t
hr

ee
 ye

ar
s. 

By
 h

er 
fin

al 
ye

ar,
 h

er 
co

nfi
de

nc
e 

ha
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

. S
he

 w
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 yo

un
g 

pe
op

le’
s i

nte
rv

iew
 p

an
el 

du
rin

g 
rec

ru
itm

en
t o

f 

a n
ew

 p
roj

ec
t w

ork
er,

 an
d 

sh
e a

lso
 jo

ine
d 

the
 st

ee
rin

g 
gr

ou
p. 

B 
is 

no
w 

18
 an

d 
he

r t
im

e a
t T

he
 K

ey
 is

 co
mi

ng
 to

 an
 en

d. 
Th

e K
ey

 h
as

 n
ow

 se
cu

red
 

thr
ee

 ye
ar

s o
f B

ig 
Lo

tte
ry 

fun
din

g. 
B 

is 
rea

lly
 in

ter
es

ted
 in

 th
e i

de
a o

f l
ea

din
g 

se
ss

ion
s 

wi
th 

yo
un

ge
r g

irl
s, 

on
e o

f t
he

 n
ew

 st
ran

ds
 of

 th
e p

roj
ec

t, a
s s

he
 fe

els
 th

is 
wi

ll 
co

nti
nu

e 

to 
im

pr
ov

e h
er 

co
nfi

de
nc

e a
nd

 se
lf-

wo
rth

. 

CA
SE

 ST
UD

Y

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 a
du

lt
s 

w
ho

 s
el

f-
ha

rm
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
Le

ed
s 

Su
rv

iv
or

-L
ed

 

Ke
y 

an
d 

W
om

en
’s

 T
he

ra
py

 a
nd

 
Co

un
se

lli
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

. T
he

se
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

fa
ci

ng
 c

ha
lle

ng
in

g 
ti

m
es

. C
ut

s 
to

 fu
nd

in
g,

 w
id

er
 re

fo
rm

s 
ac

ro
ss

 
w

el
fa

re
 a

nd
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 a
nd

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

 b
ar

rie
rs

 to
 a

cc
es

s,
 a

ll 
ha

ve
 a

 d
is

pr
op

or
ti

on
at

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 c

om
m

un
it

ie
s.

 

Page 53



30
 a

nd
 

31
 p

ro
vi

de
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

se
lf-

ha
rm

,  
al

on
g w

ith
 se

lf-
he

lp
 ti

ps
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t l

oc
al

 s
up

po
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

th
is

 c
om

pl
ex

 p
ro

bl
em

. T
he

 L
ee

ds
 

Su
ic

id
e 

A
ud

it 
ha

s 
en

ab
le

d 
a 

gr
ea

te
r 

lo
ca

l u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f s
el

f-
ha

rm
 a

nd
 

ris
k 

in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 s
ui

ci
de

 in
 th

e 
ci

ty
. 

W
or

k 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e 
RE

A
CH

 p
ro

je
ct

32
 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 w

om
en

 h
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
va

lu
ab

le
 in

si
gh

t o
n 

hi
gh

-r
is

k 
gr

ou
ps

. 
RE

A
CH

 st
an

ds
 fo

r R
es

pe
ct

 E
nc

ou
ra

ge
 

RE
A

C
H

 s
el

f-
ha

rm
 in

si
gh

t 
pr

oj
ec

t 
w

as
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 b
y 

N
H

S 
Le

ed
s 

to
 

ad
dr

es
s h

ig
h 

ra
te

s o
f A

&
E 

at
te

nd
an

ce
 

by
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 L

ee
ds

 a
nd

 to
 

re
sp

on
d 

to
 n

at
io

na
l g

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 se

lf-
ha

rm
. T

he
 w

or
k 

w
as

 le
d 

by
 W

om
en

s 

Th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

as
 a

im
ed

 a
t y

ou
ng

 
w

om
en

 a
ge

d 
13

–1
9 

an
d 

w
as

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 g
ai

n 
in

si
gh

t i
nt

o 
th

ei
r s

el
f-

ha
rm

in
g 

be
ha

vi
ou

r. 
Th

e 
re

po
rt

 fo
un

d 
th

at
 th

e 
yo

un
g 

w
om

en
 w

er
e 

en
ga

gi
ng

 in
 a

 
hu

ge
 ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
an

d 
ris

ks
 to

 
th

ei
r w

el
lb

ei
ng

. T
he

 y
ou

ng
 w

om
en

 
w

er
e 

he
lp

ed
 to

  r
ec

og
ni

se
 th

at
 

si
tu

at
io

ns
 w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 in
iti

al
ly

 th
ou

gh
t 

w
er

e 
fu

n,
 su

ch
 a

s g
et

tin
g 

in
to

 c
ar

s 
w

ith
 u

nk
no

w
n 

m
en

, w
er

e 
ac

tu
al

ly
 

ris
k-

ta
ki

ng
 b

eh
av

io
ur

s i
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

ey
 

ha
d 

ve
ry

 li
tt

le
 c

on
tr

ol
 a

nd
 c

ou
ld

 
be

co
m

e 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 v
er

y 
qu

ic
kl

y.
 

 

31

30

‘M
’

M 
wa

s r
efe

rre
d 

to 
the

 W
om

en
’s 

Liv
es

 Le
ed

s C
om

ple
x N

ee
ds

 S
er

vic
e i

n 
Fe

br
ua

ry 

20
17.

 S
he

 h
ad

 p
rob

lem
s w

ith
 m

en
tal

 h
ea

lth
, d

om
es

tic
 ab

us
e, 

ge
nd

ere
d 

vio
len

ce
, 

po
ve

rty
 an

d 
ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
 in

 a 
his

tor
y d

ati
ng

 b
ac

k o
ve

r 1
5 

ye
ar

s. 
Sh

e h
ad

 

pa
rti

cu
lar

 p
rob

lem
s i

n 
he

r r
ela

tio
ns

hip
s w

ith
 h

er 
ch

ild
ren

 b
ut 

wa
s u

ns
ur

e o
f w

he
re 

to 
go

 to
 g

et 
pa

ren
tin

g 
he

lp 
an

d 
su

pp
ort

. S
he

 h
ad

 n
ot 

be
en

 ab
le 

to 
en

ga
ge

 w
ith

 

so
me

 of
 th

e s
tat

uto
ry 

se
rv

ice
s i

n 
the

 p
as

t.

Th
rou

gh
 in

ten
siv

e o
ne

-to
-o

ne
 su

pp
ort

, M
 h

as
 ta

ke
n 

po
sit

ive
 st

ep
s t

ow
ard

s h
er 

fut
ur

e. 
Sh

e h
as

 h
ad

 sa
fet

y f
ea

tur
es

 in
sta

lle
d 

at 
the

 p
rop

ert
y a

nd
 n

ow
 h

as
 h

ou
sin

g 

ba
nd

 A
.

He
r r

ela
tio

ns
hip

 w
ith

 h
er 

ch
ild

ren
 h

as
 im

pr
ov

ed
. S

he
 en

ga
ge

d 
wi

th 
the

 C
hil

dr
en

 an
d 

Fa
mi

lie
s S

oc
ial

 W
ork

 S
er

vic
es

 an
d 

att
en

de
d 

a P
are

nts
 an

d 
Ch

ild
ren

 To
ge

the
r c

ou
rse

. 

He
r d

au
gh

ter
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ref
err

ed
 to

 Ta
rg

ete
d 

Me
nta

l H
ea

lth
 in

 S
ch

oo
ls.

By
 th

e e
nd

 of
 M

arc
h 

M 
wa

s a
lre

ad
y f

ee
lin

g 
str

on
ge

r a
nd

 ta
kin

g 
ba

ck
 co

ntr
ol 

of 
he

r 

sit
ua

tio
n. 

W
ork

ers
 su

pp
ort

ed
 h

er 
to 

go
 b

ac
k t

o h
er 

GP
 an

d 
a c

ha
ng

e i
n 

me
dic

ati
on

 

ha
s h

elp
ed

 M
 to

 sl
ee

p 
be

tte
r a

t n
igh

t. 

M 
ha

s g
ain

ed
 in

 co
nfi

de
nc

e a
nd

 w
ill 

be
 at

ten
din

g 
the

 Le
ed

s W
om

en
’s 

Aid
 S

tay
ing

 

Sa
fe 

Pr
og

ram
me

. T
his

 is
 a 

pr
og

ram
me

 w
he

re 
wo

me
n 

ca
n 

su
pp

ort
 on

e a
no

the
r t

o 

un
de

rst
an

d 
do

me
sti

c a
bu

se
, h

ow
 it

 h
ap

pe
ns

 an
d 

ho
w 

to 
be

co
me

 sa
fe.

 

CA
SE

 ST
UD

Y

‘W
e 
kn

ow
 p
ov

er
ty
, a

bu
se
 a
nd

 v
io
le
nc

e 
ar
e 
in
eq

ua
lit
ie
s t

ha
t a

re
 d
isp

ro
po

rt
io
na

te
ly
 su

ff
er
ed

 
by

 w
om

en
, w

hi
ch

 c
on

tr
ib
ut
es
 to

 th
e 
pi
ct
ur
e 
of
 p
oo

r m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

, i
ns
ec

ur
e 
ho

us
in
g 
an

d 
wo

rk
, a

nd
 d
isa

bi
lit
y, 
co

m
bi
ne

d 
wi
th
 h
ig
h 
le
ve

ls 
of
 c
ar
in
g 
re
sp
on

sib
ili
tie

s. 
W
om

en
’s 
Li
ve

s 
Le

ed
s p

ro
vi
de

s a
 g
re
at
 o
pp

or
tu
ni
ty
 n
ot
 o
nl
y 
to
 d
ire

ct
ly
 d
el
iv
er
 p
os
iti
ve

 o
ut
co

m
es
 fo

r w
om

en
 

an
d 
gi
rls

, b
ut
 a
lso

 e
na

bl
es
 a
 p
la
tf
or
m
 fo

r t
he

 p
ar
tn
er
 o
rg
an

isa
tio

ns
 to

 in
flu

en
ce

 p
ol
ic
y 
an

d 
st
ra
te
gy

 in
 L
ee

ds
. W

e 
ar
e 
ve

ry
 o
pt
im

ist
ic
 a
bo

ut
 o
ur
 a
bi
lit
y 
as
 a
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 to

 g
en

er
at
e 
th
e 

sy
st
em

 c
ha

ng
e 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 a
ch

ie
ve

 im
pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 
he

al
th
 o
f d

isa
dv

an
ta
ge

d 
wo

m
en

 a
nd

 
gi
rls

 w
ith

 m
ul
tip

le
 a
nd

 c
om

pl
ex

 n
ee

ds
.’

G
em

m
a 

Sc
iré

,  
Ch

ai
r o

f W
om

en
’s

 L
iv

es
 L

ee
ds

  

30
 h

tt
ps

:/
/w

w
w

.m
in

dw
el

l-
le

ed
s.

or
g.

uk
/

31
 h

tt
ps

:/
/w

w
w

.m
in

dm
at

e.
or

g.
uk

/
32

 R
EA

CH
: A

 s
el

f h
ar

m
 in

si
gh

t p
ro

je
ct

   
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.w

om
en

sh
ea

lt
hm

at
te

rs
.o

rg
.u

k/
w

p-
co

nt
en

t/
up

lo
ad

s/
RE

A
CH

-F
in

al
-R

ep
or

t3
.p

df

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

RE
C
O
M
M
EN
D
AT
IO
N
S

H
ea

lt
h 

te
am

 to
 le

ad
 in

si
gh

t 
w

or
k 

w
it

h 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
it

ie
s 

to
 

ex
pl

or
e 

an
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 s

el
f-

ha
rm

 b
eh

av
io

ur
s.

Le
ed

s C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

Pu
bl

ic
  H

ea
lt

h 
te

am
s t

o 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 fu
rt

he
r 

de
ve

lo
p 

ta
rg

et
ed

 e
ar

ly
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

po
sit

ive
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 s

el
f-

ha
rm

 ri
sk

 in
 g

irl
s 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
w

om
en

.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

W
om
en
’s
 L
iv
es
 L
ee
ds
 

W
om

en
’s

 L
iv

es
 L

ee
ds

 is
 a

 u
ni

qu
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

fo
rm

ed
 b

y 
12

 w
om

en
’s

 
an

d 
gi

rl
s’

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 fr

om
 a

cr
os

s 
Le

ed
s 

w
hi

ch
 s

pe
ci

al
is

e 
in

 d
ea

lin
g 

w
it

h 
do

m
es

ti
c 

vi
ol

en
ce

, m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
, s

ex
ua

l h
ea

lt
h,

 s
ex

 w
or

k,
 

an
d 

ed
uc

at
io

n.
 T

he
 a

im
 is

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

su
pp

or
t g

iv
en

 to
 th

e 
m

os
t v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
w

om
en

 a
nd

 g
irl

s.
 

w
it

h 
w

om
en

 a
nd

 g
irl

s 
fr

om
 b

la
ck

 
an

d 
m

in
or

it
y 

et
hn

ic
 g

ro
up

s.
 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 p
hy

si
ca

l a
nd

 s
ex

ua
l 

vi
ol

en
ce

 a
nd

 a
bu

se
 is

 li
nk

ed
 to

 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lt
h 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
an

d 
ph

ys
ic

al
 h

ea
lt

h 
co

nd
it

io
ns

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

al
co

ho
l a

nd
 d

ru
g 

de
pe

nd
en

cy
. I

t i
s 

al
so

 li
nk

ed
 to

 
po

ve
rt

y 
an

d 
jo

b 
in

se
cu

rit
y.

 T
he

 
 

by
 th

os
e 

w
ho

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

vi
ol

en
ce

 
ov

er
 th

ei
r l

ife
 c

ou
rs

e,
 o

f w
ho

m
  

80
%

 a
re

 w
om

en
.

W
om

en
’s

 L
iv

es
 L

ee
ds

 u
se

 th
ei

r 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

kn
ow

le
dg

e,
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
an

d 
ne

tw
or

ks
 to

 re
ac

h 
m

or
e 

w
om

en
, e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 th
os

e 
w

ho
 a

re
 

m
os

t v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e,

 a
nd

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

ho
lis

ti
c,

 jo
in

ed
-u

p 
su

pp
or

t,
 n

o 
m

at
te

r w
he

re
 in

 th
e 

ci
ty

 th
e 

 
w

om
en

 li
ve

. T
he

y 
do

 th
is

 b
y:

• 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
 c

o-
pr

od
uc

ti
on

 
m

od
el

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

ey
 re

ac
h 

th
e 

m
os

t v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

w
om

en
• 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t s

up
po

rt
 

fo
r w

om
en

 w
it

h 
m

ul
ti

pl
e 

an
d 

co
m

pl
ex

 n
ee

ds
 

• 
su

pp
or

ti
ng

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 p

ee
r s

up
po

rt
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
ci

ty
• 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 a

 V
irt

ua
l W

om
en

’s
 

Ce
nt

re
 –

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
po

in
t o

f 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
Th

ro
ug

h 
th

is
 w

or
k,

 W
om

en
’s

 
Li

ve
s 

Le
ed

s 
se

ek
s 

to
:

• 
im

pr
ov

e 
an

d 
ex

te
nd

 a
cc

es
s 

 
fo

r v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

w
om

en
 a

nd
 

gi
rl

s 
to

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 
su

pp
or

t t
he

y 
w

an
t,

 w
he

n 
 

an
d 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 c

ho
os

e
• 

pr
ov

id
e 

ho
lis

ti
c 

re
sp

on
se

s 
to

 m
ee

ti
ng

 c
om

pl
ex

 a
nd

 
m

ul
ti

pl
e 

ne
ed

s 
• 

em
po

w
er

 w
om

en
 a

nd
 

gi
rl

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
ei

r p
ee

rs
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t,

 d
el

iv
er

y 
an

d 
de

si
gn

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

ci
ty

.

Page 54



33

32

W
e 

ha
ve

 k
no

w
n 

fo
r m

an
y 

ye
ar

s 
th

at
 

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 ta

ke
 il

lic
it

 d
ru

gs
 fa

ce
 a

 
va

rie
ty

 o
f p

ot
en

ti
al

 h
ea

lt
h 

ris
ks

 a
nd

 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
 th

e 
gl

ob
al

 b
ur

de
n 

of
 

di
se

as
e.

33
 W

hi
ls

t t
he

 le
ve

l o
f d

ru
g 

m
is

us
e 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 W

al
es

 h
as

 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

fa
irl

y 
st

ab
le

 fo
r a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 y

ea
rs

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 in

 th
e 

16
–2

4 
ye

ar
 

ol
d 

po
pu

la
ti

on
, t

he
 in

ci
de

nc
es

 o
f a

ll 
dr

ug
 p

oi
so

ni
ng

, d
ru

g 
m

is
us

e 
de

at
h 

an
d 

op
ia

te
-r

el
at

ed
 d

ea
th

 a
re

 a
t t

he
 

hi
gh

es
t l

ev
el

s 
in

 th
e 

U
K 

si
nc

e 
re

co
rd

s 
34

 
In

 2
01

6,
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 

al
on

e 
ov

er
to

ok
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e 

Bu
t w

ha
t d

o 
w

e 
m

ea
n 

w
he

n 
w

e 
ta

lk
 

ab
ou

t d
ru

g 
po

is
on

in
g 

an
d 

dr
ug

 m
is

us
e 

de
at

h?
 W

ha
t i

s a
n 

op
ia

te
 o

r o
pi

oi
d?

 
A

nd
 w

hy
 a

re
 so

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 d
yi

ng
? 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
   
   
   
   
  O
pi
at
es
/o
pi
oi
ds

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

  
Tr

ad
it

io
na

lly
 ‘o

pi
at

es
’ r

ef
er

s 
to

 
dr

ug
s 

de
riv

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
op

iu
m

 
po

pp
y,

 fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e 

m
or

ph
in

e 
an

d 
he

ro
in

, w
he

re
as

 ‘o
pi

oi
ds

’ r
ef

er
s 

to
 d

ru
gs

 m
an

-m
ad

e 
fo

r u
se

 in
 

m
ed

ic
in

e 
– 

fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e,

 fe
nt

an
yl

, 
ox

yc
od

on
e 

an
d 

co
de

in
e 

– 
an

d 
pr

es
cr

ib
ed

 b
y 

a 
do

ct
or

. H
ow

ev
er

 
th

e 
tw

o 
te

rm
s 

ar
e 

of
te

n 
us

ed
 

in
te

rc
ha

ng
ea

bl
y.

 

A
ll 

of
 th

es
e 

op
ia

te
 o

r o
pi

oi
d 

dr
ug

s 
ac

t o
n 

th
e 

ne
rv

ou
s 

sy
st

em
 to

 
re

lie
ve

 p
ai

n,
 b

ut
 c

an
 a

ls
o 

ha
ve

 a
 

op
io

id
s 

– 
ev

en
 w

he
n 

pr
es

cr
ib

ed
 b

y 
a 

do
ct

or
 –

 c
an

 le
ad

 to
 p

oi
so

ni
ng

, 
ov

er
do

se
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

an
d 

de
at

h.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
   
   
   
   
  D
ru
g-
re
la
te
d 
de
at
h

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

Ce
nt

re
 fo

r D
ru

gs
 &

 D
ru

g 

a 
dr

ug
-r

el
at

ed
 d

ea
th

 a
s 

a 
de

at
h 

ha
pp

en
in

g 
sh

or
tl

y 
af

te
r 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

of
 o

ne
 o

r m
or

e 
ps

yc
ho

ac
ti

ve
 d

ru
gs

, a
nd

 d
ire

ct
ly

 
re

la
te

d 
to

 t
ha

t 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n.
 

In
 t

he
 U

K,
 d

ea
th

 fr
om

 ‘d
ru

g 
po

is
on

in
g’

 in
cl

ud
es

 le
ga

l a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

ill
eg

al
 d

ru
gs

, a
cc

id
en

ta
l 

po
is

on
in

g 
an

d 
su

ic
id

es
 a

nd
 

de
at

hs
 d

ue
 t

o 
dr

ug
 m

is
us

e.
 

A
 ‘d

ru
g 

m
is

us
e 

de
at

h’
 is

 a
 d

ea
th

 
ar

is
in

g 
fr

om
 d

ru
g 

ab
us

e 
or

 
dr

ug
 d

ep
en

de
nc

e 
an

d 
w

he
re

 
th

e 
un

de
rl

yi
ng

 c
au

se
 is

 d
ru

g 
po

is
on

in
g 

fr
om

 a
ny

 s
ub

st
an

ce
 

D
ru

gs
 A

ct
 19

71
. T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 
al

l d
ru

gs
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 il
le

ga
l i

n 
th

e 
U

K,
 fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e,
 c

oc
ai

ne
, 

am
ph

et
am

in
es

 a
nd

 e
cs

ta
sy

.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

Pr
ev

en
ti

ng
 d

ea
th

s 
fr

om
 d

ru
g 

m
is

us
e 

ha
s 

be
co

m
e 

a 
na

ti
on

al
 p

rio
rit

y.
 T

he
 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
ris

e 
in

 d
ea

th
s 

fr
om

 d
ru

g 
m

is
us

e 
le

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lt
h 

En
gl

an
d 

na
ti

on
al

 in
qu

iry
 to

 in
ve

st
ig

at
e 

th
e 

ris
e 

an
d 

pr
ev

en
ti

on
 o

f t
he

se
 d

ru
g 

de
at

hs
.3

5,
36

 In
 2

01
6,

 th
e 

A
dv

is
or

y 

re
du

ce
 o

pi
at

e-
re

la
te

d 
de

at
hs

.3
7  A

nd
 

th
is

 y
ea

r h
as

 s
ee

n 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 U
K 

D
ru

g 
St

ra
te

gy
38

 
w

hi
ch

 s
ig

na
ls

 th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t’s

 
co

m
m

it
m

en
t t

o 
th

e 
pr

ev
en

ti
on

 a
nd

 
tr

ea
tm

en
t o

f d
ru

g 
m

is
us

e.
In

 2
01

6,
 3

,7
44

 p
eo

pl
e 

di
ed

 in
 

En
gl

an
d 

an
d 

W
al

es
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt
 o

f 
dr

ug
 p

oi
so

ni
ng

, a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
f 7

0 

de
at

hs
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

al
l i

lle
ga

l d
ru

gs
, n

ot
 

ju
st

 o
pi

at
es

. 

fr
om

 y
ea

r t
o 

ye
ar

, d
ru

g 
m

is
us

e 
de

at
hs

 h
av

e 
sh

ow
n 

a 
‘p

er
si

st
en

t 
ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

 ri
se

’3
9  

si
nc

e 
re

co
rd

s 
be

ga
n 

in
 19

93
. T

he
 m

aj
or

it
y 

of
 th

es
e 

de
at

hs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 fr
om

 h
er

oi
n/

op
ia

te
 m

is
us

e.
In

 2
01

6,
 o

ve
r h

al
f o

f d
ru

g 
po

is
on

in
g 

de
at

hs
 in

vo
lv

ed
 o

pi
at

es
. O

pi
at

e-
re

la
te

d 
de

at
hs

 h
av

e 
ris

en
 b

y 
60

%
 in

 
En

gl
an

d 
an

d 
W

al
es

 s
in

ce
 2

01
2.

D
RU
G
-R
EL
AT
ED
 

D
EA
TH
S 
IN
 M
EN

13
9 

pe
op

le
 d

ie
d 

fr
om

  
dr

ug
 m

is
us

e 
in

 L
ee

ds
)

50
% 

of
 d

ru
g 

po
is

on
in

g 
 

de
at

hs
 in

vo
lv

ed
  

op
ia

te
s 

 
of

 th
e 

dr
ug

 m
is

us
e 

 
de

at
hs

 w
er

e 
in

 m
en

 

40
-4
9

ye
ar

 a
ge

 g
ro

up
 h

av
e 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t r

at
es

 o
f  

dr
ug

 
m

is
us

e 
de

at
hs

33
 

D
eg

en
ha

rd
t, 

L 
et

 a
l 

La
nc

et
 

34
D

ea
th

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 d
ru

g 
po

is
on

in
g 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 W

al
es

: 2
01

6 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

ns
 

 
ht

tp
s:

//
w

w
w

.o
ns

.g
ov

.u
k/

pe
op

le
po

pu
la

tio
na

nd
co

m
m

un
ity

/b
irt

hs
de

at
hs

an
dm

ar
ria

ge
s/

de
at

hs
/b

ul
le

tin
s/

 d
ea

th
sr

el
at

ed
to

dr
ug

po
is

on
in

gi
ne

ng
la

nd
an

dw
al

es
/2

01
6r

eg
is

tr
at

io
ns

35
U

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 a
nd

 p
re

ve
nt

in
g 

dr
ug

-r
el

at
ed

 d
ea

th
s 

 h
tt

p:
//

w
w

w
.n

ta
.n

hs
.u

k/
up

lo
ad

s/
ph

e-
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g-

pr
ev

en
ti

ng
-d

rd
s.

pd
f

36
 P

re
ve

nt
in

g 
dr

ug
-r

el
at

ed
 d

ea
th

s:
 c

as
e 

st
ud

ie
s 

 h
tt

ps
:/

/w
w

w
.lo

ca
l.g

ov
.u

k/
pr

ev
en

ti
ng

-d
ru

g-
re

la
te

d-
de

at
hs

37
Re

du
cin

g 
op

io
id

-r
el

at
ed

 d
ea

th
s i

n 
th

e 
U

K 
 h

tt
ps

:/
/w

w
w

.g
ov

.u
k/

go
ve

rn
m

en
t/

pu
bl

ic
at

io
ns

/r
ed

uc
in

g-
op

io
id

-r
el

at
ed

-d
ea

th
s-

in
-t

he
-u

k
38

D
ru

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 2

01
7 

 h
tt

ps
:/

/w
w

w
.g

ov
.u

k/
go

ve
rn

m
en

t/
pu

bl
ic

at
io

ns
/d

ru
g-

st
ra

te
gy

-2
01

7
39

H
ea

lth
 m

at
te

rs
: h

er
oi

n 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y a
nd

 d
ru

g 
m

isu
se

 d
ea

th
s h

tt
ps

://
pu

bl
ich

ea
lth

m
at

te
rs

.b
lo

g.
go

v.u
k/

20
17

/0
3/

01
/h

ea
lth

-m
at

te
rs

-h
er

oi
n-

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y-

an
d-

dr
ug

-m
isu

se
-d

ea
th

s/

Page 55



35

34

A
he

ad
 o

f c
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t w

e 
ha

ve
 a

lr
ea

dy
 im

pr
ov

ed
 th

e 
re

po
rt

in
g,

 
m

on
it

or
in

g 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
w

it
h 

Fo
rw

ar
d 

Le
ed

s,
 th

e 
lo

ca
l d

ru
g 

an
d 

al
co

ho
l s

er
vi

ce
, a

bo
ut

 d
ru

g 
de

at
hs

 
am

on
gs

t p
eo

pl
e 

ac
ti

ve
ly

 e
ng

ag
ed

 
w

it
h 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 a
ls

o 
st

re
ng

th
en

ed
 li

nk
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
be

tt
er

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n-

sh
ar

in
g 

w
it

h 
th

e 

W
e 

ar
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
  

w
it

h 
Fo

rw
ar

d 
Le

ed
s,

 N
H

S 
Le

ed
s 

an
d 

th
e 

he
al

th
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
te

am
 to

 
ad

dr
es

s 
fa

ct
or

s 
w

hi
ch

 in
cr

ea
se

 ri
sk

 
to

 th
is

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

 T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 

ge
ne

ra
l h

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
ad

dr
es

si
ng

 th
e 

br
oa

de
r p

hy
si

ca
l a

nd
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lt
h 

ne
ed

s 
of

 o
ur

 a
ge

in
g 

he
ro

in
/o

pi
at

e 
us

er
 p

op
ul

at
io

n.
 

40
–4

9 
ye

ar
 a

ge
 g

ro
up

 h
ad

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t 

ra
te

 o
f d

ru
g 

m
is

us
e 

de
at

hs
 a

nd
 th

e 
la

rg
es

t i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 o
pi

at
e-

re
la

te
d 

de
at

hs
. T

he
se

 w
er

e 
th

e 
pe

op
le

 
w

ho
 w

er
e 

in
 th

ei
r m

id
 to

 la
te

 te
en

s 

us
e)

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

he
ro

in
 ‘e

pi
de

m
ic

’ 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 in
 th

e 
U

K 
fr

om
 th

e 
ea

rly
 

19
80

s 
to

 th
e 

m
id

 to
 la

te
 19

90
s.

 T
hi

s 

lin
k 

be
tw

ee
n 

a 
st

at
is

tic
al

 o
bs

er
va

tio
n 

an
d 

a 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 a
ge

 g
ro

up
. 

Th
er

e 
is

 s
tr

on
g 

ev
id

en
ce

 th
at

 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 fa
ta

l o
ve

rd
os

e 
am

on
g 

he
ro

in
/o

pi
at

e 
us

er
s 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 w

it
h 

ag
e.

 In
 th

e 
sh

or
t t

o 
m

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
 th

en
, a

s 
th

e 
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

s,
 w

e 
m

ay
 

be
 o

bs
er

vi
ng

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 ra

te
 

of
 o

pi
at

e-
re

la
te

d 
de

at
hs

 a
m

on
g 

a 
dw

in
dl

in
g 

po
pu

la
ti

on
 o

f o
ld

er
 

us
er

s.
 O

pi
at

e-
re

la
te

d 
de

at
hs

 h
av

e 
fa

lle
n 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 a
m

on
g 

pe
op

le
 

un
de

r 3
0 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
ea

rl
y 

20
00

s.
 T

hi
s 

su
gg

es
ts

 th
at

, i
f n

o 
ne

w
 w

av
e 

of
 

he
ro

in
 o

r o
pi

at
e 

us
e 

oc
cu

rs
, t

he
 U

K 
co

ul
d 

se
e 

a 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 
op

ia
te

-r
el

at
ed

 d
ea

th
s.

 
Re

ce
nt

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
su

gg
es

ts
 th

at
 th

e 

on
ly

 a
 p

ar
ti

al
 e

xp
la

na
ti

on
 fo

r t
he

 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 d
ru

g 
m

is
us

e 
de

at
hs

 s
in

ce
 

20
12

 b
ec

au
se

 d
ru

g 
de

at
hs

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
oc

cu
rr

in
g 

in
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 n
um

be
rs

 
ac

ro
ss

 o
th

er
 a

ge
 g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
fr

om
 

D
ru

gs
 im

pl
ic

at
ed

 in
 s

om
e 

of
 th

es
e 

de
at

hs
, a

nd
 o

f c
on

ce
rn

, i
nc

lu
de

 n
ew

 
ps

yc
ho

ac
ti

ve
 s

ub
st

an
ce

s 
lik

e 
th

e 

pr
eg

ab
al

in
 a

nd
 g

ab
ap

en
ti

n.
 T

he
re

 
ar

e 
al

so
 c

on
ti

nu
ed

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 d
ru

g 
m

is
us

e 
de

at
hs

 w
he

re
 c

oc
ai

ne
 a

nd
 

be
nz

od
ia

ze
pi

ne
s 

w
er

e 
m

en
ti

on
ed

 o
n 

th
er

ef
or

e 
be

 in
 p

la
y.

W
ha

t’s
 

ha
pp

en
in
g 
in
 

Le
ed

s?
A

lt
ho

ug
h 

lo
ca

l r
ec

or
ds

 o
nl

y 
go

 b
ac

k 
15

 y
ea

rs
, a

ll 
th

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 p

oi
nt

s 

pi
ct

ur
e.

 L
ee

ds
 to

o 
is

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
in

g 
a 

‘p
er

si
st

en
t b

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
ris

e’
 in

 d
ru

g 
m

is
us

e 
de

at
hs

. I
n 

al
l, 

13
9 

pe
op

le
 

di
ed

 in
 2

01
4–

16
 a

nd
 m

or
e 

m
en

 d
ie

d 

ar
e 

al
so

 s
ee

in
g 

a 
ris

e 
in

 d
ea

th
s 

in
 

ol
de

r, 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 o
pi

at
e 

us
er

s.
 T

he
re

 
is

 g
oo

d 
ne

w
s 

in
 th

at
, i

n 
lin

e 
w

it
h 

th
e 

na
ti

on
al

 p
ic

tu
re

, w
e 

ar
e 

no
t s

ee
in

g 
a 

ris
e 

in
 d

ea
th

s 
in

 y
ou

ng
er

 o
pi

at
e 

or
 

op
io

id
 u

se
rs

. H
ow

ev
er

, w
e 

no
w

 h
av

e 
a 

ne
w

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
– 

ris
in

g 
de

at
hs

, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 m
en

, f
ro

m
 o

th
er

 

in
vo

lv
ed

.

Pr
ev

en
tin

g 
de

at
hs

 fr
om

 d
ru

g 
m

is
us

e 
is

 a
 p

rio
rit

y 
fo

r L
ee

ds
 T

he
re

 is
 a

n 
ur

ge
nt

 n
ee

d 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

m
or

e 
ab

ou
t w

ha
t i

s 
go

in
g 

on
 in

 L
ee

ds
 w

ith
 

th
is

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
pa

tt
er

n 
of

 d
ea

th
s.

 A
ls

o,
 

w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 b

et
te

r u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

lin
ks

 to
 o

th
er

 h
ea

lt
h 

is
su

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
H

IV
, h

ep
at

iti
s 

C,
 s

ex
ua

lly
 tr

an
sm

itt
ed

 
di

se
as

es
 a

nd
 m

en
ta

l i
lln

es
s.

 A
m

on
g 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
e’

ve
 a

ls
o 

no
te

d 
an

 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 in
fe

ct
io

us
 e

nd
oc

ar
di

tis
, 

an
 in

fe
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
he

ar
t v

al
ve

, o
ft

en
 

ca
us

ed
 b

y 
re

-u
se

 a
nd

 s
ha

rin
g 

of
 

co
nt

am
in

at
ed

 s
yr

in
ge

s.
 A

ll 
of

 w
hi

ch
 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
an

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 tr
ea

tm
en

t 
an

d 
ca

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 L

ee
ds

 D
ru

g 
an

d 
40

 a
nd

 
in

 li
ne

 w
it

h 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lt
h 

En
gl

an
d 

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s,
 P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lt
h 

is
 

un
de

rt
ak

in
g 

an
 a

ud
it

 o
f d

ru
g 

m
is

us
e 

de
at

hs
 in

 L
ee

ds
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
it

h 
th

e 
Co

ro
ne

r. 
Th

e 
au

di
t c

ov
er

s 
10

2 
de

at
hs

 o
cc

ur
rin

g 
du

rin
g 

20
14

–1
6.

 
In

 li
ne

 w
it

h 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
, m

en
 

ac
co

un
t f

or
 8

0%
 o

f t
he

se
 d

ea
th

s,
 

w
it

h 
a 

pe
ak

 in
 th

e 
30

-4
5 

ag
e 

gr
ou

p.
 T

he
 a

ud
it

 w
ill

 g
iv

e 
us

 a
 

be
tt

er
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f t

he
 ri

sk
 

fa
ct

or
s 

an
d 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
ti

cs
 th

at
 

ha
ve

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
ed

 to
 th

e 
st

or
y 

of
 

ea
ch

 p
er

so
n’

s 
lif

e 
an

d 
th

ei
r o

ft
en

 
pr

em
at

ur
e 

de
at

h.
 T

he
 a

ud
it

 s
ho

ul
d 

al
so

 h
el

p 
us

 ta
rg

et
 in

te
rv

en
ti

on
s 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 th

es
e 

de
at

hs
 in

 w
ay

s 
th

at
 b

et
te

r m
ee

t t
he

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

w
e 

no
w

 fa
ce

. 
40

Le
ed

s 
dr

ug
 a

nd
 a

lc
oh

ol
 st

ra
te

gy
 2

01
6–

20
18

  h
tt

p:
//

ob
se

rv
at

or
y.

le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

/r
es

ou
rc

e/
vi

ew
?r

es
ou

rc
eI

d=
50

28

14
0

12
0

10
0

80 60 40 20 0
 

20
01

 
20

02
 

20
03

 
20

04
 

20
05

 
20

06
 

20
07

 
20

08
 

20
09

 
20

10
 

20
11

 
20

12
 

20
13

 
20

14
   

 
20

03
 

20
04

 
20

05
  

20
06

 
20

07
 

20
08

 
20

09
 

20
10

 
20

11
 

20
12

 
20

13
 

20
14

 
20

15
 

20
16

3-
ye

ar
 a

gg
re

ga
te

 p
er

io
ds

Fe
m

al
e

Pe
rs

on
s

Number of deaths

N
U
M
BE
R 
O
F 
D
EA
TH
S 
RE
LA
TE
D
 T
O
 D
RU
G
 M
IS
U
SE
 IN
 L
EE
D
S.
 A
LL
 P
ER
SO
N
S,
 M
AL
ES
 A
N
D
 F
EM
AL
ES
 

IN
 L
EE
D
S 
- 
RE
G
IS
TE
RE
D
 D
EA
TH
S 
BE
TW
EE
N
 2
00
1 
AN
D
 2
01
6

‘R’ R 
is 

a 4
4-

ye
ar

-o
ld 

for
me

r h
ero

in 
us

er 
no

w 
on

 op
iat

e s
ub

sti
tut

e t
rea

tm
en

t. R
 b

eg
an

 

us
ing

 h
ero

in 
in 

his
 la

te 
tee

ns
 w

he
n 

he
 w

as
 p

rev
en

ted
 b

y a
n 

inj
ur

y f
rom

 p
lay

ing
 

sp
ort

. W
ha

t b
eg

an
 as

 on
e-

off
 u

se
 q

uic
kly

 d
ev

elo
pe

d 
int

o a
dd

ict
ion

 an
d 

R 
sta

rte
d 

 

to 
en

ga
ge

 in
 lo

w-
lev

el 
cri

mi
na

l a
cti

vit
ies

 to
 su

pp
ort

 h
is 

da
ily

 h
ab

it. 
R 

co
nti

nu
ed

 

to 
us

e h
ero

in 
for

 al
mo

st 
25

 ye
ar

s, 
wi

th 
br

ea
ks

 w
he

n 
he

 w
as

 in
 p

ris
on

. H
e c

am
e t

o 

Fo
rw

ard
 Le

ed
s f

or 
he

lp 
wh

en
 h

e r
ea

lis
ed

 th
at 

life
 w

as
 p

as
sin

g 
him

 b
y i

n 
a b

lur
.  

He
 is

 co
nti

nu
ing

 to
 w

ork
 h

is 
wa

y t
hr

ou
gh

 a 
me

tha
do

ne
 p

rog
ram

me
 u

nti
l h

e i
s  

rea
dy

 fo
r a

 fu
ll 

de
tox

.

CA
SE

 ST
UD

Y

Page 56



37

36

Si
nc

e 
20

16
, w

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

di
st

rib
ut

in
g 

na
lo

xo
ne

 k
it

s 
fo

r u
se

 
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

it
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

Fo
rw

ar
d 

Le
ed

s.
 T

hi
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
ho

w
n 

to
 b

e 

de
at

hs
 fr

om
 a

cc
id

en
ta

l o
ve

rd
os

e 
of

 o
pi

at
es

. N
al

ox
on

e 
is

 a
 d

ru
g 

th
at

 

op
ia

te
 a

nd
 o

pi
oi

d 
dr

ug
s.

 W
he

n 
it

 
is

 in
je

ct
ed

 in
to

 a
 m

us
cl

e 
it

 ra
pi

dl
y 

fo
r a

bo
ut

 2
0 

m
in

ut
es

, a
llo

w
in

g 
m

or
e 

ti
m

e 
fo

r e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 a

rr
iv

e 

a 
lif

e.
 

Si
nc

e 
Fo

rw
ar

d 
Le

ed
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 
di

st
rib

ut
in

g 
th

es
e 

na
lo

xo
ne

 k
it

s,
 11

 
ki

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 u
se

d 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

ed
 to

 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e.
 T

ha
t’s

 11
 li

ve
s 

sa
ve

d 
fr

om
 

ac
ci

de
nt

al
ly

 o
ve

rd
os

in
g 

w
hi

ls
t i

n 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
it

y.
 

Th
e 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

of
 n

al
ox

on
e 

w
ill

 
co

nt
in

ue
 in

 L
ee

ds
. W

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
in

g 
th

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 o
f o

ur
 

na
lo

xo
ne

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 w

e 
m

ak
e 

th
is

 li
fe

-s
av

in
g 

dr
ug

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 p
eo

pl
e 

at
 k

ey
 p

oi
nt

s 
of

 ri
sk

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
w

he
n 

le
av

in
g 

ho
sp

ita
l o

r o
n 

re
le

as
e 

fr
om

 p
ris

on
. 

Fo
rw

ar
d 
Le

ed
s 

‒ 
th
e 
lo
ca

l d
ru
g 

an
d 
al
co

ho
l 

se
rv
ic
e 

th
e 

ne
w

ly
 re

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 L

ee
ds

 D
ru

g 
an

d 
A

lc
oh

ol
 

Pr
ev

en
ti

on
 a

nd
 T

re
at

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

 
– 

Fo
rw

ar
d 

Le
ed

s.
 A

s 
w

it
h 

al
co

ho
l 

tr
ea

tm
en

t,
 w

e 
ar

e 
st

ar
ti

ng
 to

 s
ee

 

ap
pe

ar
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

ge
nd

er
 

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r t
he

 m
aj

or
it

y 
of

 

cl
ie

nt
s 

en
te

rin
g 

dr
ug

 t
re

at
m

en
t 

en
te

rin
g 

tr
ea

tm
en

t 
fo

r h
er

oi
n 

or
 

op
ia

te
 a

dd
ic

ti
on

. O
f t

ho
se

 s
ta

rt
in

g 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

fo
r o

pi
at

e 
ad

di
ct

io
n,

 7
2%

 
ha

d 
re

ce
iv

ed
 t

re
at

m
en

t 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

. 
Th

is
 m

ea
ns

 t
ha

t 
at

 s
om

e 
po

in
t 

th
ey

 
ha

ve
 le

ft
 o

r b
ec

om
e 

di
se

ng
ag

ed
 

fr
om

 d
ru

g 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
pu

tt
in

g 
th

em
 a

t 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

ris
k 

of
 

ha
rm

 a
nd

 o
f d

ea
th

. 
Th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f m

al
e 

cl
ie

nt
s 

en
te

rin
g 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

in
 2

01
6–

17
 w

it
h 

op
ia

te
s 

as
 t

he
ir 

pr
im

ar
y 

su
bs

ta
nc

e 
of

 u
se

 w
as

 a
bo

ut
 2

0%
 o

f t
he

 t
ot

al
. 

Th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ha
s 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
 a

 s
te

ad
y 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 t

he
 n

um
be

r o
f e

nt
ra

nt
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 c
ho

os
in

g 
to

 in
je

ct
 t

he
ir 

th
at

 t
hi

s 
ty

pe
 o

f d
ru

g 
us

e 
ca

rr
ie

s 
w

it
h 

it
 t

he
 h

ig
he

st
 ri

sk
.

Th
e 

m
os

t 
co

m
m

on
 a

ge
 fo

r e
nt

er
in

g 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ov

er
 t

hi
s 

pe
rio

d 
w

as
 

35
–4

4 
ye

ar
s,

 c
lo

se
ly

 fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

25
–3

4 
ye

ar
 a

ge
 g

ro
up

. D
ue

 t
o 

th
e 

da
te

 w
he

n 
Fo

rw
ar

d 
Le

ed
s 

st
ar

te
d 

w
or

k 
in

 t
he

 c
it

y 
w

e 
ar

e 
un

ab
le

 t
o 

ye
ar

s 
to

 g
et

 a
 p

ic
tu

re
 o

f w
he

th
er

 
yo

un
ge

r p
eo

pl
e 

ar
e 

en
te

rin
g 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 T
hi

s 
is

 s
om

et
hi

ng
 w

e 
ne

ed
 

to
 k

ee
p 

an
 e

ye
 o

n 
in

 t
he

 fu
tu

re
.

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l 

tr
ea

tm
en

t 
co

m
pl

et
io

ns
 fo

r 
op

ia
te

s 
is

 t
he

 lo
w

es
t 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
of

 
th

e 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

gr
ou

ps
 w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e.
 H

ow
ev

er
, w

hi
ls

t w
e 

w
an

t 

st
rik

e 
th

e 
rig

ht
 b

al
an

ce
. I

t 
is

 n
ot

 
ju

st
 a

 m
at

te
r o

f s
ee

ki
ng

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

a 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 in
di

ca
to

r. 
W

e 
ne

ed
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

su
re

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
rig

ht
 p

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
in

 d
ru

g 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

fo
r t

he
 

rig
ht

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f t

im
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

su
st

ai
ne

d 
re

co
ve

ry
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

s 
do

 n
ot

 in
cr

ea
se

 t
he

ir 
ris

k 
of

 h
ar

m
, o

r e
ve

n 
de

at
h,

 t
hr

ou
gh

 
di

se
ng

ag
in

g 
w

it
h 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 
Fo

rw
ar

d 
Le

ed
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 o

pi
at

e 
us

er
s 

w
it

h 
as

pe
ct

s 
of

 t
he

ir 
liv

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 s

ec
ur

e 
ho

us
in

g,
 s

oc
ia

l s
up

po
rt

 n
et

w
or

ks
, 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

an
d 

re
si

lie
nc

e 
to

 h
el

p 
ac

hi
ev

e 
su

st
ai

ne
d 

re
co

ve
ry

.

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
po

si
ti

ve
 s

ig
ns

. A
s 

w
it

h 
al

co
ho

l, 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

w
ho

 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 th
ei

r o
pi

at
e 

tr
ea

tm
en

t a
nd

 d
id

 n
ot

 re
-p

re
se

nt
 

to
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

it
hi

n 
si

x 
m

on
th

s 
– 

a 
na

ti
on

al
 in

di
ca

to
r –

 h
as

 s
te

ad
ily

 

fo
r 6

2%
 o

f o
pi

at
e 

us
er

s 
w

ho
 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 tr

ea
tm

en
t 

an
d 

di
d 

no
t r

e-
pr

es
en

t.
 T

he
se

 
re

ce
nt

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 g
re

at
 

ne
w

s 
as

 w
e 

kn
ow

 th
ro

ug
h 

ev
id

en
ce

 

tr
ea

tm
en

t c
an

 h
av

e.
41

Fo
rw

ar
d 

Le
ed

s 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
ei

r o
ut

re
ac

h 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

Th
is

 w
ill

 in
tr

od
uc

e 
cl

ie
nt

s 
to

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ho

 w
ill

 th
en

 b
e 

m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 e

ng
ag

e 
w

it
h 

th
ei

r t
re

at
m

en
t 

an
d 

re
co

ve
ry

. H
ow

ev
er

, w
e 

do
 s

ti
ll 

ne
ed

 to
 re

vi
ew

 tr
ea

tm
en

t p
at

hw
ay

s 
an

d 
ex

pl
or

e 
ho

w
 w

e 
ca

n 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

em
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 w
e 

in
te

rv
en

e 
at

 p
oi

nt
s 

of
 g

re
at

es
t r

is
k 

to
 re

ve
rs

e 
th

e 
hi

gh
 le

ve
l o

f h
ar

m
 a

nd
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

th
at

 w
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tl

y 
se

ei
ng

 
am

on
gs

t m
en

 in
 th

e 
ci

ty
.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

RE
C
O
M
M
EN
D
AT
IO
N
S

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 u
se

 th
e 

to
 b

et
te

r t
ar

ge
t i

nt
er

ve
nt

io
ns

 to
 

pr
ev

en
t d

ru
g 

de
at

hs
 in

 L
ee

ds
.

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
Fo

rw
ar

d 
Le

ed
s 

to
 re

vi
ew

 ro
ut

es
 o

f o
pi

at
e 

dr
ug

 tr
ea

tm
en

t f
or

 m
al

es
 a

nd
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 in

te
rv

en
ti

on
s 

oc
cu

r 
at

 ti
m

es
 o

f g
re

at
es

t r
is

k 
an

d 
th

at
 tr

ea
tm

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

 n
ee

d.
  

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
Le

ed
s 

D
ru

g 
an

d 
A

lc
oh

ol
 B

oa
rd

 
m

em
be

rs
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 w

or
k 

co
lla

bo
ra

ti
ve

ly
 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
ph

ys
ic

al
 a

nd
 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 
ne

ed
s 

of
 h

er
oi

n/
op

ia
te

 u
se

rs
, e

nh
an

ci
ng

 a
cc

es
s 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t w

it
h 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t,

 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
ot

he
r s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
at

 
pr

om
ot

e 
su

st
ai

ne
d 

re
co

ve
ry

.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

41
et

 a
l 

A
dd

ic
tio

n

‘J’ J i
s a

 40
-y

ea
r-o

ld 
wo

ma
n 

wh
o i

s a
 fo

rm
er 

op
iat

e u
se

r w
ith

 co
mp

lex
 m

en
tal

 

he
alt

h 
ne

ed
s. 

As
 sh

e h
ad

 fr
ien

ds
 w

ho
 w

ere
 al

so
 h

ero
in 

us
ers

, F
or

wa
rd

 Le
ed

s w
ere

 

co
nc

ern
ed

 ab
ou

t t
he

 ri
sk

 of
 re

lap
se

 an
d 

so
 en

su
red

 th
at 

sh
e t

oo
k a

 n
alo

xo
ne

 ki
t 

ho
me

 w
ith

 h
er 

wh
en

 th
ey

 w
ere

 fi
rst

 m
ad

e a
va

ila
ble

. S
he

 h
ad

 re
ce

ive
d 

the
 re

lev
an

t 

tra
ini

ng
 an

d 
the

 ac
co

mp
an

yin
g 

ins
tru

cti
on

al 
lea

fle
t.

On
 Fr

ida
y s

he
 h

ad
 p

ho
ne

d 
in 

to 
Fo

rw
ard

 Le
ed

s i
n 

dis
tre

ss
 an

d 
rep

ort
ing

 th
ou

gh
ts 

tha
t a

lte
rn

ate
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

rel
ap

se
 an

d 
su

ici
de

. H
er 

ke
y w

ork
er 

wa
s a

ble
 to

 ta
lk 

he
r 

aro
un

d 
bu

t h
ad

 co
nc

ern
s b

ec
au

se
 th

is 
wa

s h
ap

pe
nin

g 
ov

er 
a w

ee
ke

nd
.

On
 M

on
da

y J
’s 

ke
y w

ork
er 

ca
lle

d 
he

r t
o s

ee
 h

ow
 sh

e w
as

 fe
eli

ng
. J 

ex
pla

ine
d 

tha
t 

sh
e w

as
 st

ill 
dis

tre
ss

ed
. T

he
 re

as
on

 sh
e w

as
 u

ps
et 

wa
s t

ha
t o

ve
r t

he
 w

ee
ke

nd
 a 

fri
en

d 
ha

d 
ca

lle
d 

rou
nd

 an
d 

sta
rte

d 
us

ing
 h

ero
in 

in 
fro

nt 
of 

he
r. 

J w
as

 ab
le 

to 
res

ist
 th

e t
em

pta
tio

n 
to 

us
e. 

Mo
reo

ve
r, w

he
n 

he
r f

rie
nd

 ov
erd

os
ed

 in
 

fro
nt 

of 
he

r, s
he

 h
ad

 th
e p

res
en

ce
 of

 m
ind

 to
 u

se
 th

e n
alo

xo
ne

 ki
t s

he
 h

ad
 b

ee
n 

pr
ov

ide
d 

wi
th.

 S
he

 re
ca

lle
d 

the
 tr

ain
ing

, fo
llo

we
d 

the
 in

str
uc

tio
ns

, re
viv

ed
 h

er 
fri

en
d 

an
d 

ca
lle

d 
an

 am
bu

lan
ce

.

CA
SE

 ST
UD

Y

62
%

of
 o

pi
at

e 
us

er
s 

w
ho

 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 
tr

ea
tm

en
t a

nd
  d

id
 n

ot
  

re
-p

re
se

nt
 w

er
e 

m
en

Page 57



39

P
oo

l

A
de

l

O
tle

y

B
ur

le
y

A
rm

le
y

G
ip

to
n

R
od

le
y

P
ud

se
y

M
or

le
y

H
al

to
n

C
ol

to
n

O
ul

to
n

K
ip

pa
x

W
al

to
n

Li
nt

on

R
aw

do
n

Ye
ad

on

Ty
er

sa
l

W
or

tle
y

Fa
rn

le
y

H
ol

be
ck B
ee

st
on

H
un

sl
et

C
ar

lto
n

M
et

hl
ey

O
ak

w
oo

d

S
ch

ol
es

Th
or

ne
r

B
ar

ds
ey

B
ra

m
ha

m

B
ra

m
le

y

W
hi

tk
irk

S
to

ur
to

n

W
hi

nm
oo

r

C
hu

rw
el

l

R
ot

hw
el

l

G
ar

fo
rth

R
ou

nd
ha

y

S
ha

dw
el

l S
ea

cr
of

t

A
be

rfo
rd

W
et

he
rb

y

M
oo

rto
w

nH
ar

ew
oo

d

W
ea

rd
le

y

B
ra

m
ho

pe

Ti
ns

hi
ll

G
ui

se
le

y

W
oo

dh
ou

se

M
id

dl
et

on

H
ar

eh
ill

s

S
ca

rc
ro

ft

A
lw

oo
dl

ey

C
al

ve
rle

y

K
irk

st
al

l

H
ol

t P
ar

k
C

oo
kr

id
ge

H
or

sf
or

th

B
el

le
 Is

le

C
ha

pe
lto

w
n

G
ild

er
so

m
e

C
ot

tin
gl

ey

H
ea

di
ng

le
y

B
os

to
n 

S
pa

C
ol

lin
gh

am

A
rth

in
gt

on

N
ew

 F
ar

nl
ey

C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

TR
E

B
ur

m
an

to
fts

W
oo

dl
es

fo
rd

S
w

ill
in

gt
on

M
ic

kl
ef

ie
ld

Th
or

pe
 A

rc
h

D
rig

hl
in

gt
on

E
as

t A
rd

sl
ey

O
sm

on
dt

ho
rp

e

P
ot

te
rn

ew
to

n

Li
nc

ol
n 

G
re

en

M
oo

r A
lle

rto
n

C
ha

pe
l A

lle
rto

n

A
lle

rto
n 

B
yw

at
er

B
ar

w
ic

k 
in

 E
lm

et

9

8

13

18
8

11

18

12 13

13

77

32

710
6

6
5

4
3

2

5

6

6
0

0

0

0

1

1

1

1

1

1
1

Su
ic

id
e 

pr
ev

en
ti

on
 is

 b
ot

h 
a 

na
ti

on
al

 
pr

io
rit

y 
an

d 
a 

lo
ng

-s
ta

nd
in

g 
pr

io
rit

y 
in

 L
ee

ds
. T

he
 n

at
io

na
l s

ui
ci

de
 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
st

ra
te

gy
, P

re
ve

nt
in

g 
Su

ic
id

e 
in

 E
ng

la
nd

: a
 c

ro
ss

-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t o
ut

co
m

es
 st

ra
te

gy
 to

 
sa

ve
 li

ve
s

42
 

gi
ve

s 
co

un
ci

ls
 a

 lo
ca

l l
ea

de
rs

hi
p 

ro
le

 
in

 p
re

ve
nt

in
g 

su
ic

id
es

. 
A

 k
ey

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l s
ui

ci
de

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 
is

 to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 lo

ca
l s

ui
ci

de
 a

ud
it 

in
 

or
de

r t
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s,

 
ev

en
ts

 a
nd

 ri
sk

 fa
ct

or
s t

ha
t c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 a
 p

er
so

n 
ta

ki
ng

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
lif

e.
 

Th
e 

id
ea

 o
f t

hi
s i

s t
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 su

ic
id

e 
ar

e 
ta

rg
et

ed
 a

t h
ig

h-
ris

k 
gr

ou
ps

 w
he

re
 

th
er

e 
is

 m
os

t n
ee

d.
 In

 L
ee

ds
, t

he
 A

ud
it 

of
 S

ui
ci

de
s a

nd
 U

nd
et

er
m

in
ed

 D
ea

th
s 

ha
s f

or
 so

m
e 

tim
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 ‘g
ol

d 
st

an
da

rd
’ i

nt
el

lig
en

ce
 a

bo
ut

 h
ig

h-
ris

k 
gr

ou
ps

 fo
r s

ui
ci

de
 in

 th
e 

ci
ty

. I
nd

ee
d,

 
th

e 
Le

ed
s S

ui
ci

de
 A

ud
it 

20
08

–2
01

0 

na
tio

na
l r

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
fr

om
 P

ub
lic

 
H

ea
lt

h 
En

gl
an

d 
as

 a
n 

ex
am

pl
e 

of
  

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
43

W
or

k 
in

 L
ee

ds
 is

 s
te

er
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

m
ul

ti
-a

ge
nc

y 
Le

ed
s 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Su

ic
id

e 
Pr

ev
en

ti
on

 G
ro

up
. T

he
 c

it
y-

w
id

e 
Su

ic
id

e 
Pr

ev
en

ti
on

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 fo
r 

Le
ed

s 
20

17
–2

02
04

4

ke
y 

hi
gh

-r
is

k 
gr

ou
ps

 in
 L

ee
ds

: 
• 

m
en

 a
ge

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
30

 a
nd

 5
0 

ye
ar

s 
w

it
h 

ris
k 

fa
ct

or
s 

ou
tl

in
ed

 
in

 th
e 

m
os

t r
ec

en
t L

ee
ds

 S
ui

ci
de

 
45

• 
pe

op
le

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 o

r w
it

h 
a 

hi
st

or
y 

of
 s

el
f-

ha
rm

• 
pe

op
le

 in
 th

e 
ca

re
 o

f m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

W
ha

t i
s t

he
 

pi
ct
ur
e 
fo
r 

Le
ed

s?
 Th

er
e 

w
er

e 
21

3 
de

at
hs

 b
y 

su
ic

id
e 

in
 

Le
ed

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
20

11
 a

nd
 2

01
3.

 T
he

 
ra

te
 o

f d
ea

th
 fr

om
 s

ui
ci

de
 w

as
 9

.5
 

de
at

hs
 p

er
 10

0,
00

0 
pe

op
le

 in
 L

ee
ds

. 
Th

e 
va

st
 m

aj
or

it
y 

of
 th

e 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 

m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 e

nd
 th

ei
r o

w
n 

lif
e 

th
an

 

na
ti

on
al

 a
ve

ra
ge

 o
f 3

:1.
 T

he
 ra

te
 o

f 
su

ic
id

e 
in

 m
en

 h
as

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 

w
he

re
as

 th
e 

ra
te

 in
 w

om
en

 h
as

 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

st
ab

le
. 

Th
e 

m
aj

or
it

y 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 to
ok

 
th

ei
r o

w
n 

lif
e 

w
er

e 
w

hi
te

 B
rit

is
h.

 In
 

Le
ed

s,
 w

hi
te

 B
rit

is
h 

m
en

 a
re

 o
ve

r 
tw

ic
e 

as
 li

ke
ly

 to
 e

nd
 th

ei
r o

w
n 

lif
e 

th
an

 m
en

 fr
om

 b
la

ck
 o

r m
in

or
it

y 

O
ve

r h
al

f o
f t

he
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 t

oo
k 

th
ei

r o
w

n 
lif

e 
liv

ed
 in

 t
he

 p
oo

re
st

 
or

 m
os

t 
de

pr
iv

ed
 a

re
as

 o
f t

he
 

ci
ty

. T
he

 m
ap

 s
ho

w
s 

th
at

 t
he

 t
w

o 
ar

ea
s 

w
it

h 
th

e 
hi

gh
es

t 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

su
ic

id
es

 li
e 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 w
es

t 
an

d 
so

ut
h 

of
 t

he
 c

it
y 

ce
nt

re
. 

Th
e 

m
aj

or
it

y 
of

 th
e 

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 

to
ok

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
lif

e 
w

er
e 

si
ng

le
, 

di
vo

rc
ed

 o
r s

ep
ar

at
ed

. N
ea

rl
y 

ha
lf

 
of

 th
e 

pe
op

le
 li

ve
d 

al
on

e,
 a

nd
 o

ve
r 

ha
lf

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
w

it
h 

a 
pe

rs
on

al
 re

la
ti

on
sh

ip
. T

hi
s 

su
gg

es
ts

 
th

at
 s

oc
ia

l i
so

la
ti

on
 is

 a
 ri

sk
 fa

ct
or

. 

SU
IC
ID
ES
 IN
 M
EN

39

SU
IC
ID
ES
  I
D
EN
TI
FI
ED
 B
Y 
AU
D
IT
 2
01
1-
20
13
  

- 
C
O
U
N
TS
 B
Y 
PO
ST
C
O
D
E 
D
IS
TR
IC
T

©
 T

he
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 m

ap
pi

ng
 2

01
7

42
Pr

ev
en

tin
g 

su
ic

id
e 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
: a

 c
ro

ss
-g

ov
er

nm
en

t o
ut

co
m

es
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

to
 s

av
e 

liv
es

  
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.g

ov
.u

k/
go

ve
rn

m
en

t/
pu

bl
ic

at
io

ns
/s

ui
ci

de
-p

re
ve

nt
io

n-
st

ra
te

gy
-f

or
-e

ng
la

nd
43

 S
ui

ci
de

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n:

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

a 
lo

ca
l a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 h

tt
ps

:/
/w

w
w

.g
ov

.u
k/

go
ve

rn
m

en
t/

pu
bl

ic
at

io
ns

/s
ui

ci
de

-p
re

ve
nt

io
n-

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
-a

-l
oc

al
-a

ct
io

n-
pl

an
44

 
Su

ic
id

e 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 fo

r L
ee

ds
 2

01
7–

20
20

 h
tt

p:
//

w
w

w
.le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk
/d

oc
s/

W
or

ki
ng

%
20

ac
ti

on
%

20
pl

an
%

20
dr

af
t%

20
20

17
.p

df
45

A
ud

it 
of

 s
ui

ci
de

s 
an

d 
un

de
te

rm
in

ed
 d

ea
th

s 
in

 L
ee

ds
 2

01
1–

20
13

 h
tt

p:
//

w
w

w
.le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk
/d

oc
s/

Le
ed

s%
20

Su
ic

id
e%

20
A

ud
it

%
20

20
11

-2
01

3.
pd

f

83
% 

of
 d

ea
th

s 
 

w
er

e 
m

en
 

33
% 

w
er

e 
 

un
em

pl
oy

ed
 

50
% 

w
er

e 
fr

om
 

de
pr

iv
ed

 a
re

as
 

Su
ic

id
es

 p
er

 p
os

tc
od

e 
di

st
ri

ct

12
 to

 18

8 
to

 11

6 
to

 7

2 
to

 5

1 t
o 

2

0

21
3 

de
at

hs
 b

y 
su

ic
id

e 
in

 L
ee

ds

Page 58



41

40

A
ro

un
d 

a 
th

ird
 o

f t
he

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
er

e 
un

em
pl

oy
ed

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 th

ei
r 

de
at

h.
 T

hi
s 

is
 th

re
e 

ti
m

es
 h

ig
he

r 
th

an
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
un

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

pe
op

le
 w

er
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

 

W
or

kl
es

sn
es

s 
an

d 
m

on
ey

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
w

er
e 

th
em

es
 p

re
se

nt
 in

 a
 la

rg
e 

pr
op

or
ti

on
 o

f t
he

 d
ea

th
s.

 

W
ha

t a
re
 w
e 

do
in
g 
in
 L
ee

ds
?

 Th
e 

Le
ed

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 s
ui

ci
de

 
pr

ev
en

ti
on

 c
om

bi
ne

s 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 
lo

ca
l p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
, e

vi
de

nc
e-

ba
se

d 
pr

ac
ti

ce
 a

nd
 a

n 
am

bi
ti

ou
s 

sc
al

e.
 F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

20
08

–1
0 

au
di

t,
 w

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 
in

si
gh

t w
or

k 
to

 ta
rg

et
 h

ig
h-

th
ro

ug
h 

co
m

m
un

it
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
. 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
fo

r m
en

 a
t r

is
k 

w
as

 le
d 

by
 T

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Vo
lu

nt
ee

rs
 

ch
ar

ity
) a

t H
ol

ly
bu

sh
 w

ith
 lo

ca
lit

y 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
ci

ty
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

Sp
ac

e2
, B

ar
ca

 a
nd

 L
ee

ds
 H

ea
lt

h 
fo

r 
A

ll.
 E

ac
h 

ag
en

cy
 h

ad
 a

lre
ad

y 
be

en
 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 is
ol

at
ed

 a
nd

 h
ig

h-
ris

k 
m

en
 w

ith
in

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 s
o 

th
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
as

 w
el

l p
la

ce
d 

to
 

ta
ke

 fo
rw

ar
d 

th
is

 w
or

k 
in

 a
re

as
 o

f 
de

pr
iv

at
io

n 
w

ith
 h

ig
h 

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f 

su
ic

id
es

. T
he

 le
ar

ni
ng

 fr
om

 th
is

 w
or

k 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 s

ha
pe

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 

th
em

se
lv

es
 a

s 
be

in
g 

at
 ri

sk
 a

t s
om

e 
po

in
t i

n 
th

ei
r l

ife
 h

av
e 

be
co

m
e 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 
ch

am
pi

on
s 

in
 th

ei
r 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 o

r p
la

ce
 o

f w
or

k 
an

d 
en

ga
ge

 in
 a

ct
iv

ity
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
st

ig
m

a 
of

 p
oo

r m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
he

lp
 ra

is
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
w

ith
in

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 a

ro
un

d 
m

en
’s

 m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
. T

hi
s 

w
or

k 
al

so
 p

ro
m

ot
es

 a
nd

 
ce

le
br

at
es

 th
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

ro
le

 m
en

 p
la

y 
in

 th
ei

r c
om

m
un

ity
.

in
it

ia
ti

ve
 w

as
 in

it
ia

lly
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 

ot
he

r i
nc

id
en

ts
 in

 h
ig

h-
ris

e 
bl

oc
ks

 
in

 th
e 

po
or

es
t a

re
as

 o
f t

he
 c

it
y.

46
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
it

h 
th

e 
Le

ed
s 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Su

ic
id

e 
Pr

ev
en

ti
on

 G
ro

up
 

in
 h

ig
h-

ris
e 

bl
oc

ks
 a

s 
a 

hi
gh

-r
is

k 

pr
em

is
es

 o
r ‘

bl
oc

ks
’ a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

it
h 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t n

um
be

r o
f i

nc
id

en
ts

. 

w
at

ch
 v

is
it

s 
th

e 
bl

oc
k 

an
d 

in
sp

ec
ts

 

an
d 

m
ee

t t
he

 o
cc

up
ie

r. 
Th

e 
id

ea
 is

 
th

at
, o

ve
r t

im
e,

 re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ill
 c

om
e 

w
ho

 m
ay

 th
en

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 e

ng
ag

e 
th

em
 in

 ta
lk

in
g 

ab
ou

t h
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

ab
ou

t g
et

ti
ng

 h
el

p,
 fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e 
by

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

a 
Cr

is
is

 C
ar

d.
 

,

CA
SE

 ST
UD

Y

TH
E 
IN
SI
GH
T 
PR
OJ
ECT

E i
s a

 6
6 

ye
ar

 ol
d 

ma
n 

wh
o c

am
e t

o t
he

 at
ten

tio
n 

of 
the

 In
sig

ht 

Pr
oje

ct 
thr

ou
gh

 ou
tre

ac
h 

wo
rk 

at 
a l

oc
al 

co
mm

un
ity

 ce
ntr

e. 

Ha
vin

g 
ov

erh
ea

rd
 a 

co
nv

ers
ati

on
 w

ith
 a 

Ba
rca

-C
om

mu
nit

y H
ea

lth
 

Ed
uc

ati
on

 w
ork

er 
in 

wh
ich

 E 
ma

de
 se

lf-
de

pr
ec

ati
ng

 co
mm

en
ts 

ab
ou

t s
uic

ide
, th

e p
roj

ec
t w

ork
er 

as
ke

d 
him

 if
 h

e h
ad

 b
ee

n 

su
ici

da
l. E

 co
nfi

rm
ed

 th
at 

he
 h

ad
. H

e h
ad

 n
ot 

sp
ok

en
 to

 an
yo

ne
 

ab
ou

t i
t e

ve
n 

tho
ug

h 
it 

ha
pp

en
ed

 ab
ou

t s
ix 

we
ek

s e
ar

lie
r. E

 

de
sc

rib
ed

 th
e l

os
s o

f h
is 

pa
rtn

er 
an

d 
ho

me
, a

nd
 a 

su
dd

en
 

rel
oc

ati
on

 to
 Le

ed
s, 

as
 al

l c
on

tri
bu

tin
g 

to 
his

 fe
eli

ng
s. 

He
 w

as
 

ne
w 

to 
the

 ar
ea

 an
d 

fel
t i

so
lat

ed
. T

he
 p

roj
ec

t w
ork

er 
ga

ve
 h

im
 

a C
ris

is 
Ca

rd
 an

d 
the

 PE
P (

Pa
tie

nt 
Em

po
we

rm
en

t P
roj

ec
t) 

ph
on

e 

nu
mb

er 
an

d 
bo

ok
ed

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 fo

llo
wi

ng
 w

ee
k. 

At
 th

e e
nd

 of
 

the
 co

nv
ers

ati
on

 E 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

de
ep

 g
rat

itu
de

 an
d 

sa
id,

 

‘Go
d 
ble
ss 
you
, t
han
k 
you
 f
or 
car
ing
’. 

At 
the

 ne
xt 

me
eti

ng
 E 

sh
ow

ed
 in

ter
es

t in
 sp

ort
s, 

wo
od

wo
rk,

 

an
d s

es
sio

ns
 to

 he
lp 

him
 re

du
ce

 an
xie

ty. 
Ov

er 
the

 fo
llo

wi
ng

 

six
 w

ee
ks

 th
e p

roj
ec

t w
ork

er 
ma

int
ain

ed
 re

gu
lar

 ph
on

e 

co
nta

ct 
wi

th 
E, 

off
eri

ng
 hi

m 
a r

an
ge

 of
 in

for
ma

tio
n a

nd
 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r o
ne

-to
-o

ne
 su

pp
ort

 to
 ac

ce
ss

 ac
tiv

itie
s. 

He
 

did
 no

t a
cc

es
s a

ny
 of

 th
es

e d
ur

ing
 th

at 
tim

e, 
bu

t c
on

tin
ue

d 

to 
wa

nt 
to 

lea
rn

 ab
ou

t d
iffe

ren
t o

pp
ort

un
itie

s, 
an

d h
e d

id 

att
en

d a
 m

us
ic 

gro
up

 at
 th

e l
oc

al 
co

mm
un

ity
 ce

ntr
e. 

Th
e 

pro
jec

t w
ork

er 
ref

err
ed

 hi
m 

to 
Ar

ml
ey

 H
elp

ing
 H

an
ds

. In
 a 

ph
on

e c
on

ve
rsa

tio
n a

 w
ee

k l
ate

r, E
 re

po
rte

d t
ha

t h
e h

ad
 

ac
qu

ire
d a

 Le
ed

s E
xtr

a C
ard

 an
d s

aid
 th

e r
efe

rra
l h

ad
 be

en
 

he
lpf

ul.
 H

e s
po

ke
 po

sit
ive

ly 
ab

ou
t w

an
tin

g t
o a

tte
nd

 w
alk

ing
 

foo
tba

ll, 
an

d e
xp

res
se

d a
 de

sir
e t

o w
ork

 so
me

tim
e s

oo
n, 

wh
ich

 w
as

 a 
ve

ry 
po

sit
ive

 st
ep

. H
e s

aid
 th

at 
he

 di
d n

ot 
fee

l 

he
 ne

ed
ed

 an
y m

ore
 su

pp
ort

 fr
om

 th
e i

ns
igh

t p
roj

ec
t a

nd
 

ex
pre

ss
ed

 th
an

ks
 fo

r a
ll t

he
 su

pp
ort

 he
’d 

rec
eiv

ed
. 

C
on

ta
ct

:  
  C

at
he

rin
e 

W
ar

d 
 - 

 C
at

he
rin

e.
w

ar
d@

le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

   
   

Vi
ne

et
a 

S
eh

m
bi

  -
  V

in
ee

ta
.s

eh
m

bi
@

le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

   
   

   
  

 
 

   
   

   
   

Fo
r m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pl
ea

se
 v

is
it:

 w
w

w
.le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk
/p

hr
c/

P
ag

es
/S

ui
ci

de
-P

re
ve

nt
io

n.
as

px

1.
 B

ac
kg

ro
un

d
• 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fr
om

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l S
ui

ci
de

 
P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
S

tra
te

gy
 fo

r E
ng

la
nd

 
• 

S
ui

ci
de

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

w
or

k 
in

fo
rm

s 
an

d 
su

pp
or

ts
 

th
e 

w
id

er
 P

ub
lic

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 a
ge

nd
a 

• 
W

e 
ha

ve
 a

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

ci
ty

• 
W

e 
ai

m
 to

 b
e 

a 
co

m
pa

ss
io

na
te

 c
ity

 th
at

 c
ar

es
 

ab
ou

t o
ur

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

’ h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

• 
R

ed
uc

in
g 

su
ic

id
e 

is
 a

 p
rio

rit
y 

fo
r L

ee
ds

2.
 S

ui
ci

de
 A

ud
it

• 
W

or
ki

ng
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 W
es

t Y
or

ks
hi

re
 

• 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
ev

er
y 

3 
ye

ar
s 

as
 p

er
 P

H
E

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

• 
A

na
ly

se
d 

al
l s

ui
ci

de
s 

in
 L

ee
ds

 b
et

w
ee

n 
20

11
-

20
13

 u
si

ng
 C

or
on

er
’s

 re
co

rd
s

• 
A 

rig
or

ou
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 ta
ke

n 
to

 d
at

a 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

• 
In

te
ns

iv
e 

bu
t i

nv
al

ua
bl

e:
 s

up
po

rts
 fo

cu
se

d 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 e
na

bl
es

 ta
rg

et
in

g 
of

 
hi

gh
 ri

sk
 g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
ar

ea
s

• 
H

el
ps

 to
 re

vi
ew

 in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 o
f w

ha
t w

or
ks

 
ta

ilo
re

d 
to

 lo
ca

l n
ee

d

• 
21

3 
pe

op
le

 w
er

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

au
di

t
• 

Th
e 

hi
gh

es
t a

ge
 g

ro
up

 w
as

 4
0-

49
 y

ea
rs

• 
82

.6
%

 m
al

e 
(n

=1
76

) a
nd

 1
7%

 fe
m

al
e 

(n
=3

7)
  

M
al

e 
5:

1 
Fe

m
al

e 
(N

at
io

na
l g

en
de

r r
at

io
 fo

r 
su

ic
id

es
: 3

:1
)

• 
Th

is
 m

ea
ns

 fo
r e

ve
ry

 1
 fe

m
al

e 
de

at
h 

th
er

e 
w

er
e 

5 
m

al
e 

de
at

hs
 b

y 
su

ic
id

e.
 

• 
55

%
 o

f a
ud

it 
ca

se
s 

liv
ed

 in
 th

e 
m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 

40
%

 o
f t

he
 c

ity

4.
 A

ct
io

n

• 
S

ha
pi

ng
, d

ev
el

op
in

g 
an

d 
ag

re
ei

ng
 th

e 
Le

ed
s 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
S

ui
ci

de
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
P

la
n

• 
B

ro
ad

 o
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

of
 S

ui
ci

de
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
ag

en
da

 a
nd

 d
is

se
m

in
at

in
g 

da
ta

 
• 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
ro

bu
st

ne
ss

 o
f d

at
a

• 
R

ev
ie

w
in

g 
re

al
-ti

m
e 

su
rv

ei
lla

nc
e 

op
tio

ns
• 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

m
ea

ni
ng

fu
l a

nd
 ta

rg
et

ed
 lo

ca
l 

ac
tio

n 
e.

g.
 m

en
’s

 g
ro

up
s,

 A
do

pt
 a

 B
lo

ck
• 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

• 
A

ct
io

n 
fe

ed
s 

in
to

 S
ui

ci
de

 P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

ag
en

da
 b

ei
ng

 v
al

ue
d 

an
d 

pr
io

rit
is

ed
 

R
is

k 
Fa

ct
or

s 
 

(N
at

io
na

l 
Ev

id
en

ce
)

R
is

k 
Fa

ct
or

s 
 

fo
r L

ee
ds

 

Th
e 

Le
ed

s 
A

pp
ro

ac
h

S
ui

ci
de

 P
re

ve
nt

io
n:

  
Th

e 
Le

ed
s 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
, L

ee
ds

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il

ST
RA

TE
G

IC
 L

EA
D

ER
SH

IP
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
M

IT
M

EN
T

ENGAGEMENT AND INSIGHT    
    

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  A

M
B

IT
IO

U
S 

 S
C

A
LE

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

    
    

    
    

     
    B

ROAD APPROACH

In
si

gh
t  

an
d 

ev
id

en
ce

 
• 

M
en

’s
 in

si
gh

t
• 

C
ris

is
 c

ar
ds

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

by
 a

nd
 fo

r 
m

en
 a

t r
is

k
• 

G
re

en
 M

an
 P

ro
je

ct
• 

Le
ed

s 
S

ui
ci

de
 

B
er

ea
ve

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

 
sc

op
ed

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 

by
 th

os
e 

be
re

av
ed

• 
C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 o
f 

L
ee

d
s 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l
• 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 B

o
ar

d
 

M
em

b
er

 f
o

r 
H

ea
lt

h
 

an
d

 W
el

lb
ei

n
g

 
C

h
am

p
io

n
 M

en
ta

l 
H

ea
lt

h

• 
F

u
ll 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

D
ep

u
ta

ti
o

n
 

in
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

f 
co

m
m

it
m

en
t 

to
 

p
re

ve
n

t 
su

ic
id

es
  

in
 L

ee
d

s
• 

E
ss

en
ti

al

• 
A

 to
ol

 u
se

d 
to

 d
el

iv
er

, 
in

fo
rm

 a
nd

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
ne

ed

• 
Lo

ca
lly

 o
w

ne
d 

• 
W

el
fa

re
 A

dv
ic

e
• 

A
do

pt
 a

 B
lo

ck
• 

N
U

J 
N

at
io

na
l M

ed
ia

 
G

ui
de

lin
es

• 
W

id
er

 S
P

 T
ra

in
in

g:
 

A
S

IS
T,

 S
af

eT
A

LK
,  

G
P

 w
or

ks
ho

ps

Lo
ca

l a
ct

iv
ity

 

Le
ed

s 
St

ra
te

gi
c   

Su
ic

id
e 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
G

ro
up

 
• 

P
ar

tn
er

s 
(P

ol
ic

e,
 F

ire
 R

es
cu

e,
 C

C
G

s,
 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r, 
A

cu
te

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 

• 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n

• 
C

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

s
• 

N
at

io
na

l l
ob

by
in

g

Su
ic

id
e 

A
ud

it 

46
Ca

se
 st

ud
y:

 A
do

pt
 a

 B
lo

ck
 h

tt
p:

//
w

w
w

.n
sp

a.
or

g.
uk

/w
p-

co
nt

en
t/

up
lo

ad
s/

20
17

/1
0/

N
SP

A
_C

as
eS

tu
dy

_A
do

pt
A

Bl
oc

k_
v2

.p
df

Page 59



43

42

43

42

Cr
is

is
 C

ar
ds

 a
re

 c
re

di
t c

ar
d-

si
ze

d 

ab
ou

t l
oc

al
 s

up
po

rt
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ho
us

in
g,

 w
el

fa
re

, d
eb

t,
 

an
d 

em
ot

io
na

l s
up

po
rt

. T
he

se
 a

re
 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lt
h 

Re
so

ur
ce

 C
en

tr
e 

to
 G

P 
su

rg
er

ie
s,

 O
ne

 
St

op
 C

en
tr

es
, h

ou
si

ng
 a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 W
es

t 

Fi
re

 c
re

w
s 

ha
ve

 re
ce

iv
ed

 s
ui

ci
de

 
pr

ev
en

ti
on

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 h
av

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
re

la
ti

on
sh

ip
s 

w
it

h 
lo

ca
l p

ro
vi

de
rs

 s
uc

h 
as

 th
ird

-s
ec

to
r 

co
m

m
un

it
y-

ba
se

d 
or

ga
ni

sa
ti

on
s 

an
d 

fr
on

tl
in

e 
N

H
S 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 
se

rv
ic

es
. I

n 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
7 

th
is

 
w

or
k 

w
as

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 c

as
e 

st
ud

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l S

ui
ci

de
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 

A
lli

an
ce

 d
oc

um
en

t L
oc

al
 S

ui
ci

de
 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
Pl

an
ni

ng
47

 a
nd

 fo
r P

ub
lic

 
H

ea
lt

h 
En

gl
an

d’
s 

su
ic

id
e 

pr
ev

en
ti

on
 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
48

W
or

ki
ng

 w
it

h 
Le

ed
s 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Su

ic
id

e 
Pr

ev
en

ti
on

 G
ro

up
, t

he
 N

at
io

na
l 

U
ni

on
 o

f J
ou

rn
al

is
ts

 h
as

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

m
ed

ia
 g

ui
de

lin
es

 fo
r l

oc
al

 jo
ur

na
lis

ts
 

on
 th

e 
re

po
rt

in
g 

of
 s

ui
ci

de
s 

to
 

he
lp

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
st

ig
m

a 
ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

su
bj

ec
t.

 E
ng

ag
in

g 
w

it
h 

m
ed

ia
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

th
ey

 re
po

rt
 s

ui
ci

de
s 

se
ns

it
iv

el
y 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bl
y 

is
 a

 k
ey

 p
rio

rit
y 

ar
ea

 
in

 th
e 

na
ti

on
al

 s
ui

ci
de

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

, a
s 

pu
bl

ic
 m

es
sa

ge
s 

ar
ou

nd
 

su
ic

id
e 

it
se

lf.
 

Fi
na

lly
, L

ee
ds

 in
ve

st
s 

in
 ta

rg
et

ed
 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 in

te
rn

at
io

na
lly

 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 s
ui

ci
de

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

tr
ai

ni
ng

. T
ra

in
in

g 
is

 ta
rg

et
ed

 a
t 

th
os

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 d

ire
ct

ly
 w

it
h 

hi
gh

-r
is

k 
gr

ou
ps

 a
nd

 a
t l

oc
al

 c
om

m
un

it
ie

s 
w

he
re

 d
ea

th
s 

fr
om

 s
ui

ci
de

 a
re

 

Po
st
ve

nt
io
n

W
he

n 
so

m
eo

ne
 d

ie
s 

by
 s

ui
ci

de
, t

he
y 

le
av

e 
be

hi
nd

 th
e 

pe
op

le
 c

lo
se

 to
 

th
em

: f
am

ily
, f

rie
nd

s,
 c

ol
le

ag
ue

s,
 

an
d 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rs
. F

or
 e

ve
ry

 d
ea

th
 

by
 s

ui
ci

de
 it

 is
 e

st
im

at
ed

 th
er

e 
ar

e 

Th
is

 s
ug

ge
st

s 
th

at
, i

n 
Le

ed
s,

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
ar

ou
nd

 3
00

 to
 6

00
 p

eo
pl

e 

so
m

eo
ne

 is
 b

er
ea

ve
d 

by
 s

ui
ci

de
 th

e 
gr

ie
vi

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
 is

 o
ft

en
 h

ei
gh

te
ne

d.
 

Ev
id

en
ce

 s
ug

ge
st

s 
th

at
 b

ei
ng

 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

is
 in

 
it

se
lf

 a
 ri

sk
 fa

ct
or

 fo
r s

ui
ci

de
. 

‘P
os

tv
en

ti
on

’ d
es

cr
ib

es
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

up
po

rt
 th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

be
re

av
ed

 b
y 

su
ic

id
e.

 
Th

er
e 

is
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 n
at

io
na

l4
9  

an
d 

in
te

rn
at

io
na

l5
0  

ev
id

en
ce

 to
 s

ug
ge

st
 

th
at

 ti
m

el
y 

an
d 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 s

up
po

rt
 

to
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

lo
st

 s
om

eo
ne

 
th

ro
ug

h 
su

ic
id

e 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
re

du
ce

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
ris

k 
of

 s
ui

ci
de

. 
Th

e 
Le

ed
s 

Su
ic

id
e 

Be
re

av
em

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
e 

w
as

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

in
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
01

5.
 It

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
po

st
ve

nt
io

n 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 a
ny

on
e 

be
re

av
ed

 b
y 

su
ic

id
e,

 th
ro

ug
h 

co
un

se
lli

ng
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
gr

ou
p 

an
d 

on
e-

to
-o

ne
 s

up
po

rt
. A

 w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 

lo
ca

l s
up

po
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
re

fe
r i

nt
o 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
po

lic
e,

 m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l 

or
ga

ni
sa

ti
on

s 
su

pp
or

ti
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 a
re

 b
er

ea
ve

d.
 

LEE
DS
 S
UI
CI
DE 

BE
REA
VE
ME
NT
 S
ERV
IC
E

In
 D
ec
em
be
r 
20
16
 m
y 
da
d 
to
ok
 h
is 
ow
n 
lif
e 
at
 5
1 
af
te
r 

su
ff
er
ing
 w
ith
 m
en
ta
l 
he
alt
h 
pr
ob
lem
s 
fo
r 
a 
nu
mb
er
 o
f 
ye
ar
s, 

som
et
hin
g 
th
at
 n
o 
on
e 
co
uld
 e
ve
r 
pr
ep
ar
e 
fo
r. 

I 
do
n’t
 t
hin
k 
yo
u 
ca
n 
ev
er
 p
ut
 t
he
 g
rie
f 
of
 s
om
eon
e 
so 

clo
se
 

int
o 
wo
rd
s, 
mo
re
 o
f 
ju
st
 a
 w
av
e 
of
 s
ad
ne
ss,
 h
ea
rt
ac
he
 a
nd
 

lon
eli
ne
ss 

th
at
 h
its
 y
ou
 w
he
n 
yo
u 
lea
st
 e
xp
ec
t 
it.

Th
e 
im
pa
ct
 t
his
 h
as
 h
ad
 o
n 
ou
r 
fa
mi
ly 

an
d 
his
 f
rie
nd
s 
ha
s 

be
en
 d
ev
as
ta
tin
g. 
My
 d
ad
 w
as
 m
y 
he
ro
 a
nd
 m
y 
be
st
 f
rie
nd
 

to
o 
an
d 
th
e 
re
ali
ty
 i
s 
yo
u 
do
n’t
 r
ea
lis
e 
ho
w 
mu
ch
 y
ou
 n
ee
d 

som
eon
e 
un
til
 t
he
y’r
e 
go
ne
. 

I’m
 c
ur
re
nt
ly 

aw
ay
 a
t 
un
ive
rs
ity
 s
o 
lea
vin
g 
my
 f
am
ily
 a
ft
er
 

th
is 
ha
pp
en
ed
 w
as
 o
ne
 o
f 
th
e 
mo
st
 d
iff
icu
lt 
th
ing
s. 
Kn
ow
ing
 

th
at
 I
’d 
be
 a
lon
e 
if 

I 
re
tu
rn
ed
 t
o 
Le
ed
s 
wa
s 
a 
ha
rd
 t
o 

ch
oic
e 
to
 m
ak
e. 
Bo
th
 m
y 
Ma
m 
an
d 
my
 s
ist
er
 h
av
e 
als
o 

st
ru
gg
led
, 
em
ot
ion
all
y, 
me
nt
all
y 
an
d 
fin
an
cia
lly
. 
My
 d
ad
 h
ad
 

wo
rk
ed
 h
ar
d 
all
 o
f 
his
 l
ife
 a
nd
 h
e 
wa
s 
alw
ay
s 
th
e 
on
e 
we
 

wo
uld
 t
ur
n 
to
 i
f 
we
 h
ad
 a
 p
ro
ble
m.
 A
lth
ou
gh
 s
tr
ug
gli
ng
 w
ith
 

his
 o
wn
 b
at
tle
s, 
he
’d 
alw
ay
s 
kn
ow
 w
ha
t 
to
 s
ay
 t
o 
ma
ke
 o
ur
 

pr
ob
lem
s 
go
 a
wa
y.

I’v
e 
co
me
 t
o 
te
rm
s 
wi
th
 t
he
 f
ac
t 
th
at
 t
he
 p
ain
 o
f 
los
ing
 

som
eon
e 
re
all
y 
do
esn
’t 
ev
er
 g
o 
aw
ay
, 
ju
st
 s
om
e 
da
ys
 a
re
 h
ar
de
r 

to
 c
ope
 w
ith
 t
ha
n 
ot
he
rs
.

CA
SE

 ST
UD

Y

47
 L

oc
al

 su
ic

id
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
  h

tt
p:

//
w

w
w

.n
sp

a.
or

g.
uk

/h
om

e/
ou

r-
w

or
k/

jo
in

t-
w

or
k/

su
pp

or
tin

g-
lo

ca
l-s

ui
ci

de
-p

re
ve

nt
io

n
48

Su
ici

de
 p

re
ve

nt
io

n:
 re

so
ur

ce
s a

nd
 g

ui
da

nc
e  

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.g

ov
.u

k/
go

ve
rn

m
en

t/
co

lle
ct

io
ns

/s
ui

ci
de

-p
re

ve
nt

io
n-

re
so

ur
ce

s-
an

d-
gu

id
an

ce
49

Su
pp

or
t a

ft
er

 a
 su

ic
id

e:
 a

 g
ui

de
 to

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 lo

ca
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

 
50

   
Pr

ev
en

tin
g 

su
ic

id
e:

 a
 g

lo
ba

l i
m

pe
ra

tiv
e 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.w
ho

.in
t/

m
en

ta
l_

he
al

th
/s

ui
ci

de
-p

re
ve

nt
io

n/
ex

e_
su

m
m

ar
y_

en
gl

is
h.

pd
f?

ua
=

1

C
an

 h
el

p 
w

ith
 le

ga
l, 

m
on

ey
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

by
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 fr
ee

, i
nd

ep
en

de
nt

 

Le
ed

s 
ca

ll 
01

13
 2

23
 4

40
0

01
13

 8
87

 2
47

7

01
13

 2
35

02
76

 

If 
yo

u 
ar

e 
w

or
rie

d 
ab

ou
t m

on
ey

 p
ro

bl
em

s, 

fin
d 

he
lp

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 a
t: 

w
w

w
.m

in
dw

el
l-l

ee
ds

.o
rg

.u
k/

m
on

ey
-w

or
rie

s

M
in

dW
el

l i
s 

a 
si

ng
le

 ‘g
o 

to
’ p

la
ce

 in
 L

ee
ds

fo
r u

p-
to

-d
at

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
. 

G
et

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
 L

ee
ds

 a
nd

 le
ar

n 
so

m
e 

se
lf-

he
lp

 to
ol

s 
an

d 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

. M
in

dW
el

l i
s 

a 
ci

ty
-w

id
e 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

N
H

S.

w
w

w
.m

in
dw

el
l-l

ee
ds

.o
rg

.u
k

Su
pp

or
t, 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

co
un

se
lli

ng
 fo

r 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
 L

ee
ds

 a
ge

d 
13

-2
5.

 

01
13

 2
46

16
59

w
w

w
.t

he
m

ar
ke

tp
la

ce
le

ed
s.

or
g.

uk

If 
yo

u 
ar

e 
19

 o
r u

nd
er

, y
ou

 c
an

 c
on

ta
ct

 
Ch

ild
Li

ne
 a

bo
ut

 a
ny

th
in

g.
 

N
o 

pr
ob

le
m

 is
 to

o 
bi

g 
or

 to
o 

sm
al

l. 
Sp

ea
k 

to
 a

 c
ou

ns
el

lo
r s

tr
ai

gh
t a

w
ay

 o
n

 0
80

0 
11

11
 (F

re
ep

ho
ne

).

If 
yo

u’
re

 a
 y

ou
ng

 p
er

so
n,

 M
in

dM
at

e 
ca

n 
he

lp
 

yo
u 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 th

e 
w

ay
 y

ou
’re

 fe
el

in
g 

an
d 

fin
d 

th
e 

rig
ht

 a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t. 

w
w

w
.m

in
dm

at
e.

or
g.

uk

pa
rc

el
s,

 c
on

ta
ct

 L
ee

ds
 F

oo
d 

A
id

 N
et

w
or

k 

w
w

w
.le

ed
sf

oo
da

id
ne

tw
or

k.
co

.u
k

07
55

7 
33

15
19

 
m

ar
y@

le
ed

sf
oo

da
id

ne
tw

or
k.

co
.u

k 

Su
pp

or
t i

n 
tim

es
 o

f c
ris

is
 

Fe
el

in
g 

de
sp

er
at

e 
an

d 
ne

ed
 a

 fr
ie

nd
ly

 fa
ce

?

 O
pe

n 
6p

m
 –

 2
am

 o
n 

CO
NN

EC
T 

HE
LP

LI
NE

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
in

 L
ee

ds
 

08
08

 8
00

 1
21

2

In
 a

 m
ed

ic
al

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y

CA
LL

 99
9

m
ed

ic
al

 h
el

p 
in

 a
 

no
n-

em
er

ge
nc

y

CA
LL

 11
1

th
e 

de
at

h 
of

 s
om

eo
ne

 c
lo

se
?

0
1

1
3

 2
3

4
 4

1
5

0
0

8
0

8
 8

0
8

 1
67

7
w

w
w

.c
ru

se
.o

rg
.u

k
01

13
 3

05
 5

80
3

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

aff
ec

te
d 

by
 s

ex
ua

l 
vi

ol
en

ce
 o

f a
ny

 k
in

d 
ca

ll 
SA

RS
V

L
fo

r c
on

fid
en

tia
l 

em
ot

io
na

l s
up

po
rt

.

CA
LL

 0
80

8 
80

2 
33

44
TE

XT
 0

77
97

 8
03

 2
11

EM
A

IL
 s

up
po

rt
@

sa
rs

vl
.o

rg
.u

k

YO
U 

AR
E 

NO
T 

AL
ON

E.
 

YO
U 

AR
E 

IM
PO

RT
AN

T. 
AN

D 
IT

 IS
 O

K 
TO

 A
SK

 F
OR

 H
EL

P.

LE
E

D
S

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 O
P

T
IO

N
S

 

Ad
vi

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 a
re

 

01
13

 2
22

 4
41

2

07
89

12
73

93
9*

*o
ut

 o
f 

ho
ur

s 
5p

m
 - 

8 
am

, e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

on
ly

11
6 

12
3 

(F
re

ep
ho

ne
)

01
13

 2
45

 6
78

9 
(lo

ca
l c

al
l c

ha
rg

es
 a

pp
ly

)

jo
@

sa
m

ar
ita

ns
.o

rg

C
al

l 0
11

3 
26

0 
93

28
07

92
22

49
45

2 

12
 C

ha
pe

l S
tr

ee
t,

 H
al

to
n,

 L
ee

ds
, L

S
15

 7
R

W

D
ia

l H
ou

se
 @

 T
ou

ch
st

on
e

C
al

l 0
11

3 
24

9 
46

75
 

 0
77

63
 5

81
 8

53

w
w

w
.ls

lc
s.

or
g.

uk

E
xp

er
ie

nc
in

g 
vi

ol
en

ce
 in

 th
e 

ho
m

e?
Su

pp
or

t a
nd

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t a
ll 

do
m

es
tic

 a
bu

se
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 L

ee
ds

. 

24
 h

ou
r 

H
el

pl
in

e

01
13

 2
46

 0
40

1

e

FE
EL

 L
IK

E 
YO

U’
VE

 H
AD

 E
NO

UG
H?

 

Page 60



45

44

DER
EK

‘Le
t 
me
 t
ell 
you
 a
 s
tor
y’, 

sa
id 

 

De
rek

, a
s h

e e
ye

d 
the

 ro
om

 of
 30

  

pr
ofe

ss
ion

als
 w

ho
 sa

t r
ea

dy
 to

 li
ste

n 
 

to 
his

 ex
pe

rie
nc

es
 at

 a 
Pu

bli
c H

ea
lth

 se
mi

na
r f

oc
us

ing
 on

 m
en

’s 
he

alt
h. 

As
 D

ere
k t

old
 h

is 
sto

ry 
of 

his
 m

ilit
ar

y p
as

t, h
is 

sli
p 

int
o d

ep
res

sio
n 

an
d 

his
 

na
rro

wl
y f

ail
ed

 su
ici

de
 at

tem
pt,

 th
e r

oo
m 

rem
ain

ed
 ab

so
lut

ely
 si

len
t. T

his
 g

rou
p 

of 
NH

S, 
co

un
cil

, p
ub

lic
 h

ea
lth

 an
d 

thi
rd

-se
cto

r e
mp

loy
ee

s w
ere

 b
ein

g 
off

ere
d 

jus
t o

ne
 of

 a 
gr

ea
t m

an
y s

tor
ies

 b
eh

ind
 th

e s
tat

ist
ics

, p
oli

cie
s a

nd
 p

roc
ed

ur
es

, in
 

a c
ity

 w
he

re 
me

n 
are

 fi
ve

 ti
me

s m
ore

 li
ke

ly 
tha

n 
wo

me
n 

to 
tak

e t
he

ir 
ow

n 
liv

es
. 

De
rek

’s 
ve

ry 
rea

l e
xp

eri
en

ce
s s

tru
ck

 th
rou

gh
 to

 th
e h

ea
rt.

Th
at 

wa
s t

wo
 ye

ars
 ag

o. 
No

w 
De

rek
 is

 w
ell

 ve
rse

d i
n t

ell
ing

 hi
s s

tor
y o

f h
ow

, h
av

ing
 

be
en

 di
sc

ha
rge

d f
rom

 th
e a

rm
y, h

e w
en

t fr
om

 jo
b t

o j
ob

 an
d n

ev
er 

rea
lly

 m
an

ag
ed

 to
 

fit 
in 

- a
nd

 ho
w 

he
 sl

ipp
ed

 in
to 

de
pre

ssi
on

 be
for

e t
ryi

ng
 to

 ta
ke

 hi
s o

wn
 lif

e.

Af
ter

 an
 in

cid
en

t a
t w

ork
, h

e f
ou

nd
 h

im
se

lf 
go

ing
 d

ow
n 

the
 st

ree
t, ‘h
itt
ing
 

my
sel
f 
and
 h
ead
-bu
tti
ng 
lam
ppo
sts
’, 

un
til 

he
 sa

w 
the

 N
o 1

3 b
us

 co
mi

ng
.

‘I 
wa
s 
not
 in
 c
ont
rol
. N
oth
ing
 a
nyb
ody
 s
aid
 t
o 
me
 m
ade
 a
ny
 

dif
fer
enc
e. 
I 
tho
ug
ht,
 e
nou
gh 
is 
eno
ug
h, 
I 
jus
t 
don
’t 
wa
nt 
to 

be 
her
e. 
I 
wa
s 
luc
ky.
 B
efo
re 
I 
kne
w 
it, 
thi
s 
lit
tle
 o
ld 
lad
y 
wa
s 

put
tin
g 
me
 o
n 
the
 b
us 
and
 t
elli
ng 
me
 t
o 
pho
ne 
my
 d
oct
or.
 T
hat
’s 

wh
at 
I 
did
 a
nd 
tha
t’s
 w
hy 
I’m
 s
til
l 
her
e.’

De
rek

 w
as

 re
fer

red
 b

y h
is 

GP
 to

 m
en

tal
 h

ea
lth

 se
rv

ice
s a

nd
 to

 th
e S

pa
ce

2 M
en

’s 

Gr
ou

p, 
pa

rt 
of 

the
 O

rio
n 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

. H
ere

, h
e b

eg
an

 to
 b

uil
d 

ba
ck

 h
is 

co
nfi

de
nc

e 

an
d 

sta
rt 

to 
me

et 
oth

er 
me

n 
wh

o h
ad

 b
ee

n 
thr

ou
gh

 si
mi

lar
 ex

pe
rie

nc
es

 an
d 

we
re 

ab
le 

to 
su

pp
ort

 ea
ch

 ot
he

r . 

CA
SE

 ST
UD

Y

‘It
’s 
not
 ‘T
urn
 u
p 
and
 d
o 
as 
I 
tel
l 
you
’, 
it’s
 ‘D
o 
it 
if 

you
 w
ant
.’ 
You
 c
an 
sit
 if
 y
ou 
wa
nt 
to,
 b
ut 
hop
efu
lly
 y
ou
 

wil
l 
int
era
ct.
 S
o 
wh
en 
I 
do 
get
 u
p, 
I 
fee
l 
par
t 
of 
it.’

Th
is 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 p
ay

s d
ivi

de
nd

s, 
wi

th 
me

n 
be

ing
 ab

le 
to 

pa
rti

cip
ate

 

on
 th

eir
 ow

n 
ter

ms
 an

d 
be

co
me

 m
ore

 in
vo

lve
d 

wi
th 

ac
tiv

itie
s a

nd
 

pe
ers

 as
 th

eir
 co

nfi
de

nc
e g

row
s.

W
hil

st 
De

rek
 st

ill 
ba

ttl
es

 w
ith

 d
ep

res
sio

n 
an

d 
oth

er 
he

alt
h 

iss
ue

s, 
he

 

co
nti

nu
es

 to
 p

lay
 an

 ac
tiv

e r
ole

 in
 th

e O
rio

n 
W

ell
 M

an
 Pr

og
ram

me
. 

As
ide

 fr
om

 at
ten

din
g 

Sp
ac

e2
, h

e h
as

 b
ee

n 
su

pp
ort

ed
 in

 h
is 

pa
ss

ion
 

to 
sh

are
 h

is 
sto

ry 
wi

th 
oth

er 
me

n, 
inc

lud
ing

 ap
pe

ara
nc

es
 on

 B
BC

 

Lo
ok

 N
ort

h, 
BB

C 
Le

ed
s a

nd
 at

 se
mi

na
rs 

an
d 

co
nfe

ren
ce

s. 

Mo
st 

rec
en

tly
, D

ere
k h

elp
ed

 to
 co

-p
rod

uc
e M

en
FM

, a
 ra

dio
 

pr
og

ram
me

 ai
me

d 
at 

ins
pir

ing
 an

d 

en
co

ur
ag

ing
 in

ac
tiv

e a
nd

 is
ola

ted
 m

en
 

to 
be

co
me

 m
ore

 ac
tiv

e. 
De

rek
 is

 th
e 

jov
ial

 an
ch

or 
ma

n, 
pr

es
en

tin
g 

the
 co

me
dia

ns
, m

us
ici

an
s, 

he
alt

h 
ex

pe
rts

 an
d 

me
n’s

 g
rou

ps
 to

 th
e a

ud
ien

ce
, a

nd
 

en
co

ur
ag

ing
 th

e l
ist

en
er 

to 
ge

t o
ut,
 ‘e
ven
 if
 it
’s 
jus
t 

for
 a
 w
alk
 a
rou
nd 
the
 b
loc
k’.

‘Ta
ke 
tha
t 
lov
ely
 m
ind
 o
f 
you
rs 
for
 a
 s
tro
ll. 
It’
s 

alw
ays
 h
avi
ng 
a 
goo
d 
day
.’ 

It 
is 

on
ly 

at 
the

 en
d 

tha
t D

ere
k’s

 to
ne

 ch
an

ge
s. 

As
 h

e t
ell

s 

his
 st

or
y, 

his
 in

teg
rit

y, 
pa

ss
ion

 an
d 

rea
so

n 
for

 h
is 

ap
pe

ara
nc

e 

on
 th

e s
ho

w 
be

co
me

s c
lea

r a
s h

e a
pp

ea
ls 

to 
his

 au
die

nc
e t

o 

se
ek

 th
e h

elp
 th

ey
 n

ee
d, 

as
 h

e w
as

 ab
le 

to 
do

. 

Me
nF

M 
is 

av
ail

ab
le 

on
 C

D 
fro

m 
the

 O
rio

n 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 at

 

da
mi

an
d@

sp
ac

e2
.or

g.u
k a

nd
 al

so
 as

 a 
do

wn
loa

d 
at 

 

ww
w.

so
un

dc
lou

d.c
om

/m
en

fm
lee

ds

W
ha

t d
o 
we

 n
ee

d 
to
 d
o 
m
or
e 
of
?

Th
e 

ci
ty

-w
id

e 
Su

ic
id

e 
Pr

ev
en

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

nu
m

be
r o

f k
ey

 p
rio

rit
y 

ar
ea

s.
 T

he
se

 
in

cl
ud

e 
re

du
ci

ng
 th

e 
ris

k 
of

 su
ic

id
e 

in
 h

ig
h-

ris
k 

gr
ou

ps
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 m
en

 o
f 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

, a
nd

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 ti

m
el

y 

by
 su

ic
id

e.
 

St
ro

ng
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s a

re
 c

en
tr

al
 to

 th
e 

su
ic

id
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
ag

en
da

 in
 L

ee
ds

. T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 c

on
tin

ui
ng

 to
 e

ng
ag

e 
an

d 
w

or
k 

al
on

gs
id

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
ca

re
 a

nd
 th

e 
w

id
er

 
w

or
kf

or
ce

, a
nd

 su
pp

or
tin

g 
lo

ca
l m

ed
ia

 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 se
ns

iti
ve

 a
pp

ro
ac

he
s t

o 
re

po
rt

in
g 

su
ic

id
es

.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

RE
C
O
M
M
EN
D
AT
IO
N
S

Le
ed

s 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Su
ic

id
e 

Pr
ev

en
ti

on
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

G
ro

up
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
re

du
ci

ng
 s

ui
ci

de
 in

 3
0–

50
 y

ea
r o

ld
 

m
en

 re
m

ai
ns

 a
 p

rio
rit

y 
w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
Le

ed
s 

Su
ic

id
e 

Pr
ev

en
ti

on
 P

la
n.

 

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 ta

rg
et

ed
 w

or
k 

w
it

h 
m

en
 a

t h
ig

h 
ris

k 
of

 s
ui

ci
de

 a
s 

Le
ed

s 
se

rv
ic

e.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

Page 61



47

46

RI
SE 

HI
GH

In 
the

 in
tro

du
cti

on
 to

 th
is 

rep
ort

 I 
tal

ke
d 

ab
ou

t 

the
 n

ee
d 

to 
co

mb
ine

 th
e e

co
no

mi
c w

ith
 th

e 

so
cia

l. I
mp

rov
ing

 th
e h

ea
lth

 an
d 

we
llb

ein
g 

of 
pe

op
le 

in 
de

pr
ive

d 
are

as
 of

 Le
ed

s i
s n

ot 

sim
ply

 a 
ma

tte
r o

f e
co

no
mi

c i
nv

es
tm

en
t. W

e 

kn
ow

 th
at 

fac
tor

s s
uc

h 
as

 lo
ne

lin
es

s, 
mo

ne
y 

wo
rri

es
, fa

mi
ly 

pr
ob

lem
s a

nd
 u

ne
mp

loy
me

nt 

ha
ve

 a 
ne

ga
tiv

e i
mp

ac
t o

n 
he

alt
h 

an
d 

we
llb

ein
g 

an
d 

qu
ali

ty 
of 

life
. W

e a
lso

 kn
ow

 

tha
t s

olv
ing

 co
mp

lex
 p

rob
lem

s m
ay

 in
vo

lve
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

dif
fer

en
t a

ge
nc

ies
. T

his
 co

nc
lud

ing
 

ca
se

 st
ud

y s
ho

ws
 h

ow
 a 

br
oa

de
r, m

ult
i-

ag
en

cy
 p

ers
pe

cti
ve

 ca
n 

im
pr

ov
e t

he
 h

ea
lth

 

an
d 

we
llb

ein
g 

of 
pe

op
le 

liv
ing

 in
 ou

r m
ore

 

de
pr

ive
d 

are
as

.

Ne
w 

W
ort

ley
 is

 on
e o

f t
he

 co
un

cil
’s 

pr
ior

ity
 n

eig
hb

ou
rh

oo
ds

 fo
r c

ha
ng

e. 
It 

ha
s l

ots
 

of 
co

mm
un

ity
 as

se
ts 

an
d 

po
sit

ive
 th

ing
s h

ap
pe

nin
g, 

de
sp

ite
 b

ein
g 

in 
the

 p
oo

res
t 

1%
 of

 n
eig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
 n

ati
on

all
y b

as
ed

 on
 d

ep
riv

ati
on

 fi
gu

res
. T

he
 lo

ca
l G

P 

pr
ac

tic
es

, p
rim

ar
y s

ch
oo

l a
nd

 n
ew

 co
mm

un
ity

 ce
ntr

e a
re 

all
 fa

nta
sti

c a
ss

ets
 fo

r 

the
 co

mm
un

ity
. A

nd
 th

e r
ec

en
t O

ur
 Pl

ac
e i

nit
iat

ive
 h

as
 b

rou
gh

t t
og

eth
er 

a n
um

be
r 

of 
pa

rtn
ers

 an
d 

loc
al 

pe
op

le 
ke

en
 to

 m
ak

e a
 d

iff
ere

nc
e. 

Le
ed

s C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 h
ou

sin
g 

de
pa

rtm
en

t h
as

 h
ist

ori
ca

lly
 fa

ce
d 

a n
um

be
r o

f 

pr
ob

lem
s i

n 
the

 C
lyd

es
 an

d 
W

ort
ley

s t
ow

er 
blo

ck
s, 

ho
we

ve
r. T

he
re 

are
 fo

ur
 

blo
ck

s: 
Cly

de
 C

ou
rt, 

Cly
de

 G
ran

ge
, W

ort
ley

 H
eig

hts
 an

d 
W

ort
ley

 To
we

rs.
 Th

es
e 

blo
ck

s h
ou

se
 ar

ou
nd

 40
0 

pe
op

le 
alt

og
eth

er,
 m

ain
ly 

in 
on

e-
be

dr
oo

m 
pr

op
ert

ies
. 

Re
sid

en
t t

ur
no

ve
r i

s h
igh

 an
d 

the
re 

are
 h

igh
 le

ve
ls 

of 
cri

me
, d

ru
g 

us
e, 

rou
gh

 

sle
ep

ing
 an

d 
pr

os
titu

tio
n. 

Un
de

r-r
ep

ort
ing

 of
 cr

im
e h

as
 b

ee
n 

a l
on

g-
ter

m 
pr

ob
lem

.

Ov
er 

70
% 

of 
res

ide
nts

 in
 ea

ch
 b

loc
k a

re 
sin

gle
 m

ale
s a

ge
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

30
 an

d 
50

. 

Mo
re 

tha
n 

ha
lf 

of 
res

ide
nts

 ar
e r

ec
eiv

ing
 H

ou
sin

g 
Be

ne
fit 

an
d 

so
 ar

e u
nli

ke
ly 

to 
be

 w
ork

ing
. T

he
 Le

ed
s S

uic
ide

 A
ud

it 
for

 20
11–

13
 h

as
 id

en
tifi

ed
 th

at 
LS

12
 h

as
 

on
e o

f t
he

 h
igh

es
t l

ev
els

 of
 re

co
rd

ed
 su

ici
de

s i
n 

the
 ci

ty.
 Th

e p
eo

ple
 in

 th
e f

lat
s 

ha
ve

 m
an

y o
f t

he
 ri

sk
 fa

cto
rs 

for
 su

ici
de

: m
en

 w
ith

 h
igh

 le
ve

ls 
of 

un
em

plo
ym

en
t, 

sin
gle

 oc
cu

pa
nc

y, 
so

cia
l i

so
lat

ion
, a

s w
ell

 as
 al

co
ho

l a
nd

 d
ru

g 
ab

us
e. 

Th
e m

ult
i-a

ge
nc

y R
ise

 H
igh

 p
roj

ec
t a

im
ed

 to
 im

pr
ov

e t
he

 p
erc

ep
tio

n 
an

d 

rep
uta

tio
n 

of 
the

 C
lyd

es
 an

d 
W

ort
ley

s b
loc

ks
. 

CA
SE

 ST
UD

Y

Th
e p

roj
ec

t a
pp

roa
ch

ed
 th

is 
in 

thr
ee

 m
ain

 w
ay

s: 

• 
ec

on
om

ic 
inv

es
tm

en
t i

n 
the

 p
hy

sic
al 

fab
ric

 of
 th

e b
loc

ks
, s

uc
h 

as
 m

ore
 

aff
ord

ab
le 

bio
ma

ss
 h

ea
tin

g, 
a n

ew
 li

ft 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 fr

ee
 W

i-F
i

• 
im

pr
ov

ed
 su

pp
ort

 to
 te

na
nts

 w
hil

e a
lso

 d
oin

g 
mo

re 
to 

ch
all

en
ge

  

an
ti-

so
cia

l b
eh

av
iou

r o
n 

the
 p

ar
t o

f s
om

e t
en

an
ts

• 
int

eg
rat

ed
 p

ar
tne

rsh
ip 

wo
rki

ng
 ac

ros
s t

he
 th

ird
 se

cto
r, h

ou
sin

g, 
 

po
lic

e a
nd

 h
ea

lth
 se

rv
ice

s.

Le
ed

s A
du

lts
 an

d H
ea

lth
 se

rvi
ce

s a
nd

 H
ou

sin
g L

ee
ds

 w
ork

ed
 in

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 th
e 

ch
ari

ty 
Ba

rca
–L

ee
ds

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 su
pp

ort
 to

 im
pro

ve
 pe

op
le’

s h
ea

lth
 an

d w
ell

be
ing

. 

Th
e i

nv
olv

em
en

t o
f d

iffe
ren

t a
ge

nc
ies

 m
ad

e i
t p

os
sib

le 
to 

tre
at 

pe
op

le 
ho

lis
tic

all
y a

nd
 

ad
dre

ss
 th

e c
om

ple
xit

y o
f t

he
ir 

ne
ed

s, 
rat

he
r t

ha
n a

pp
roa

ch
 ea

ch
 ne

ed
 in

div
idu

all
y 

fro
m 

a s
ing

le-
se

rvi
ce

 pe
rsp

ec
tiv

e. 
Ma

ny
 of

 th
e p

eo
ple

 w
ho

 en
ga

ge
d w

ith
 Ri

se
 H

igh
 

we
re 

no
t a

cc
es

sin
g t

he
 se

rvi
ce

s t
he

y n
ee

de
d. 

Th
e t

ea
m 

wo
rke

d w
ith

 re
sid

en
ts 

to 

ide
nti

fy 
the

ir 
sp

ec
ific

 pr
ob

lem
s, 

de
ve

lop
 go

als
 to

 im
pro

ve
 th

eir
 he

alt
h a

nd
 w

ell
be

ing
 an

d p
ut 

the
m 

in 
tou

ch
 w

ith
 th

e a
pp

rop
ria

te 
loc

al 
se

rvi
ce

s a
nd

 ag
en

cie
s t

o s
up

po
rt 

the
ir 

ne
ed

s. 

Th
e p

roj
ec

t a
im

ed
 to

 b
uil

d 
on

 p
eo

ple
’s 

str
en

gth
s r

ath
er 

tha
n 

sim
ply

 id
en

tify
ing

 sh
ort

co
mi

ng
s. 

An
yo

ne
 w

ho
 as

ke
d 

for
 h

elp
 g

ot 
it 

– 
no

 th
res

ho
lds

 –
 so

 th
at 

int
er

ve
nti

on
s c

ou
ld 

ha
pp

en
 at

 an
 

ea
rly

 st
ag

e b
efo

re 
pr

ob
lem

s g
ot 

wo
rse

. 

In 
tot

al,
 ov

er 
65

 of
 th

e 4
00

 re
sid

en
ts 

en
ga

ge
d 

wi
th 

the
 se

rv
ice

 b
etw

ee
n 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
15

 an
d 

the
 en

d 
of 

Ma
rch

 20
17 

wh
en

 th
e p

roj
ec

t e
nd

ed
. H

alf
 of

 th
es

e c
lie

nts
 d

idn
’t s

pe
ak

 En
gli

sh
 as

 

the
ir 

fir
st 

lan
gu

ag
e a

nd
 m

an
y s

tru
gg

led
 to

 co
mm

un
ica

te 
in 

En
gli

sh
. T

he
re 

wa
s a

lso
 a 

lac
k o

f 

un
de

rst
an

din
g 

of 
UK

 sy
ste

ms
. F

or 
ex

am
ple

, o
ne

 h
ou

se
ho

ld 
wa

s s
pe

nd
ing

 £1
0–

15
 p

er 
da

y o
n 

top
pin

g 
up

 th
eir

 el
ec

tri
cit

y c
ard

 b
ec

au
se

 th
ey

 d
idn

’t r
ea

lis
e t

ha
t t

he
y h

ad
 to

 in
for

m 
the

 su
pp

lie
r 

of 
the

ir 
ne

w 
ten

an
cy

. T
his

 m
ea

nt 
tha

t t
he

y w
ere

 p
ay

ing
 of

f t
he

 ar
rea

rs 
lef

t o
n 

the
 ac

co
un

t 

by
 th

e p
rev

iou
s t

en
an

ts.
 Th

e t
ea

m 
fed

 th
is 

inf
orm

ati
on

 b
ac

k t
o H

ou
sin

g 
Le

ed
s s

o t
he

y c
ou

ld 

ad
dr

es
s t

his
 p

rob
lem

 w
he

n 
de

ve
lop

ing
 p

re-
ten

an
cy

 tr
ain

ing
.

Eig
ht 

of 
tho

se
 as

se
ss

ed
, s

ix 
of 

wh
om

 w
ere

 m
ale

, s
tat

ed
 th

at 
the

y c
ur

ren
tly

 ha
d s

uic
ida

l th
ou

gh
ts,

 

or 
ha

d h
ad

 su
ch

 th
ou

gh
ts 

in 
the

 pa
st.

 Th
ree

 of
 th

e e
igh

t h
ad

 ac
tua

lly
 at

tem
pte

d s
uic

ide
.

Th
e p

roj
ec

t d
eli

ve
red

 n
oti

ce
ab

le 
ou

tco
me

s a
nd

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts 

for
 te

na
nts

. T
he

 m
ea

su
re 

of 

ov
era

ll 
se

lf-
rat

ed
 h

ea
lth

 im
pr

ov
ed

. O
ve

r h
alf

 (5
3%

) o
f c

lie
nts

 re
po

rte
d 

an
 in

cre
as

e i
n 

ho
us

ing
 

sa
tis

fac
tio

n. 
Th

ey
 al

so
 re

po
rte

d 
red

uc
ing

 d
eb

t, f
ind

ing
 em

plo
ym

en
t a

nd
 vo

lun
tee

rin
g. 

Pr
ob

lem
s 

wi
th 

se
lf-

ca
re 

(w
as

hin
g 

an
d 

dr
es

sin
g) 

dr
op

pe
d 

by
 11

%, 
fro

m 
33

% 
to 

22
%.

Th
e l

ea
rn

ing
 fr

om
 th

is 
pr

oje
ct 

is 
no

w 
be

ing
 u

se
d 

to 
inf

orm
 th

e E
ng

ag
e L

ee
ds

 ci
ty-

wi
de

 

su
pp

ort
ed

 h
ou

sin
g 

co
ntr

ac
t a

s w
ell

 as
 th

e A
do

pt 
a B

loc
k p

roj
ec

t d
es

cri
be

d 
ea

rli
er 

in 
thi

s r
ep

ort
. 

‘I 
fe
el 
ha
pp
y 
ag
ain
.’ 

‘I 
wo
uld
n’t
 h
av
e 
go
t 

an
y 
of
 t
his
 (
su
pp
or
t)
 

if 
it 
wa
sn
’t 
fo
r 
 

yo
ur
 h
elp
’ 

‘I’
ve
 r
ec
eiv
ed
 m
or
e 

su
pp
or
t 
fr
om
 y
ou
 i
n 

th
e 
pa
st
 t
wo
 w
ee
ks
 

th
an
 I
 h
av
e 
fr
om
  

an
y 
ot
he
r 
ser
vic
e.’
 

‘Yo
u’r
e 
a 
su
pe
rs
ta
r, 

th
an
k 
yo
u 
fo
r 
 

yo
ur
 h
elp
.’

53
% 

of
 R

is
e 

H
ig

h 
cl

ie
nt

s 
re

po
rt

ed
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 h
ou

si
ng

 
sa

ti
sf

ac
ti

on

 dr
op

 in
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

w
it

h 
se

lf
-c

ar
e

Page 62



49

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 h
ea

lt
h 

ne
ed

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t f
or

 w
om

en
.

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lt
h 

In
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

Te
am

 to
 c

on
ti

nu
e 

to
 

m
on

it
or

 li
fe

 e
xp

ec
ta

nc
y 

an
d 

re
po

rt
 

ba
ck

 to
 th

e 
Le

ed
s 

Ci
ty

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Bo

ar
d 

an
d 

Le
ed

s 
H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 B
oa

rd
.

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 id
en

ti
fy

 a
 

br
oa

d 
ra

ng
e 

of
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
pr

og
re

ss
 o

n 
In

cl
us

iv
e 

G
ro

w
th

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ne

w
 In

cl
us

iv
e 

G
ro

w
th

 

ge
og

ra
ph

ie
s 

an
d 

po
pu

la
ti

on
s 

 
w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
ci

ty
.

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 it
s 

ne
w

 L
ee

ds
 In

cl
us

iv
e 

G
ro

w
th

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
im

pr
ov

es
 th

e 
so

ci
o-

ec
on

om
ic

 
po

si
ti

on
 o

f t
he

 m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 10
%

 
of

 c
om

m
un

it
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

ci
ty

.

Th
e 

Le
ed

s 
Be

st
 S

ta
rt

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
G

ro
up

 
to

 h
el

p 
en

su
re

 th
at

 p
ar

en
ts

 a
re

 
w

el
l p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r p

re
gn

an
cy

 a
nd

 
th

at
 fa

m
ili

es
 w

it
h 

co
m

pl
ex

 li
ve

s 
ar

e 

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il,
 L

ee
ds

 C
lin

ic
al

 

Fo
rw

ar
d 

Le
ed

s 
to

 u
se

 lo
ca

l i
ns

ig
ht

 to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
so

ci
al

 m
ar

ke
ti

ng
 c

am
pa

ig
n 

ta
rg

et
in

g 
yo

un
g 

w
om

en
 a

nd
 a

im
ed

 
at

 re
du

ci
ng

 a
lc

oh
ol

 c
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

s.

Le
ed

s 
C

it
y 

Co
un

ci
l, 

Le
ed

s 
 

C
lin

ic
al

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

G
ro

up
s 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 id

en
ti

fi
ca

ti
on

 a
nd

 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
ca

re
 w

it
h 

a 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 
fo

cu
s 

on
 a

re
as

 o
f d

ep
ri

va
ti

on
 w

it
h 

hi
gh

es
t 

al
co

ho
l h

ar
m

.

Le
ed

s 
C

it
y 

Co
un

ci
l a

nd
 F

or
w

ar
d 

Le
ed

s 
to

 re
vi

ew
 a

lc
oh

ol
 t

re
at

m
en

t 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r f
em

al
es

 a
nd

 e
ns

ur
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 t
o 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 w
om

en
.

H
ea

lt
h 

te
am

 t
o 

le
ad

 in
si

gh
t 

w
or

k 
w

it
h 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

it
ie

s 
to

 
ex

pl
or

e 
an

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 s
el

f-
ha

rm
 

be
ha

vi
ou

rs
.

Le
ed

s 
C

it
y 

Co
un

ci
l P

ub
lic

 
H

ea
lt

h 
te

am
s 

to
 re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 
fu

rt
he

r d
ev

el
op

 t
ar

ge
te

d 
ea

rl
y 

in
te

rv
en

ti
on

s 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
po

si
ti

ve
 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
re

du
ce

 s
el

f-
ha

rm
 

ris
k 

in
 g

irl
s 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
w

om
en

.

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 u
se

 th
e 

to
 b

et
te

r t
ar

ge
t i

nt
er

ve
nt

io
ns

 to
 

pr
ev

en
t d

ru
g 

de
at

hs
 in

 L
ee

ds
.

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
Fo

rw
ar

d 
Le

ed
s 

to
 re

vi
ew

 ro
ut

es
 o

f o
pi

at
e 

dr
ug

 tr
ea

tm
en

t f
or

 m
al

es
 a

nd
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 in

te
rv

en
ti

on
s 

oc
cu

r 
at

 ti
m

es
 o

f g
re

at
es

t r
is

k 
an

d 
th

at
 

tr
ea

tm
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
to

 n
ee

d.
  

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
Le

ed
s 

D
ru

g 
an

d 
A

lc
oh

ol
 B

oa
rd

 m
em

be
rs

 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
w

or
k 

co
lla

bo
ra

ti
ve

ly
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
nd

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h 
ne

ed
s 

of
 h

er
oi

n/
op

ia
te

 u
se

rs
, 

en
ha

nc
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 w
it

h 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t,
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
se

rv
ic

es
 th

at
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

su
st

ai
ne

d 
re

co
ve

ry
.

Le
ed

s 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Su
ic

id
e 

Pr
ev

en
ti

on
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

G
ro

up
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
re

du
ci

ng
 s

ui
ci

de
 in

 3
0–

50
 y

ea
r o

ld
 

m
en

 re
m

ai
ns

 a
 p

rio
rit

y 
w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
Le

ed
s 

Su
ic

id
e 

Pr
ev

en
ti

on
 P

la
n.

 

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 ta

rg
et

ed
 w

or
k 

w
it

h 
m

en
 a

t h
ig

h 
ris

k 
of

 s
ui

ci
de

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 n

ew
 

on
 a

 w
or

se
ni

ng
 li

fe
 e

xp
ec

ta
nc

y 
fo

r 
w

om
en

 a
nd

 a
 s

ta
ti

c 
lif

e 
ex

pe
ct

an
cy

 
fo

r m
en

 in
 o

ur
 c

it
y.

 T
he

 in
di

vi
du

al
 

se
ct

io
ns

 a
ro

un
d 

al
co

ho
l m

or
ta

lit
y 

in
 w

om
en

, s
el

f-
ha

rm
 in

 w
om

en
, 

dr
ug

 m
is

us
e 

in
 m

en
 a

nd
 s

ui
ci

de
 

in
 m

en
 e

ac
h 

ca
rr

y 
im

po
rt

an
t 

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s.
 T

he
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

ar
ou

nd
 B

es
t S

ta
rt

 
an

d 
th

e 
In

cl
us

iv
e 

G
ro

w
th

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
ak

in
g 

a 
st

ep
 b

ac
k,

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
so

m
e 

br
oa

de
r c

on
cl

us
io

ns
 to

 
be

 d
ra

w
n 

– 
na

m
el

y 
th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 
of

 lo
ca

l p
ub

lic
 h

ea
lt

h 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lt

h 
En

gl
an

d 
fo

r a
 n

at
io

na
l 

pi
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

fo
r a

 p
ic

tu
re

 o
f L

ee
ds

 
as

 a
 w

ho
le

. B
ut

 w
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 s
ee

in
g 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lt

h 
in

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
fu

nc
ti

on
 

th
at

 c
an

 a
na

ly
se

 p
ub

lic
 h

ea
lt

h 
is

su
es

 w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

ci
ty

. T
he

 re
ce

nt
 

de
ci

si
on

 to
 c

om
bi

ne
 th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 
H

ea
lt

h 
in

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
fu

nc
ti

on
 w

it
h 

th
e 

N
H

S 
Cl

in
ic

al
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
G

ro
up

 in
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

fu
nc

ti
on

 w
ill

 o
nl

y 
he

lp
 th

is
 a

bi
lit

y 
fu

rt
he

r a
nd

 is
 to

 b
e 

w
el

co
m

ed
.

Th
e 

sk
ill

 o
f o

ur
 P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lt
h 

In
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

Te
am

 a
t g

et
ti

ng
 b

en
ea

th
 

th
e 

he
ad

lin
es

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
cr

uc
ia

l t
o 

a 
be

tt
er

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 re
al

 
ar

ea
s 

of
 c

on
ce

rn
 fo

r L
ee

ds
. W

e 
w

ill
 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 m

on
it

or
 th

e 
he

al
th

 
st

at
us

 o
f o

ur
 p

op
ul

at
io

n.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
em

er
gi

ng
 h

ea
lt

h 
is

su
es

 

w
om

en
. T

he
re

 is
 a

n 
ur

ge
nt

 n
ee

d 
to

 
be

tt
er

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 

he
al

th
 n

ee
ds

 o
f m

en
 a

nd
 o

f w
om

en
. 

Pr
of

es
so

r A
la

n 
W

hi
te

 a
nd

 A
m

an
da

 
Si

em
s 

fr
om

 L
ee

ds
 B

ec
ke

tt
 U

ni
ve

rs
it

y,
 

in
 c

on
ju

nc
ti

on
 w

it
h 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lt

h,
 

ha
ve

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

w
ha

t i
s 

so
 fa

r t
he

 
la

rg
es

t h
ea

lt
h 

ne
ed

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
fo

r m
en

 in
 th

is
 c

ou
nt

ry
. W

e 
no

w
 

ne
ed

 to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 s
im

ila
r w

or
k 

on
 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 w
om

en
, r

ec
og

ni
si

ng
 

th
at

 th
is

 w
ill

 u
nc

ov
er

 b
ot

h 
ne

ed
 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ga
ps

. S
o 

I h
av

e 
tw

o 
m

or
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
an

d 
th

es
e 

ar
e 

se
t o

ut
 b

el
ow

.

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
lt

h 
is

su
es

 th
at

 a
re

 c
au

si
ng

 
th

e 
he

al
th

 o
f m

en
 a

nd
 w

om
en

 to
 

ge
t w

or
se

. R
ev

er
si

ng
 th

es
e 

w
or

ry
in

g 
tr

en
ds

 n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

a 
pr

io
rit

y.
 O

ur
 

ac
ti

on
s 

m
us

t b
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
 g

re
at

er
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

ge
nd

er
 

is
su

es
 th

an
 w

e 
ha

ve
 h

ad
 in

 th
e 

pa
st

. 
I d

o 
re

al
is

e 
th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

ab
ou

t t
ho

se
 w

ho
 c

ro
ss

 
tr

ad
it

io
na

l g
en

de
r b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 

ot
he

rw
is

e.
 In

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
, t

he
re

 w
ill

 
be

 a
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

et
te

r u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 th

at
 tr

an
s 

pe
op

le
 fa

ce
 in

 
th

ei
r l

iv
es

. 

I k
no

w
 th

es
e 

ar
e 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

ti
m

es
, 

an
d 

it
 is

 p
er

ha
ps

 in
ev

it
ab

le
 th

at
 

th
is

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
a 

ne
ga

ti
ve

 im
pa

ct
 

on
 th

e 
he

al
th

 o
f t

he
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 o
ur

 
ci

ty
. H

ow
ev

er
, p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
 

on
 h

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
w

el
lb

ei
ng

 h
as

 n
ev

er
 

be
en

 s
tr

on
ge

r. 
Th

e 
ci

ty
’s

 H
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

In
cl

us
iv

e 
G

ro
w

th
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

se
t o

ut
 a

 c
le

ar
 

di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 tr
av

el
. I

 h
av

e 
no

 d
ou

bt
 

w
e 

ha
ve

 th
e 

rig
ht

 p
rio

rit
ie

s.
 I 

re
ta

in
 

m
y 

op
ti

m
is

m
 th

at
, b

y 
w

or
ki

ng
 

to
ge

th
er

 fo
r t

he
 c

it
y,

 w
e 

ca
n 

re
tu

rn
 

to
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

lif
e 

ex
pe

ct
an

ci
es

 a
nd

 
re

du
ci

ng
 h

ea
lt

h 
in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

RE
C
O
M
M
EN
D
AT
IO
N
S

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 h
ea

lt
h 

ne
ed

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t f
or

 w
om

en
.

Le
ed

s 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
Pu

bl
ic

  
H

ea
lt

h 
In

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
Te

am
 

to
 c

on
ti

nu
e 

to
 m

on
it

or
 li

fe
 

ex
pe

ct
an

cy
 a

nd
 re

po
rt

 b
ac

k 
to

 
th

e 
Le

ed
s 

Ci
ty

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Bo

ar
d 

an
d 

Le
ed

s 
H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 B
oa

rd
.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

RE
C
O
M
M
EN
D
AT
IO
N
S 

20
17
-1
8

C
O
N
C
LU
SI
O
N
S

Page 63



51

50

A
 w

ar
m

 th
an

k 
yo

u 
to

 e
ve

ry
on

e 
w

ho
 

ha
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

ed
 to

 th
is

 y
ea

r’s
 a

nn
ua

l 
re

po
rt

, p
ar

ti
cu

la
rl

y 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lt
h 

In
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

Te
am

 a
nd

 R
ic

ha
rd

 D
ix

on
. 

W
it

ho
ut

 th
em

, o
ur

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 li
fe

 e
xp

ec
ta

nc
y 

w
ou

ld
 

no
t b

e 
po

ss
ib

le
.

Au
th
or
s

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
Sa

ra
h 

Er
sk

in
e

A
nn

a 
Fr

ea
rs

on
Vi

ne
et

a 
Se

hm
bi

Ti
m

 T
ay

lo
r

Ca
th

er
in

e 
W

ar
d

C
as
e 
st
ud
y 
co
nt
rib
ut
or
s

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
Fo

rw
ar

d 
Le

ed
s 

– 
D

ru
g 

an
d 

A
lc

oh
ol

 
Pr

ev
en

ti
on

 a
nd

 T
re

at
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce

W
om

en
’s

 L
iv

es
 L

ee
ds

In
si

gh
t P

ro
je

ct
 –

 B
ar

ca
 L

ee
ds

/P
ub

lic
 

H
ea

lt
h

Le
ed

s 
Su

ic
id

e 
Be

re
av

em
en

t S
er

vi
ce

D
er

ek
 G

re
en

, O
rio

n 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p
Ri

se
 H

ig
h

Ed
ito
r

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

G
ra
ph
ic
 d
es
ig
n

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
Le

ed
s 

Ci
ty

 C
ou

nc
il 

Co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 

th
an

ks
 to

 L
in

dy
 D

ar
k)

Ph
ot
og
ra
ph
y

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
 

N
or

th
er

n 
Ex

po
su

re
 P

ho
to

gr
ap

hy
Sh

ut
te

rs
to

ck
.c

om

C
om
m
un
ic
at
io
ns
 

su
pp
or
t

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

Pr
od
uc
tio
n 
su
pp
or
t

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..

 

AC
KN
O
W
LE
D
G
EM
EN
TS

Page 64



5252 Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



IMPROVING THE  
HEALTH STATUS FOR LEEDS  

BEYOND 2018

T H E  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  O F  T H E  D I R E C T O R  
O F  P U B L I C  H E A LT H  I N  L E E D S  2 0 1 7 / 1 8

Page 67



Introduction

The Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016–
2021 was launched in April 2016. The strategy is a 
blueprint for putting in place the best conditions for 
people in Leeds to live fulfilling lives. The vision is 
for Leeds to be a healthy and caring city for all ages, 
where people who are the poorest will improve their 
health the fastest.

The strategy has a wide remit, with five outcomes, 
12 priority areas and 21 indicators. Seven of these 21 
indicators are directly related to health status.

2016 marked the beginning of our five-year journey 
with the new Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
As part of last year’s Annual Report of the Director 
of Public Health, I set out our new starting position 
on the seven health-status indicators, alongside key 
indicators that relate to those public health issues 
described as priorities within the same strategy.

To ensure consistency, there are updates in relation 
to the health and wellbeing of children and young 
people, the health and wellbeing of adults and 
preventing early death, and the protection of health 
and wellbeing.

Rates show ‘no change’ unless there is a statistical 
difference from the earlier period, or unless rates 
showed an improvement or worsening on two 
consecutive occasions.

 

Page 68



Infant mortality (deaths aged under one year) 
continues to be a significant marker of the overall 
health of the population – and is one of the seven 
health-status indicators in the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy. As reported last year, the concerted focus 
over the last few years had seen a reduction to the 
lowest level ever seen in Leeds – even below the rate 
of England as a whole. However, there has been a rise 
and the Leeds infant mortality rate is now again higher 
than that of England as a whole.

This year’s Annual Report of the Director of Public 
Health explores this rise further.

The number of women smoking at the time of delivery 
continues to decline and is below the England rate.

The rate of teenage pregnancy continues to decline 
and, while still above the England rate, there has been 
a small narrowing of the gap.

The percentage of children with excess weight 
continues to be lower than for England as a whole. 
There has been a further reduction in children with 
excess weight in Reception Year. Children above a 
healthy weight is one of the seven health-status 
indicators in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

The Leeds My Health, My School Survey supported 
by the Healthy Schools Programme demonstrates a 
continuing reducing trend in the use of illegal drugs 
and in under-age use of alcohol.

Children’s positive view of their wellbeing is a specific 
indicator in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The 
Leeds My Health, My School Survey shows that 
around one in five children feel stressed every day or 
most days and this figure has continued to rise. The 
percentage of children who feel they have been bullied 
has declined, but is still around one in three children.

Improving the health and wellbeing of children and young people

Indicator no. Indicator England Leeds Direction of travel

1.a Infant mortality 3.9 4.4 Worsening

1.b Low birth-weight of term babies 2.8% 3.3% No change

1.c Smoking status at time of delivery 10.7% 10.2% Improving

1.d Breast feeding initiation 74.3% 68.0% No change

1.e Breast feeding continuation 43.8% 48.7% No change

1.f Teenage pregnancy 20.8 27.3 Improving

1.g 5-year-olds free from tooth decay 75.2% 68.6% No change

1.h Excess weight in children in Reception Year 22.6% 21.1% Improving

1.i Excess weight in children in Year 6 34.2% 33.7% No change

1.j Never taken alcohol (secondary school students) n/a 52.0% Improving

1.k Never taken illegal drugs (secondary school students) n/a 93.0% Improving

1.l Feeling stressed or anxious (primary and secondary students) n/a 22.0% Worsening

1.m Being bullied at school (primary and secondary students) n/a 30.0% Improving

1.a Deaths per 1,000 live births 2014–2016; 1.b Percentage of term babies with weight measured who were under 2.5 kg, 2015; 1.c Percentage of mothers who 
were smokers at the time of delivery 2016/17; 1.d Percentage of mothers who partially or entirely breast fed their baby at delivery 2014/15; 1.e Percentage of 
mothers who partially or entirely breast fed their baby at 6 to 8 weeks, 2014/15; 1.f Conceptions in women aged under 18 per 1,000 females aged 15–17, 2015; 
1.g Percentage of 5-year-olds free from obvious dental decay 2014/15 (PHE dental survey); 1.h Proportion of children aged 4–5 years classified as overweight 
or obese, 2016/17; 1.i Proportion of children aged 10–11 classified as overweight or obese, 2016/17; 1.j My Health, My School Survey – Alcohol Use (Q.29 
Alcohol Consumption – ‘Never had a drink of alcohol’), 2016/17; 1.k My Health, My School Survey – Illegal Drugs (Q.33 Used Illegal Drugs – ‘No’), 2016/17; 1.l 
My Health, My School Survey – Stress (Q.50 Feelings, Stressed or Anxious – ‘Every day’ or ‘Most days’), 2016/17; 1.m My Health, My School Survey – Bullying 
(Q.60 Bullied in school in the last year – All positive answers), 2016/17.

Page 69



Life expectancy for males and females continues to 
be below that of England and Wales. The previous 
improvements in life expectancy for both males 
and females in Leeds have ceased. There has been a 

decline for women and a static position for men. The 
reasons for this are explored in the Annual Report of 
the Director of Public Health.

Improving health and wellbeing of adults and preventing early death

Indicator no. Indicator England Leeds Direction of travel

2.a Life expectancy at birth (males) 79.5 78.3 No change

2.b Life expectancy at birth (females) 83.1 82.1 Worsening

2.c Healthy life expectancy at birth (males) 63.4 61.2 Improving

2.d Healthy life expectancy at birth (females) 64.1 62.1 No change

2.e Preventable mortality (persons, all ages) 182.8 213.1 Worsening

2.f Cardiovascular disease mortality (males under 75) 102.7 125.0 No change

2.g Cardiovascular disease mortality (females under 75) 45.8 53.0 No change

2.h Cancer mortality (males under 75) 152.1 172.8 Improving

2.i Cancer mortality (females under 75) 122.6 131.6 Improving

2.j Respiratory disease mortality (males under 75) 39.2 46.7 No change

2.k Respiratory disease mortality (females under 75) 28.7 39.3 Worsening

2.l Liver disease mortality (males under 75) 23.9 27.1 No change

2.m Liver disease mortality (females under 75) 12.8 13.8 Worsening

2.n Suicide rate (males) 15.3 18.3 Worsening

2.o Suicide rate (females) 4.8 3.9 No change

2.p Deaths from drug misuse (persons, all ages) 4.2 6.2 Worsening

2.q Excess under 75 mortality in adults with serious mental 
illness

370.0% 452.1% No change

2.r Smoking rate (adults) 15.5% 17.8% Improving

2.s Physically active adults 64.9% 62.1% No change

2.t Physically inactive adults 22.3% 24.8% No change

2.u Excess weight in adults (new method) 61.3% 60.9% No change

2.v Life expectancy at 65 (males) 18.7 17.8 No change

2.w Life expectancy at 65 (females) 21.1 20.3 No change

2.x Falls (persons over 65) 2169 2391 No change

2.y Hip fractures (females over 65) 710 771 No change

2.a Life expectancy at birth (males, 2013–2015); 2.b Life expectancy at birth (females, 2013–2015); 2.c Healthy life expectancy at birth (males, 2013–2015); 
2.d Healthy life expectancy at birth (females, 2013–2015); 2.e Age-standardised mortality rate (all ages) from causes considered preventable per 100,000 
population, 2014–2016; 2.f Cardiovascular disease mortality (males under 75), per 100, 000 (DSR), 2014–2016; 2.g Cardiovascular disease mortality (females 
under 75), per 100,000 (DSR), 2014–2016; 2.h Cancer mortality (males under 75), per 100,000 (DSR), 2014–2016; 2.i Cancer mortality (females under 75), 
per 100,000 (DSR), 2014–2016; 2.j Respiratory disease mortality (males under 75), per 100,000 (DSR), 2014–2016; 2.k Respiratory disease mortality (females 
under 75), per 100,000 (DSR), 2014–2016; 2.l Liver disease mortality (males under 75), per 100,000 (DSR), 2014–2016; 2.m Liver disease mortality (females 
under 75), per 100,000 (DSR), 2014–2016; 2.n Suicide rate (males) per 100,000 (DSR), 2014–2016; 2.o Suicide rate (females) per 100,000 (DSR), 2014–2016; 2.p 
Drug misuse mortality (persons, all ages), per 100,000 (DSR), 2014–2016; 2.q Ratio of rate of mortality for people with severe mental illness compared to the 
general population, 2014/15 (new method); 2.r Smoking prevalence in adults (Annual Population Survey), 2016; 2.s Physical activity > 150 minutes per week 
(percentage), 2015/16; 2.t Physical activity < 30 minutes per week (percentage), 2015/16; 2.u Percentage of persons aged 18+ who were overweight or obese, 
2015/16; 2.v Life expectancy for males aged 65, 2013–2015; 2.w Life expectancy for females aged 65, 2013–2015; 2.x Injuries due to falls in persons 65 and over 
per 100,000 (DSR), 2015/16; 2.y Hip fractures in women aged 65+ per 100,000 (DSR), 2015/16.

Page 70



There are three major killers – cardiovascular disease, 
cancer and respiratory disease. Of these, mortality 
from cancer has continued to improve and the gap 
with England has narrowed. Respiratory mortality in 
women has worsened both nationally and in Leeds.

There has been a rise in mortality in women from 
liver disease. This is related to alcohol and is a subject 
covered in the Annual Report of the Director of Public 
Health.

There has been a rise in mortality in men from both 
suicide and drug-related deaths. These are both 
covered in the Annual Report of the Director of Public 
Health.

Early death for people with mental illness is an 
indicator in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The 
way information is collected for deaths with serious 
mental illness is such that it is not possible to 
compare different years. This may change in the future 
but all we can say at present is that the Leeds position 
is worse than for England as a whole. 

The number of years of life lost from avoidable causes 
of death is an indicator in the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy. In light of the rises in mortality described 
above, there has been no significant progress since 
last year and Leeds continues to be worse than 
England as a whole.

The smoking rate for adults is 17.8%. While above the 
England figure, this is the lowest figure ever recorded 
for Leeds and the smoking rate shows a continuing 
decline. This is a key health-status indicator in the 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

Physical activity is a priority area, and key indicator, 
within the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. There has 
been no change since last year.

Around two-thirds of adults in Leeds are either 
overweight or obese. While there appears to be a 
decline from last year, there has been a change in the 
method of calculation and it is therefore best to make 
no judgement about trends at this stage.

There has been no change in life expectancy for people 
at 65 years and no change in injuries due to falls in 
people 65 years and over. 

Page 71



Although having a lower profile than in days gone 
by, infections continue to cause significant ill health 
and this carries both personal and organisational 
costs. Prevention, reducing transmission and effective 
treatment is still required.

The overall mortality for communicable diseases 
(including influenza) in Leeds has worsened, although 
it is still below that of England as a whole.

In terms of sexually transmitted infections, there 
continue to be higher levels of gonorrhoea in Leeds 
at a time when there has been a national reduction in 
diagnosis rates. Not reflected in these figures is the 
increasing concern about antibiotic-resistant cases 
of gonorrhoea, both in Leeds and nationally. There 
has been a significant reduction of new cases of HIV 
in Leeds. The detection rate for chlamydia in Leeds 
continues to be higher than for England, but the 
improvement in detection rate reflects the work of the 
Leeds City Council newly-commissioned integrated 
sexual health service.

There has been a decline in the number of new cases 
of TB.

Excess winter deaths relate in particular to respiratory 
infections and also cardiovascular events due to the 
cold. The figure for Leeds is now a little below the 
England figure.

Air pollution affects mortality from cardiovascular 
and respiratory conditions, including lung cancer. 
This indicator relates to particulate matter, which 
is thought to be the main factor affecting health. 
The level in Leeds is estimated to be the equivalent 
of 350 deaths per year in those aged over 25 years. 
More recent work has been looking at the additional 
mortality contribution from NOX. That mortality is 
not covered by this indicator.

Protecting the health and wellbeing of all

Indicator no. Indicator England Leeds Direction of travel

3.a Mortality from communicable diseases (including influenza) 10.7 10.4 Worsening

3.b Gonorrhoea – diagnosis rate 64.9 81.0 Worsening

3.c HIV – new diagnosis rate 10.3 10.3 Improving

3.d Chlamydia – detection rate 1882 2599 Improving

3.e Tuberculosis incidence 10.9 11.5 No change

3.f Excess winter deaths 17.9 17.2 No change

3.g Fraction of mortality attributable to particulate air pollution 4.7% 4.3% Improving

3.a Mortality from communicable diseases (including influenza) per 100,000 persons (DSR), 2014–2016; 3.b Gonorrhoea diagnosis crude rate per 100,000 
persons, 2016 (PHE Sexual Health Profile dataset); 3.c Rate of new diagnosed cases of HIV per 100,000 persons aged over 15 years, 2016 (PHE Sexual Health 
Profile dataset); 3.d Rate of chlamydia detection per 100,000 persons aged 15– 24, 2016 (PHE Sexual Health Profile dataset); 3.e Rate of TB incidence, crude 
rate per 100,000 persons, 2014–2016; 3.f Excess winter deaths, index score, persons all ages, August 2013– July 2016; 3.g Percentage of deaths attributable to 
PM2.5 particulate air pollution, 2015.

NOTES:
Unless otherwise stated, all variables presented in the three tables above were sourced from the Public Health Outcomes Framework dataset produced by 
Public Health England.

DSR means Directly Standardised Rates, which are used to remove the effect of differing population age structures on the rates produced; this allows Leeds 
to be compared with England in an accurate way, despite the impact of the university student and other population differences on the age structure.

Page 72



EDCI Screening  Template updated January 2014 
   
   

1

 
As a public authority we need to ensure that all our strategies, policies, service and 
functions, both current and proposed have given proper consideration to equality, 
diversity, cohesion and integration. 
 
A screening process can help judge relevance and provides a record of both the 
process and decision. Screening should be a short, sharp exercise that determines 
relevance for all new and revised strategies, policies, services and functions. 
Completed at the earliest opportunity it will help to determine: 

 the relevance of proposals and decisions to equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration.   

 whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being or has 
already been considered, and 

 whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment. 
 
Directorate: Adults and Health 
Directorate 

Service area: Public Health 
 

Lead person: Ian Cameron 
 

Contact number: 0113 378 8653 

 
1. Title: Director of Public Health Annual Report 2017/2018: Nobody Left Behind: 
Good health and a strong economy 
 
Is this a: 
 
     Strategy / Policy                    Service / Function                 Other 
                                                                                                                
 
 
If other, please specify 
 
 
2. Please provide a brief description of what you are screening 
 
The Director of Public Health is required to produce an annual report on the 
health of the population. This year’s report focuses on what lies behind a fall in 
life expectancy for women and a static position for men. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and 
Integration Screening 

  X 

Page 73



EDCI Screening  Template updated January 2014 
   
   

2

3. Relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration 
All the council’s strategies and policies, service and functions affect service users, 
employees or the wider community – city wide or more local. These will also have a 
greater or lesser relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration.   
 
The following questions will help you to identify how relevant your proposals are. 
 
When considering these questions think about age, carers, disability, gender 
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Also those areas that 
impact on or relate to equality: tackling poverty and improving health and well-being. 
 
Questions Yes No 
Is there an existing or likely differential impact for the different 
equality characteristics?  

X  

Have there been or likely to be any public concerns about the 
policy or proposal? 

 X 

Could the proposal affect how our services, commissioning or 
procurement activities are organised, provided, located and by 
whom? 

X  

Could the proposal affect our workforce or employment 
practices? 

 X 

Does the proposal involve or will it have an impact on 
 Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation and 

harassment 
 Advancing equality of opportunity 
 Fostering good relations 

 X 

 
If you have answered no to the questions above please complete sections 6 and 7 
 
If you have answered yes to any of the above and; 

 Believe you have already considered the impact on equality, diversity, 
cohesion and integration within your proposal please go to section 4. 

 Are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration within your proposal please go to section 5. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



EDCI Screening  Template updated January 2014 
   
   

3

4. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration 
 
If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact on equality, 
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.  
 
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance). 

 How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration? 
 
This year’s Annual Report highlights the fall in life expectancy for women and a 
static position for men. The report considers what lies behind these figures for 
females and males. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Key findings 
 
There has been a rise in alcohol related mortality in women. There has been a rise 
in drug related deaths in men and a rise in suicides in men. There is a concerning 
rise in self harm in young women.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Actions 
 
There are specific recommendations in regard to findings above plus a broader 
recommendation for a women’s health needs assessment to match one undertaken 
for men. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 75



EDCI Screening  Template updated January 2014 
   
   

4

5.  If you are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration you will need to carry out an impact assessment. 
 
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment: 
 

 

Date to complete your impact assessment 
 

 

Lead person for your impact assessment 
(Include name and job title) 

 

 
 
6. Governance, ownership and approval 
Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening 
Name Job title Date 
Ian Cameron 
 

Director of Public Health 07/02/18 

Date screening completed  
07/02/18 

 
7. Publishing 
Though all key decisions are required to give due regard to equality the council only 
publishes those related to Executive Board, Full Council, Key Delegated Decisions or 
a Significant Operational Decision.  
 

A copy of this equality screening should be attached as an appendix to the decision 
making report:  

 Governance Services will publish those relating to Executive Board and Full 
Council. 

 The appropriate directorate will publish those relating to Delegated Decisions and 
Significant Operational Decisions.  

 A copy of all other equality screenings that are not to be published should be sent 
to equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk  for record. 

 

Complete the appropriate section below with the date the report and attached screening 
was sent: 
For Executive Board or Full Council – sent to 
Governance Services  
 

Date sent: 

For Delegated Decisions or Significant Operational 
Decisions – sent to appropriate Directorate 
 

Date sent: 
 
 

All other decisions – sent to  
equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk 
 

Date sent: 

 
 
 

Page 76



Report of Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support

Report to Scrutiny Board (Adults and Health)

Date: 24 April 2018

Subject: Scrutiny Inquiry into The Health and Social Care Needs of Prisoners – Draft 
report

Are specific electoral Wards affected?   Yes   No
If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?

  Yes   No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No
If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary of main issues 

1 At the beginning of the municipal year, the Scrutiny Board agreed to undertake an 
inquiry around the Health and Social Care Needs of Prisoners that would broadly 
cover the following areas:

 Leeds City Council’s care obligations in relation to prisoners.
 Current commissioning and delivery arrangements of prisoner health services, 

particularly focusing on HMP Leeds and HMP Wealstun, including:
o The relationships between partner organisations; and,
o The challenges associated with delivering health and social care services in 

a prison setting.
 Specific health issues identified by Independent Monitoring Boards.
 The outcome of Healthwatch Leeds’ work around prisoners’ experience of health 

and care services.

2 The Board has now concluded its inquiry and the Board is in a position to report on its 
findings and recommendations resulting from the evidence gathered. The Board’s draft 
report will follow and be made available in readiness for the meeting when Board 
Members will be asked to formally consider and agree its report.

3. Scrutiny Board Procedure Rule 13.2 states that "where a Scrutiny Board is   
considering making specific recommendations it shall invite advice from the appropriate 
Director(s) prior to finalising its recommendations. The Director shall consult with the 
appropriate Executive Member before providing any such advice. The detail of that 

Report author:  Steven Courtney
Tel:  0113 3788666

Page 77

Agenda Item 11



advice shall be reported to the Scrutiny Board and considered before the report is 
finalised”.  

4. Once the Board publishes its final report, the appropriate organisations will be asked to 
formally respond to the Scrutiny Board’s report and recommendations within three 
months.

Recommendation

5.    Members are asked to consider and agree the Board’s report following its inquiry into 
the Health and Social Care Needs of Prisoners.

Background documents1

6. None used

1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works.

Page 78


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 13 March 2018
	7 Executive Board minutes - 21 March 2018
	8 Chair's Update
	9 Request for Scrutiny - Proposals from Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust to establish a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company
	10 The Annual Report of the Director of Public Health 2017/2018
	Dir Public Health Annual Report Cover Report V2 120318
	Dir Public Health Annual Report Appendix 1 Ann Rpt 14 02 18
	Dir Public Health Annual Report Appendix 2 Status 14 02 18
	Dir Public Health Annual Report Appendix 3 EDCI  01 03 18

	11 Scrutiny Inquiry into The Health and Social Care Needs of Prisoners - Draft report

